
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




ADRIA Board Strategic Planning Workshop Sept 27, 2014  Page 1 of 8 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
ADR Institute of Alberta (ADRIA) 


 


 


Strategic Planning Session 


 


September 27, 2014 
 
 
 


 
 
 


Community Development Unit 
 
  







ADRIA Board Strategic Planning Workshop Sept 27, 2014  Page 2 of 8 


 


ADR Institute of Alberta (ADRIA) 
Strategic Planning Session 


 


September 27, 2014 
 
Background: 
 
The ADR Institute of Alberta (ADRIA) scheduled a strategic planning 
session for September 27, 2014, to allow the board and staff to explore 
issues related to the operation of the organization, undertake a strengths 
and weaknesses scan (SWOT), and review and revise (if appropriate) their 
vision, mission, values, and strategies. 
 
Delivery 
 
The first planning session took place September 27, 2014, in Calgary.  
 
Who attended – board members and the executive director of the ADR 
Institute of Alberta (ADRIA).  
 
Rick Moyse of Alberta Culture and Tourism facilitated the session. 
 
Results 
 
During the session, participants reflected on the past and current work of 
the organization through a SWOT scan, reviewed their vision and mission, 
and slightly revised their value statement. They also discussed their three 
year goals, with a commitment to continue to review and if necessary 
revise their strategies and success indicators. 
 
 
  







ADRIA Board Strategic Planning Workshop Sept 27, 2014  Page 3 of 8 


 


SWOT Analysis 
Strengths  


Internal strengths (internal resource and capabilities (what sets us 
apart? What helps us achieve our purpose?) 
 


 An active, engaged board, staff, and office 


 Members are more enthused 


 Good stability, both from a human and financial resource standpoint (as 
long as we focus on revenue generation) 


 There is a strong and growing support for ADR 


 We have a clear vision and direction (foundation) 


 Growing membership 


 We are the only holistic membership organization in Alberta 


 We have a better picture of the revenue generation world 


 The commitment of board and staff 


 Entrepreneurial spirit 


 We have a long history 


 We have a solid public educational program 


 Broad, diverse membership 


 Talent, harmony, lack of ego 


 Belonging to a national organization 


 Loyal and committed members and trainers 


 Our volunteers 
 


Weaknesses  
Internal weaknesses (resources/capabilities) (what hinders us in 
achieving our purpose?) 
 


 How can we implement what we want to be? 


 Not having defined if we are a membership organization – an educational 
organization 


 We haven’t transitioned from an educational to a membership organization 


 Staff are still dealing with older, legacy issues 


 The new introductory mediator course 


 Our programs have been confusing 


 Our presence in Calgary is weak 


 We haven’t adequately tapped into the ADR market in the legal community 


 Being able to quickly adjust 


 There have been perceived barriers in training 


 Lack of regulatory authority 


 Resistance of high profile professionals to becoming involved 


 Many practitioners see no benefit in joining or taking appropriate training 


 Hurdles to designation 
 We haven’t educated the public around why they need special training 


 







ADRIA Board Strategic Planning Workshop Sept 27, 2014  Page 4 of 8 


 


Opportunities  
External opportunities (outside factors or situations that affect 
organization in a positive way 
 


 Having an increased presence in Calgary, and other areas like Ft 
McMurray 


 Partnering with other organizations in and out of Alberta 


 Using technology 


 Tendering transparency opportunities 


 Getting involved in administration and roster opportunities 


 Getting involved in legislative lobbying 


 Influencing credential qualification for rosters, etc. 


 Partnering with industry around transparency/anti-corruption issues 


 Attend tradeshows/conferences to market ourselves 


 Partnering with regulatory bodies 


 Becoming a professional umbrella organization for ADR 


 Promoting ADRIA contracting clauses 


 For the board to pay more attention to marketing 


 Having a good brand 


 Deciding who to attract to ADRIA 


 To blow our own horn 


 


Threats  
External Threats- (outside factors/situations that affect organization is 
a negative way) 
 


 The devaluation of mediation (threatening the viability of the profession) 


 Pricing issues when mediation is delivered at legal rates (public education 
issue) 


 Lack of respect/recognition for ADR in the legal system, or they set up their 
own systems 


 Free access to the justice system is a threat 


 ADRIA is not well connected to ADR processes 


 Decreasing educational standard 


 The readiness of ADRIA to shift from education to membership given what 
is happening in other educational organizations 


 Other ADR organizations providing free training 
 
 


 
  







ADRIA Board Strategic Planning Workshop Sept 27, 2014  Page 5 of 8 


 


What do we need to stop doing, or do less of?  
 
 


 Spreading ourselves too thin 


 Going wherever we are invited – we need to be more strategic 


 Chasing the educational institutions (let them come to us) 
 


What do we need to start doing, or start doing more of? 
 
 


 Increase our presence (membership and education) in Calgary and other 
parts of Alberta 


 More marketing – i.e. attendance at tradeshows 


 Roster development/selection (increased business opportunities for 
members, and funds for ADRIA) 


 Administrative rosters for a fee 


 Leveraging our board and board members 
 







ADRIA Board Strategic Planning Workshop Sept 27, 2014  Page 6 of 8 


 


ADRIA STRATEGIC PLAN 2014 –2016 
Revised September 27, 2014  


 


VISION  


ADRIA is the strongest, most vibrant Appropriate Dispute Resolution membership organization in Canada - recognized for 
advancing excellence in the field of ADR, its practice, and its professionals 
 
MISSION:  To provide leadership and services in appropriate dispute resolution (ADR) to our members by:  
• Fostering excellence in negotiation, mediation, arbitration, and restorative practices  


• Supporting the viable practice of ADR in Alberta  


• Providing excellence in ADR  professional development  


• Promoting the ethical use of ADR processes  


• Maintaining accreditation standards, accountability  and designations for the ADR profession 


• Encouraging those practicing in ADR to join our organization 
 
OUR VALUES:  


Excellence: We challenge ourselves to deliver the highest quality programs and services. We stay abreast of new ideas and developments and 


seek out changes and innovations that help us continuously raise the bar in everything we do. 


Uncompromising Ethics We treat others with honesty, openness, fairness and respect in every situation. 


Collaboration:   We value different views and ideas and believe that by working effectively together and with others we can reach our goals. We 


embrace the opportunity to explore mutual interests and new relationships. We welcome opportunities to leverage our resources through partnering. 
  


Accountability: We steward our resources with diligence and care. We honour the commitments we make to others. 


Leadership: We will promote new and important directions and opportunities for our profession and our organization, even though the path may be 


difficult. We recognize it is only through trying new ideas and learning from our failures that we can grow and move forward. 
  







ADRIA Board Strategic Planning Workshop Sept 27, 2014  Page 7 of 8 


 


 


STRATEGIC DIRECTION STRATEGIES 
Success Indicators 


(Targets) 


1. Enhance the value,  


awareness, 


reputation of and 


access to ADR  


services 


 


a. Forge strategic 1partnerships with government, courts, schools, 


businesses and other associations to support ADRIA members in working, 


teaching and coaching in the ADR field 


 
2 new partnerships (Example 
Municipalities) per year 


b. Increase the value of ADRIA membership to ADR professionals and 


industry leaders (lower priority) 


Increase Corporate membership 
earning by 10k per year 


c. Develop and implement a roster development plan with defined 


deliverables 


 
ADRIA administers 3 new rosters  
per year   


d. Strengthen our partnerships with ADRIC and other ADR organizations to 


promote the practice of ADR  


 
4 new initiatives per year 


2. Strengthen our 


Profession  


a. Continue to work with ADRIC to support development & delivery of 


National Mediation and Arbitration education programs for entry into the 


profession  


 


1  new initiative  or milestone per 


year 


b. Develop Partnerships with universities and colleges to offer ADRIA 


programs.(not presently being pursued) 


 


1 partnership per year  


c. Integrate ADRIA accredited ADR courses into college and university 


certificate, diploma and degree programs 


1 new initiative per year 


d. Increase partnerships with professions and occupations to create and 


accredit ADR courses for their  Certification programs that will lead to 


Q.Med designations  


 


2 initiatives per year 


e. Promote the value of ADRIC designations with organizations and the 


public who access ADR services 


4 promotional initiatives per year  


                                                 
1 A partnership is an arrangement where parties agree to cooperate to advance their mutual interests 







ADRIA Board Strategic Planning Workshop Sept 27, 2014  Page 8 of 8 


 


STRATEGIC DIRECTION STRATEGIES 
Success Indicators 


(Targets) 


3. Strengthen ADRIA 


as a Membership 


Organization  


(formerly: Increase the number 


of ADRIA MEMBERS across 


Alberta) 


a.  Increase access and value of designations to targeted groups to build 
membership (providing greater membership benefits, and improving the 
AGM experience) 


2 groups targeted  per year for 
Q.Med and Q.Arb designations  


 


 


1 profile initiative per region per 
year 


 


1 target per quarter 


 


Increase ADRIA membership by  
10% annually  


b.  Develop and implement a plan for increasing ADRIA’s profile  


c.  Develop and implement a plan to attract ADR professionals\ practitioners 
who are not members of ADRIA 


d.  Increase ADRIA membership across Alberta  


4. Strengthen the long 


term sustainability of 


ADRIA as an 


organization 


a. Develop and  implement a mid- to long-term  revenue stream strategy and 


targets for ADRIA 


Line of credit paid off on revised 
schedule 


 


A reserve is created in 2014  and 
increases by 20k per year 


 


1-2 revenue generating member 


services initiatives per year 


b. Develop and implement an effective mid-term organizational structure and 


human resources plan that aligns with 1-3 above  


An HR structure for operational 


leadership and member support is 


fully implemented in  2014 


 


 








 


 


ADR Institute of Canada 
September 17, 2015 


Board Meeting 
               BP Page 


1. Welcome      Scott Siemens  
2. Call to order    Scott Siemens  
3. Confirmation of Quorum    Janet McKay     
4. Declarations of Conflict of Interest     Janet McKay 
5. Approval of Agenda     Scott Siemens  
6. Minutes of Exec Meeting August 20, 2015 ‐ for information    Scott Siemens   02 
7. Minutes of Board Meeting June 18, 2015 – for approval    Scott Siemens   07   
   
   
8. Technology Committee Recommendations    Michael Erdle   11  
    Research chart is Appendix A ‐ 32 pages! 
New Business  
9. Conference/Board Meetings Expectations/ Attendance    Scott Siemens  
10. ADRIA/ADRIC Joint Board Meeting and Dinner ‐ Topics?    Scott Siemens 
11. ADRIC Advocacy Committee    Janet McKay    18 
12. Limiting affiliates' use of old logo (see "Letter to Affiliates")    Jim McCartney/Bill Hartnett  19 
13. Revision of Logo    Jim McCartney/Bill Hartnett 
14. Review of "Development Fund" for National Courses    Jeffrey Smith    23 & 24 
 
Old Business 
15. BCAMI Designations Update    Glen Bell 
16. Marketing & Membership Cte Recommendation re Corporate Member Package   Bill Hartnett/Jim McCartney  


              Appendix B 
Reports 
17. Draft Financial Statements    Jeffrey Smith    32 
18. Executive Director's Report     Janet McKay       
19. Other      All 
20. Motion to conclude    All 


____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 


 


Upcoming meeting dates, 2015: 
Exec Thursday October 8 12:00 pm ET  
Board October 30‐31 Full Board after ADRIC Conference 
Exec Thursday November 26 12:00 pm ET 
Exec Thursday December 17 12:00 pm ET (optional, TBD closer to date*) 
*For the "optional, TBD closer to dates:" would be ideal if Execs could hold the date and they can be 
confirmed orcancelled 3 weeks prior, thank you. 







ADR Institute of Canada 
August 20, 2015 


Executive Committee Meeting 
 
Present as indicated:  X; meetings missed ( )  
 
Executive: 
 
X Glen Bell   X Thierry Bériault  X Derek Lloyd   (1) Jim Musgrave  X Scott Siemens 
X Jeffrey Smith 
 
Staff:  
X Janet McKay (Secretary) 
 


 
1. Welcome 


 
 
2. Call to order 


 
The meeting was called to order by President Scott Siemens at 3:04pm ET. 


 
 
3. Confirmation of quorum  


 
Janet McKay confirmed quorum. 


 
 
4. Declarations of Conflict of Interest 


 
Janet McKay invited those with any conflicts of interest to declare.  None declared. 


 
 
5. Approval of agenda 
 


Moved by Derek Lloyd that the meeting agenda as circulated be approved.  Seconded by Thierry Bériault.  Motion carried. 
 


 
6. Minutes of Board Meeting June 18, 2015 
 


The Minutes of Board Meeting of June 18, 2015 were provided for information only.  
 
 


7. Minutes of Executive Committee Meeting May 21, 2015  
 


Moved by Derek Lloyd to approve the minutes of Exec Meeting of May 21, 2015.  Seconded by Thierry Bériault.  Motion 
carried. 


BP2







 
8. Financial Statements Report   


 
Treasurer Jeffrey Smith stated that the 2015 forecast has been revised due to three variances: the National Courses are 
proving more successful than expected, sponsorship revenues may have been overstated by approximately $13,000, and 
Arbitration Administration revenue is up.  These items affect the bottom line as a surplus of $132,067, $56,000 of which is 
destined for Course evergreening. The suggested Course Development Fund will have to be an apportionment of retained 
earnings which Mr. Smith suggests reconsidering because  it can lead to poor economic decision making and is meaningless as  
the Board cannot be bound. 
 
Mr. Smith explained the short-term investments used to be comprised of term deposits, but ADRIC is no longer purchasing.  
Instead, ADRIC keeps money in its bank account and has made a deal with the bank whereby they offer higher interest on 
higher balances. 
 
Accounts Receivable amount is from shared expenses with ADRIO - waiting for audit completion in case of any adjustments 
then will be cleared.  
 
Derek Lloyd suggested that ADRIC should consider a trust account for the Course Development Fund. 
 


Executive Director to include review of license agreement regarding development fund on next Board meeting agenda. 
 


Mr. Lloyd also raised a question regarding the profitability of the Courses - whether it may be problematic for ADRIC's non-
profit status. Mr. Smith suggested that ADRIC wait for a period of time to determine whether the high revenues would 
continue and to review how the revenues could be used for ADR advocacy, etc. 
 


 
9. Conference & Board Meeting Attendance / Expectations 


 
Scott Siemens shared with the Executive committee that he hoped they would be fully present at the AGM, conference and 
board meetings and requested their support in asking the same of the rest of the Board.   
 
 


10. Directors' and Officers' Expense Policy Revision 
 


Moved by Scott Siemens that the Policy be accepted as submitted. Seconded by Thierry Bériault.  Motion carried. 
 


Executive Director to distribute to Board asap. 
 


 
11. Trademark Recommendations 


 
Janet McKay referred to the recommendations that ADRIO's lawyer provided to them regarding protection of their name and 
brand and asked whether the Executive committee wished to follow them.  The Executive agreed that it would be prudent to 
include the TM where appropriate. 
 


Executive Director to implement adding the TM insignia to ADRIC's logo and title. 
 


 
 
 


BP3







 
12. Coexistence Agreement with IMI for New ADRIC Logo 


 
ADRIO expressed concern that ADRIC's new logo was too similar to IMI's logo, so the Marketing and Membership committee 
asked IMI whether they were concerned.  IMI has offered a coexistence agreement.  The agreement has been reviewed by 
Michael Erdle, Jim McCartney, Bill Hartnett and Executive Director who have made some comments and suggestions.  The 
main issue of concern is IMI's asking that ADRIC not use the logo without its name "in close proximity" as we may wish to use 
the logo on pins, social media, etc.  Derek Lloyd agreed to review the document to provide appropriate language. 
 


Executive Director to send document to Derek. 
 
 


13. Northern Territories 
 
The Membership and Marketing committee would like to suggest affiliates reach out to potential members in Canada's North.  
Perhaps BCAMI can reach out to the Yukon, ADRIA to NWT, and ADRIM, ADRIO or IMAQ to Nunavut. The Executive decided to 
suggest the item be sent to affiliates and be placed on the Presidents' Roundtable. 
 


Executive Director to send email to affiliates and ask Presidents' Roundtable Chair Andy Butt to put on PRT agenda. 
 


 
14. Recommendation regarding Arbitration Deposit Money 


 
Glen Bell moved on behalf of the Arbitration Process Review Committee that deposits made to ADRIC towards arbitration fee 
and hearing expenses be held in a separate trust account as clients expect this and it offers them protection.  Seconded by 
Thierry Bériault. Motion carried. 
 
Scott Siemens thanked Mr. Bell and all members of the Committee for their work. 
 
 


15. IMI Global Pound Conference 
 


Mr. Bériault briefly updated the committee on the status of the bid to hold this conference in tandem with the ADRIC 
conference. Mr. Bériault's main focus for the next month will be identifying 5-11 members for the Local Organising 
Committee for Canada ("LOCC") which would include users (organisations), advisors (accountants, lawyers) and other 
stakeholders (government, judiciary, academics).  
 
Mr. Bériault requested permission to circulate the Core Questions to the Board for return by September 8; asked who will 
represent ADRIC to LOCC (President or Executive Director) and have staff committed to the project. 
 


Executive Director to send Core Questions to Board, to act as LOCC representative and to appoint staff to act as liaison for 
LOCC. 


 
 


16. The meeting was concluded at 4:15pm ET with an agreement to cover the balance of the agenda at a second meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 


BP4







 
Second portion of meeting August 28, 12pm ET 


 
In attendance: 
X Glen Bell   (1) Thierry Bériault (1) Derek Lloyd   X Jim Musgrave  X Scott Siemens 
X Jeffrey Smith                  X Andy Butt 
 
Staff:  
X Janet McKay (Secretary) 
 
 


17. Executive Director's Report 
 
The new ADRIO Executive Director started July 27th and it is working well.  Our styles are similar and we are working 
collaboratively.  Had our first joint staff meeting yesterday and it went well:  staff feel as though it is a fresh start. 
 
Conference sponsorship has been a struggle this year.  We are at just under $50,000.  Forecast was very modest at $88,000 
which Mr. Smith and I have just revised down to $75,000.  Would like the Board's help in identifying and reaching out to 
potential sponsors.  Will send list to Board again and am working with David McCutcheon to work with some of his contacts. 
Mr. Siemens and Mr. Musgrave offered to make some cold calls. 
 
Corporate Membership update:  ballots will be going out end of September so will have slate of Corporate Member directors 
in time for the AGM.  
 
Working with HR committee to develop ADRIC policies and will be meeting with ADRIO to come to recommendations of 
policies to the Boards. 
 
Marketing & Membership committee still extremely busy. We have planned to unveil the new logo at the conference during 
the AGM or just after with a video showing ADRIC's milestones over the years and then with old logo morphing into new logo.  
Conference will open with old logo and during the unveiling, staff with change their badges, put out documents with new 
logo, uncover other items with  new logo.  Delegates will have new logo on their badges (hidden) and will be requested to flip 
their badges during the AGM. 
 
Randy Bundus leaving so need a replacement signatory.  Executive Director will be looking into a recommendation. 
 
Executive Director postponing vacation this week due to amount of work with conference etc.  May take days here and there. 
 
M&MC subcommittee is Corporate Membership.  Would like to collaborate with affiliates in offering a group discount on 
Membership fee including ADRIC's portion of as well as the annual designation fee.  ADRIA willing and suggests 10%.  Impact 
would not be great as ADRIC does not currently have any individual members under the Corporate Membership umbrella.  If 
ADRIC agrees, we would take to affiliates for their decision.  After some discussion the Executive decided to allow a discount 
as a membership-building tool.   
 
The arrangement with our pro bono Corporate Counsel has not been productive.  Executive Director had conversation and 
provided an opportunity for him to step away, but he did not take it yet has not initiated any work since.  Decision was to 
consider a replacement (including Bill Hartnett if and when he plans to retire).  Will add this topic to full Board agenda for 
decision. 
 


BP5







 
The Dispute Resolution Board Foundation has suggested an agreement for collaboration in sharing events and information.  
The Exec agreed it is a good opportunity to work in partnership and potentially build membership and further ADR. Glen Bell 
moved to have Executive Director sign the agreement. Seconded by Jim Musgrave.  Motion carried. 
 
Executive Director wishes to create an Advocacy Committee to respond to issues in the media, etc. Would like to launch after 
October Board meeting and include regional affiliate as well as Corporate members.  Exec was concerned about overlap with 
M&MC.  Executive Director suggested that it would act like a Marketing subcommittee in promotional areas, but for lobbying, 
responding to media and representing ADRIC it is a necessarily separate committee.  Important to make it clear to members 
of the Advocacy committee that they would be speaking for ADRIC and ADR generally and not consider any opportunities as a 
way to further their personal business.  Exec committee affirmed that proposal should be brought to the Board. 
 
 


18. President Roundtable and MOU Task Force Update 
 
Andy Butt provided an update and described the PRT as not only accepted by affiliates, but found as important - they assign 
replacements if unable to attend.  The Presidents set the agenda and prioritise at each meeting.  Some of the larger affiliates 
requested their Executive Directors attend for operational issues.  Affiliates are bringing many of topics forward to seek input 
from other regions, such as types of membership or complimentary memberships, MOUs,  
 
The Task Force was suggested at the current MOUs are not only 30 years old but have become irrelevant.  They have a great 
deal of work to do.  Have good pan-Canadian representation.  Modernise relationship between ADRIC and affiliates and 
between affiliates.  May have a signing ceremony at the October 2016 Conference if new MOU is complete.   
 
 


19. Scott Siemens moved to conclude the meeting at 1:15pm ET. 
 


 
  
 


BP6







ADR Institute of Canada 
Minute of the Board of Directors Meeting 


June 18, 2015 
 
Present as indicated:  X; meetings missed ( )  
 
Executive: 
 
 X Glen Bell   X Thierry Bériault  X Derek Lloyd   (1) Jim Musgrave  X Scott Siemens 
(1) Jeffrey Smith 
 
Directors:  
 
X Stephen Antle  (2) Randy Bundus  X Andy Butt   (4) Mary Comeau 
X Michael Erdle   X Bill Hartnett   X Jim McCartney  X David McCutcheon  
X Louise Novinger Grant X Chuck Smith   X Jennifer Schulz  (2) Anne Wallace 
 
Staff:  
X Janet McKay (Secretary) 


 
1. Call to order 
 
The meeting was called to order by President Scott Siemens at 12:00pm ET. 


 
 


2. Confirmation of quorum  
 
Executive Director Janet McKay confirmed quorum. 


 
 


3. Declarations of Conflict of Interest 
 
Mr. Siemens invited those with any conflicts of interest to declare.  None declared. 


 
 


4. Approval of agenda 
 


Moved by Jim McCartney that the meeting agenda as circulated be approved.  Seconded by Jennifer Schulz .  Motion carried. 
 
 


5. Nominations Committee recommendations 
 
Moved by Michael Erdle that the Board accept with regret the notice of retirement of Jeffrey Smith as ADRIC’s Treasurer and 
as a Director at large, effective at the conclusion of the next annual general meeting;  that it accept Mr. Smith’s 
recommendation of Josie Parisi as his successor in the role of Treasurer; and that it appoint Josie Parisi as a Director at large 
and Treasurer for a one (1) year term in accordance with ADRIC’s by-laws, joining the Board in both capacities at the first 
Board meeting following the above annual general meeting. Seconded by David McCutcheon. Accepted as a friendly 
amendment that Ms. Parisi be required to become a member as per ADRIC's By-Laws.  Motion carried. 
 
Michael Erdle reported on behalf of the Nominating Committee that it interviewed all Directors on the Board. Randy Bundus 
and Derek Lloyd have indicated that they will retire at the end of this term. Committee will reach out to Corporate Directors 
to encourage them to put forward a nominee to replace Mr. Lloyd and will work to identify a member at large to replace Mr. 


BP7







Bundus' position. 
 


 
6. Approval of Minutes of April 24-25, 2015 Board Meeting   


 
Moved  by Scott Siemens to approve the Minutes of Board Meeting of April 24-25, 2015.  Seconded by  Chuck Smith.  Motion 
carried. 
 
 
7. Minutes of May 21, 2015 Executive Committee Meeting  
 
The Minutes of Executive Committee Meeting of May 21, 2015 were provided for information only.  
 
 
8. ADRIO Comment re New ADRIC Logo 
 
Michael Erdle reported that the ADRIO Board had a number of concerns about the new logo: 
 
• They felt there was lack of consultation with the affiliates regarding the decisions to drop the existing logo and adopt a new 


one, and the chosen design.  The board members recognized that it is impractical to involve everyone in the design 
decision or to get unanimous approval on the new design, but they felt that there should have been some consultation, 
especially given the significant impact on branding across the country.  


 
• The logo is very similar to the IMI logo – several people had the immediate impression that it was confusing.  This gave rise 


to concerns about the scope of trademark protection and possible infringement risk.  Are there other similar logos?  Has a 
full clearance search been done?  Can the new logo be registered?  (Of course, these are risks ADRIC will bear, but it 
could affect affiliates as well, if they adopt the new logo.) 


 
• The cost for affiliates and members to switch to the new logo, and replace existing marketing materials.  Will there be a 


transition period to allow them to use up existing stock?  ADRIO also wanted to know whether affiliates or individual 
members can continue to use the old logo, if they choose to do that.  


 
Jim McCartney, Co-Chair of the Membership and Marketing indicated that the committee plans to create an information 
package for Affiliates.  
 


The Membership and Marketing Committee is to ensure that logo can be registered and protected and carry on with their plan 
to compile an information package for Affiliates. 


 
 
 
9. BCAMI’s Q.F.Arb and C.F.Arb/C.F.Med  
 


Glen Bell reported that BCAMI has not taken any formal decision but in view of the fact that they have not had any 
applications for it, he will recommend that BCAMI eliminate the program and the designation altogether and will report 
back. 


Glen Bell to report on BCAMI designations at the next meeting. 
 
 


10. Affiliate Designations Discussion 
 
Chuck Smith spoke on behalf of ADRIA saying it would prefer to discourage the creation of designations by Affiliates and 
promote only the stronger, national designations. ADRIA suggests ADRIC consider a national Negotiation designation. 
 
Thierry Bériault stated that IMAQ's designations are strongly branded so believes IMAQ would prefer to maintain those, but 
they continue to promote the senior national designations.   
 


BP8







Andy Butt suggested that smaller Affiliates such as ADRAI need to access designations but may have difficulty doing the 
assessments.  There should be discussions and exploration to determine the demand of various designations and whether it 
might be worth creating nationally to deter others doing regionally. 
 
Scott Siemens noted that he has heard lately a strong interest in a Med-Arb designation. 
 


Executive Director to bring the topic of designations to Executive committee for consideration. 
 


 
 


11. HR Committee Recommendations 
 
Chuck Smith reported that the HR Committee plans to create a robust planning and review process and has recommendations 
for staff 2014 bonuses and 2015 salaries retroactive to January. 
 
Moved by Chuck Smith to accept the salary increases and bonuses as per the recommendation subject to ADRIO's approval. 
Seconded by Andy Butt. Motion carried. 


 
 


 
12. IMI Pound Series Conference - update 
 
Thierry Bériault stated that there are some ADRIO members interested in participating in organising the event and that he 
plans to submit a proposal to the Executive Director and Board by the end of June. 


 
Thierry to submit detailed proposal for the 2016 event. 


 
13. Executive Director's Report  
 
Ms. McKay advised ADRIO is close to hiring a new Executive Director - second interviews are to be held June 19 with two 
strong candidates and a decision is imminent. 
 
ADRIO has decided not to pursue legal action regarding FDRIO name.  Ms. McKay had forwarded to the Board on June 17th, 
ADRIO's lawyer's letter of opinion and recommendation which ADRIO interpreted as indicating the likelihood of successfully 
stopping the use of the names was negligible.  Additionally, ADRIO is concerned the action would alienate and disturb the 
family dispute resolution industry in Ontario.   
 
The letter also recommended particular actions to guard the brand going forward, which ADRIC may wish to consider for its 
own brand.  
 


 M&M to explore trademarking of ADRIC name and brand. 
 
Ms McKay reported that a member requested a refund of her designation payment and sought guidance. 
 


Executive Director to bring the topic of designation refunds to Executive committee for  policy decision. 
 
ADRIC may wish to consider a Code of Conduct for Arbitrators as it has a Code of Ethics for all members, but only a Code of 
Conduct for Mediators. 
 
Social Media Policy has been drafted, sent to Michael Erdle for review and will be presented to Board when ready. 
 
Conference Sponsorship:  Will be sending sponsorship list - request that Directors look to see if they have any contacts at the 
firms listed and can suggest any other firms/contacts. 


BP9







 
Janet McKay to send list to Board. 


 
We understood that ADRIC was the only Qualified Approval Provider ("QAP") for the IMI designation, but have learned that 
FMC is also a QAP. ADRIC has not been actively promoting the designations.  When we have determined a strong marketing 
campaign for ADRIC designations, we can begin promoting IMI's. 
 
Ms. McKay was successful in promoting ADRIC and ADR as a topic for the Canadian Society of Association Executives ("CSAE") 
national conference.  She worked with ADRIA to place speaker on their program. 
 
Members of Affiliates are being placed on National committees - particularly IMAQ and BCAMI which are not as well 
represented.   
 
Many ADRIC Committees need Terms of Reference:  Executive Director will be following up with them. 
 


Executive Director to request that all committees create their Terms of Reference. 
 
While Alberta is doing quite well with designations, the numbers are dropping across Canada.  A report will be provided for 
review at the next meeting. 
 


Executive Director to provide designations report for next meeting. 
 
Ms. McKay suggested the Board consider initiating a Corporate Representatives' Roundtable similar to the Presidents' 
Roundtable to  better engage Corporate Members.  
 


Executive Director to convene a meeting of Corporate Members on the Board, President and self to discuss. 
 


 
14. In Camera 


 
The meeting was adjourned by consensus. 
 


 


BP10







Page 1 


Date: September 10, 2015  


To: ADRIC Board of Directors 


From: Technology Committee  


Re: Membership System Recommendations 


 


The Board gave this committee a mandate to recommend whether to replace the existing membership 
software and, if so, to recommend a preferred solution.  


The committee has held a series of conference calls and much email correspondence in 2015 to collect 
and review information about potential membership software solutions.  This memo summarizes the 
result of those deliberations and recommends the ADRIC Board to move forward with a new system.  


The staff and committee members looked at many potential products. Our discussion focussed on two 
solutions:  


 Wild Apricot – very inexpensive, flexible, do‐it‐yourself approach.  It is currently in use by the 
Alberta and Atlantic affiliates.  Staff have concerns about ability to handle national requirements 
(multiple membership groups, affiliates, designations, CEE reports, etc.) 


 IMIS – appears to meet all of our functional requirements without customization.  More 
expensive than Wild Apricot to implement and for ongoing license fees, but less expensive than 
MemberNation and other alternatives. 


In August we received information about FileMaker, a solution IMAQ is considering.  On initial review, it 
appears to be a more expensive custom solution, so we did not pursue it further.   


There seems to be a consensus around the following general requirements:  


 Member Portal that is: 


o more user friendly for members (joining, renewing, updating information, paying fees, 
etc.)  


o easier for staff to use and maintain (e.g. creating and managing new member 
categories, designations, etc.; creating and managing events; payments, etc.) 


 ADR Connect interface and functionality needs to be improved for both members and the public. 


 Website(s) – ability to create and manage more dynamic public and member‐only websites. 


 Member Management System/Communications – ability to use system to communicate with 
members and manage groups (e.g. board, committees, affiliate members, etc.) and distribution 
lists for emails, newsletters, etc. [Note: must be CASL‐compliant.] 


 Cost – strong preference for lower cost solution, especially for affiliates with smaller 
membership base.  


 


BP11







Page 2 


 


Options Considered 


This is a very brief summary of the pros and cons of the options we have looked at. See comparison 
chart for more detailed responses to ADRIC questions.   


MemberNation 


The default option would be to stay with MemberNation.   


This is not a preferred option. It does not currently meet our needs. It is not user friendly for members 
and it is difficult for staff to maintain. There are many long‐term deficiencies (e.g. handling HST and sales 
taxes) which Fonteva has not been able to fix.)   


MemberNation will not fully integrate with other affiliate systems – and the affiliates are not interested 
in switching to this solution, given the problems with it to date.  


This would also require additional investment to add French capability (approx. $35,000) and significant 
ongoing costs for support and development of custom forms, etc.   


Wild Apricot 


In use today by Atlantic and Alberta.  They are generally happy with it.   


The main advantages are simplicity and low cost. It integrates with other products for website, 
payments, etc.  


This option would be more of a “do‐it‐yourself” approach. The software is very flexible but we would 
have to customize the implementation to meet our specific requirements.  


It would also require separate implementations for ADRIC and each affiliate, plus some additional work 
to allow each of the databases to communicate, handle billing and payment functions, etc.  (For 
example, separate ADRIC and affiliate databases would not allow single point of payment.)  


Scope of work and cost to do this has not been determined.  


IMIS 


Identified by staff as the option with the most features that meet our requirements.  It has the capability 
to manage multiple membership groups (i.e. ADRIC and affiliates) in a single integrated database.  It 
would also include all CMS functions, ADR Connect and websites.  


Widely used by other non‐profit organizations in Canada.  


FileMaker 


This option was identified by IMAQ.  GTI, the contractor IMAQ been working with, provided initial 
responses to our comparison questionnaire. They indicated they will need more information to cost out 
the project full, but from the information received so far, it appears that this is largely a custom solution. 
It could meet our requirements, but likely at a higher cost and with a greater implementation risk.   


 


BP12







Page 3 


Cost 


MemberNation 


Annual license fee and support costs are approx. $18,000.  


Estimated cost to have MemberNation do French version is approximately $35,000.   


There would also be ongoing costs for creating new forms ‐ $2,000 per form.  


IMIS 


Estimated cost to implement IMIS is $48,000.   


Ongoing costs would be about $18,000 for license and maintenance fees.   


There may be additional administrative user license fees and implementation fees, if and when 
additional affiliates elect to adopt this solution.  


If we pursue this option, we will need a more detailed breakdown of costs and project schedule. 


FileMaker 


Customized Member Management Solution and following web parts: Online Profile Management, 
Online Annual Renewal, Online Registration to activities (without participant's options), Online Payment 
and Member Directory 


The estimated implementation costs include: 


 Analysis = from $9,000 to $12,000 


 Realization of the solution = approximately between $60,000 to $75,000. This doesn’t include 
importation of existing data.  


GTI provided a Preliminary Budget but the project would have to be scoped in much more detail, if we 
choose to proceed with them.  They indicated they need more information to evaluate requirements for 
the Web Site and other tools (blog, forum, etc.),  


Wild Apricot 


This is the least expensive solution.  $270 per month ($3,300 annual) enterprise license fee (but it 
appears that we may need separate license and implementation for ADRIC and each affiliate that would 
want to use it – this needs to be investigated further).  


Implementation costs are unknown.  We would have to hire someone (full time or on contract) to do all 
the customization and implementation work.   


 


   


BP13







Page 4 


Recommendations 


1. Proceed with a decision to replace MemberNation in 2016. 


2. IMIS is the preferred technical option, based on the current assessment of the needs of 
members and staff.  The staff and some members of the committee recommend proceeding 
with IMIS,  however, some members of the committee strongly feel that it is too expensive for 
an organization our size and they recommend proceeding with Wild Apricot as a less expensive 
solution. 


3. Authorize staff and the committee to proceed with IMIS, subject to: 


a. Board approval of the overall budget (up to $70,000) and negotiation of final pricing, 
including all implementation and conversion costs; 


b. Due diligence to confirm it meets all requirements;  
(Note: responses to questions indicate “Yes” to many questions, but not clear whether 
all functions are standard or require some customization or implementation effort) 


c. References from other customers; 


d. Implementation schedule. 


4. Alternatively, authorize staff and the committee to further assess Wild Apricot, including scope, 
cost and timing of all required customization, conversion and implementation work.    


5. Confirm that ADRIO agrees with ADRIC’s decision and is willing to share costs. (There is an 
ADRIO board meeting Sept. 21 and the ADRIO representatives on this committee are prepared 
to recommend ADRIO participate in a joint solution with ADRIC.) 


6. Determine whether other affiliates want to adopt the same solution as well – whether IMIS or 
Wild Apricot – and determine costs.  
(Would ADRIC assist with the cost to deploy to smaller affiliates, if cost is an issue?) 


7. Final decision, including budget approval from ADRIC and all participating affiliates, is required 
by November 2015, in order to complete implementation and conversion by mid‐2016, in 
advance of the current October 2016 deadline to renew contract with Fonteva.  


BP14







Page 5 


Appendix 1 ‐‐ Requirements 


The following is a brief summary of the information we collected about the perceived deficiencies in 


the current system and requirements wish list for any new system.   We used this information to 


compare the various different products we looked at.   


 


ADRIC 


ADRIC has identified the following requirements which are not currently supported by MemberNation. 


 Needs to be fully functional in French as well as English 


 Form Creation 


 Mobile Ready (MN is not planning this enhancement) 


 CASL Compliant (No plans to implement) 


ADRIC also wants to improve ADR CONNECT.   (For example, we compared it to ADRWeb 
<http://www.adrweb.ca/index.php>), which has some features that ADR Connect does not.) 


 


Alberta 


Top five requirements identified earlier this year were: 


 a directory that is well used by the public and which comes up in search engines when people in 
our communities are looking for a practitioner 


 one member profile and one point of payment  


 reasonable cost  


 collection of personal contact information needs to comply with PIPA – Alberta’s Information 
Protection Act 


 if we were to combine databases, Alberta would need the ability to invoice for courses (not 
everyone can pay up front, or may need to submit an invoice for reimbursement) 


The main shortcomings of the existing system from a member perspective are: 


 the ADRIC database does not distinguish between personal and business information and has 
automatically published member information in a public online directory. Those without a 
business address need to have the option not to have their address included in the directory and 
yet still have it as part of their private contact information for ADRIC to use. 


 members are unclear which organization they are paying and what they are paying for. When 
they receive notice to renew their designations the labels in the system and email receipts are 
confusing (Designation Renewal is called “membership renewal” and the insurance declaration 
is under “Event Registration”. In January in particular, members are surprised to receive a 
membership renewal from ADRIC after having already paid ADRIA’s “membership renewal”.  


BP15







Page 6 


 one member reports being unable to access her ADRIC membership portal from her workplace. 
There are issues with both Internet Explorer and firewalls in her government office. 


 some members are unaware of the database and/or do not update their profile in ADR connect  


 


Atlantic 


Main issue is cost. Wild Apricot is inexpensive and has the functionality they need. Current total cost is 
$350 per year. 


They can use WordPress for the website and Cloud Accounting for managing money. 


Other issues include branding – it is annoying for Atlantic members to pay national fees through the 
member portal and when they receive their credit card statement the payment appears to have gone to 
ADRIO. (Note: this is due to MemberNation being able to handle only one merchant account and 
existing account at the time being in ADRIO’s name, so we were unable to change it.)  


 


Ontario 


Single integrated membership system for ADRIO and ADRIC, which handles membership renewals, 
designations, insurance, ethics and continuing education requirements, event registration, etc.  


Any system chosen should have a proven “ease of use” track record, with Canadian references. 


Improved functionality and user interface for ADR Connect. 


Shortcomings of the existing system include: 


 navigation functions ‐‐ often not clear what is national and what is regional or where to find a 
specific function (e.g. designation renewals through “events”) 


 Needs to be more user‐friendly (e.g. often unclear what fees have been charged, etc.)  


 


Saskatchewan 


The main issues were identified as:  


 Accessibility –Internet Explorer issues with the Member Portal. Any tool meant for broad 
member use should be accessible from any platform. 


 User Friendly – The current system is user friendly (partly related to the point raised above). 


 Members (and the public) should have easy search functionality to find practitioners based on 
general search criteria. The current platform is ridiculously specific and still doesn’t generate 
what members are looking for.  


 The application form for membership that is online is daunting.  


 Being able to pay online.  


 Being able to print receipts. 


BP16







Page 7 


 


IMAQ 


We did not receive a response to earlier emails, but IMAQ requirements are assumed to be reflected in 
the FileMaker information, as it was identified as a preferred solution for their needs.  


 


British Columbia 


No information to date.   Elton Simoes, VP of BCAMI, has advised that they are just beginning to look at 
their membership software needs and expect to have further information to report by the end of 
September.   


 


Additional Comments 


It has also been suggested by a member of the arbitration administration committee that the ADRIC 
roster database have the capability to:  


 Allow for Feedback on arbitrators 


 Have a "Star‐rating" system 


 Allow arbitrator to show their rates 


ADR Connect does not currently have those capabilities.  


 
 


 


BP17







ADRIC Advocacy Committee 


Statement of Purpose 


The purpose of the Advocacy Committee is to monitor the environment for opportunities to promote or protect the use of 
ADR, make recommendations to the Board of Directors, and implement approved plans of action which may include 
presentations or submissions by the committee to Government, the public or private sectors, media, communities or 
general public, etc.  


Reporting 


The committee reports to the Board at regular Board meetings or as needed. 


Composition  


The committee is made up of members with representation from the affiliates and corporate membership, and a Board 
member as Chair. The Chair will be appointed by the ADRIC Board of Directors. 
 
Members shall be appointed by the Board on the recommendation of the Committee Chair. 
 
Appointments to sub-committees of the Committee shall be named by the Committee unless otherwise stated in the 
subcommittee Terms of Reference. Subcommittee members may be drawn from outside of the Committee. 
 
Frequency of Meetings  
 
The Committee shall meet at least 4 times per year and more frequently if the committee decides such meetings are 
necessary.  
 
Budget 
tbd 


Blurb to Affiliates and Corporate Members: 


Announcing the new ADRIC Advocacy Committee! This new committee will work to advocate for increased awareness and 
use of ADR targeting both the public and private sector.  


The committee may be requested to: 


• work with affiliate Advocacy Committees  
• survey Boards and members to form a collective opinion 
• draft communications to lobby government or respond to articles, etc.,  in the media; 
• act quickly to take advantage of opportunities 
• represent ADRIC at advocacy oriented meetings or events 
• liaise with the Marketing & Membership Committee to: 


o launch an awareness campaign (social media, print media, other...),  
o draft an advocacy toolkit for use by members across Canada to help increase awareness of ADR and 


assist in their advocating for increased use of ADR;  
o plan and implement activities for annual October "Conflict Resolution Day" 


• develop a Speakers Bureau with guidelines and procedures 


Committee members should be passionate about ADR and be creative thinkers who can problem-solve and come up with 
new ways to raise awareness. 


BP18







Dear affiliates: 


In January 2013, ADR Institute of Canada's Executive Committee, lead by then- President Jim Musgrave, worked to 
develop some key questions for the Board's review at their  Strategic Planning meeting on February 22, 2013.  This was 
the beginning of the development of a comprehensive Strategic Plan, which the Board finalised and began implementing 
in January 2014. 


One of the most challenging initiatives given to the Marketing and Membership Committee ("M&MC") was to rebrand 
ADRIC with a fresh, new look.  ADRIC had heard many times from members and Directors that the colour red in our 
existing logo was not the appropriate colour to represent  ADR - they felt it should be a more calming colour.  


 


 


 


"stickman" logo 


Executive Director Janet McKay interviewed 6 design firms and shared their proposals with the M&MC Chairs, Jim 
McCartney and Bill Hartnett, who then selected two.  We asked the two firms to present some logo ideas based on 
information we provided about ADRIC and the image we wish to project.  The two firms submitted numerous logo ideas 
which the Chairs narrowed to 24 for presentation to the full committee and Board members for initial reaction.  The 
ADRIC Board is made up of Corporate Members and Representatives from each region, whose responsibility it is to act 
as a conduit with their regional Boards.  Acting on responses received, the Chairs narrowed the selection of logos to 14.  
After some research and comparison to other logos (ADR as well as other organisations) the M&MC Chairs and Executive 
Director met to discuss the logos at length.  It was decided to select three logos to present to the full M&MC for rating.  
The winning logo was then taken to the ADRIC Board which it approved October 2014: 


 


Trademark pending. 


(Some of those consulted thought the logo to be similar to IMI’s.  We have confirmed IMI has no objection and we will 
be entering into a co-existence agreement.) 


ADRIC has kept our affiliates in mind and proposes you consider adopting the logo with text appropriate to your affiliate: 
  


[insert affiliate logo]   


If your affiliate chooses to adopt the logo, ADRIC will have it created for you at no cost and will also provide a style guide 
and new MOU.  ADRIC will also provide a modified logo and guidelines for use by members of your affiliate for their 
websites and promotional material.  


[insert member logo]   


  


BP19







For those affiliates who choose to adopt this new logo, ADRIC will provide a one-time grant of up to $1,000 which you 
may use toward having your branding revised (website, letterhead, marketing materials, etc.). 


Affiliates preferring not to adopt this new logo will need to consider another logo design (at their own expense) as they 
will no longer be permitted to use ADRIC's "stickman" after September 2016. 


We will be unveiling our new logo on October 29th, at the ADRIC 2015: Big Sky; Big Ideas in ADR conference in Calgary 
and ask that you share the new logo only with your Board for their consideration. Please do not distribute it broadly to 
members until after it's unveiling at the conference. 


We hope you can be in Calgary for the conference and join in the festivities as we take a fresh step forward! 


 


Join us! 


 


Scott … 


BP20







September 18, 2009 


Ms. Heather Swartz 
President 
ADR Institute of Ontario 
405-234 Eglinton Ave.E. 
Toronto, ON M4P 1K5 


Re: License To Use Official Mark 


We refer to the License Agreement dated July 12, 1991 between The Arbitration and Mediation 
Institute of Canada Inc. (now the ADR Institute of Canada “ADRIC”) and The Arbitration and 
Mediation Institute of Ontario Inc. (now the ADR Institute of Ontario “ADRIO”), which grants 
ADRIO, as a regional affiliate of ADRIC, certain rights to use the official marks adopted by 
ADRIC, in particular the design known as the “STICKMAN” (Reg. No. G-C 902962) (the 
“Mark”). 


ADRIO has requested that the License Agreement be amended to permit ADRIO to authorize its 
members to use the Mark to indicate to the public their membership in ADRIO. 


We have agreed to amend the License Agreement to permit ADRIO members to use the Mark, 
only on the following conditions: 


1. The Mark may be used only by individuals who are members in good standing of 
ADRIO. 


2. The Mark must be reproduced in the form approved by ADRIC and ADRIO from time to 
time, including without limitation any size and colour specifications. 


3. The Mark may be used on the member’s business cards, letterhead, printed brochures, 
marketing materials and web site, solely to indicate membership in ADRIO.  It shall not 
be used in a manner to indicate any particular qualifications or expertise, or to imply an 
endorsement of the member by either ADRIO or ADRIC. 


4. The Mark shall be accompanied by the words “Member of the ADR Institute of Ontario”. 


5. There will be no fee for using the Mark, other than the usual ADRIO and ADRIC 
membership fees. 


6. The member must agree, in writing, to stop using the Mark and to remove it from all 
materials if he or she ceases to be a member of ADRIO for any reason. 


7. ADRIO and/or ADRIC may take appropriate action to enforce any of the terms and 
conditions of this amended License Agreement.  For greater certainty, ADRIC is at 
liberty to take such action, where it becomes aware that any person using the mark 
improperly or without authorization. 


BP21



mailto:admin@adrcanada.ca





With the written approval of ADRIC, ADRIO may impose additional conditions or restrictions 
on the use of the Mark, as it deems necessary. 


In all other respects the terms of the Licensing Agreement shall remain valid and enforceable.   


Please confirm your agreement with this amendment of the License Agreement by signing and 
returning this letter to us. 


 


Yours truly, 


 


 


President, 
ADR Institute of Canada 


 


I confirm my agreement with this amendment of the License Agreement as wt out in this letter 
dated xxxx. 


 


________________________________________________ 
Heather Swartz, President, ADR Institute of Ontario 


I have the authority to bind the corporation. 


Dated: __________________________________________ 
 


BP22







From minutes of the Aug 20 Executive meeting: 
 
Recommendation regarding Arbitration Deposit Money 
 
Glen Bell moved on behalf of the Arbitration Process Review Committee that deposits made to ADRIC 
towards arbitration fees and hearing expenses be held in a separate trust account.  Seconded by Thierry 
Bériault. Motion carried. 
 
President Scott Siemens thanked Mr. Bell and all members of the Committee for their work. 
 
There is a bit of an issue though on how this account is to be funded for service charges.  A suggestion 
might be to put some money into the account to cover service charges every month as we do not have a 
banking plan that allows transfers between accounts by online banking.  If Jeffrey prefers to do this by 
sending signed letters to the bank, invariably a cheque will bounce because of the length of time it takes 
to get directors to sign documents. 


BP23







 
ADR Institute of Canada National Dispute Resolution Training Program 


National 40 Hour Introductory Training Courses 
(Appendix A to Administration Policy) 


 
License Agreement 


Between: 
 
The ADR Institute of Canada Inc., Licensor,   
 


(herein referred to as “ADRIC”) 
and 


 
________________________________________, Licensee, 


 
(herein referred to as the “Service Provider”) 


1. Definitions 
 


1.1 “ADRIC” means the ADR Institute of Canada Inc.; 


1.2  “Agreement” means this Agreement;   


1.3  “Approved Trainer(s)” mean the persons approved by ADRIC to deliver Program Courses in 
accordance with paragraph 5 of the Administration Policy; and “Approved Coach(es)”mean the 
persons approved by ADRIC to assist Trainers in coaching students during role play exercises. 


1.4 “Arbitration Course” means the ADRIC National 40-Hour Introductory Arbitration Course which has 
been developed by and is owned by ADRIC and “Course” has a corresponding meaning;  


1.5 “Course Delivery Expenses” means the costs to arrange and deliver the Course including but not 
limited to costs for marketing, classrooms, refreshments, course materials, audio-visual aids, 
supplies, administrative support, registration, fee collection, and payment to Trainers and Coaches;  


1.6 “Course Fees” means the fees charged to students by the Service Provider for the Course;   


1.7  “License Fee” means the fee payable to ADRIC by the Service Provider for the license to deliver the 
Course;  


1.8 “Mediation Course” means the ADRIC National 40-Hour Introductory Mediation Training Course 
which has been developed by and is owned by ADRIC, and “Course” has a corresponding meaning; 


1.9  “Policy” means the ADRIC National Dispute Resolution Training Program Administration Policy;  


1.10 “Program” means the ADR Institute of Canada National  Dispute Resolution Training Program 
and its Program Courses which are owned by ADRIC, and established and administered in 
accordance with the Policy; 
 


BP24







1.11 “Region” or "Regional"  means any Regional Affiliate of ADRIC; 
 


1.12 “Service Provider” means the party who is the Licensee in this Agreement.  


1.13 “Student Training Materials” means the student materials for the Courses;  


1.14 “Student Training Materials Fee” means a fee to be charged by ADRIC to the Service Provider for 
the Student Training Materials; subject to change in accordance with section 9 of the Policy, the 
initial Student Training Materials Fee shall be $50 per student plus applicable taxes and shipping 
fees;  


1.15 “Trainer Orientation Materials” means the training materials developed by ADRIC for each 
Course, including materials, handouts, Power Points, Trainer Guidelines, and Procedural Documents;  


1.16 “Trainer Orientation Program” means an online Trainer Orientation Program ADRIC has 
developed for each Course.   


2. License Grant 


Subject to the terms of this Agreement, ADRIC hereby grants to the Service Provider a non-assignable, 
non-exclusive right and license, without right to sub-license, to present the Course and in presenting the 
Course to use ADRIC’s Course materials in the presentation of:  


___ The Mediation Course; or 


___The Arbitration Course  


for the Regional Affiliate: 


 ___________________________________________  


in the following location(s) only: 


 ___________________________________________ 


 ___________________________________________ 


 ___________________________________________ 


during the following time period only: 


 ___________________________________________  


3. ADRIC warrants and agrees: 
 


3.1 The Introductory Arbitration and Mediation Program Courses have been accredited in accordance 
with the ADRIC National Training Accreditation Program. 
  


BP25







3.2 Persons successfully completing the Course will be permitted to use that training towards the 
requirements for relevant ADRIC designations and/or, in some Regions, training hours required for 
membership. 


 
3.3 ADRIC will provide approved advertising templates to the Service Provider to assist the Service 


Provider with advertising the Course. The Service Provider, however, is responsible for its own 
advertising costs.   


 
3.4 ADRIC requests that the relevant Regional Affiliate circulate approved advertising for the Course to 


the Regional Affiliate’s members. 
 


3.5 Upon receipt of the License Fee, plus applicable taxes, and the items referred to in section 4.9, 
ADRIC will issue a Certificate of Completion to the Service Provider for distribution to each student 
who successfully completes the Course and has completed the online survey.  


 
4. The Service Provider understands and agrees: 


 
4.1. The Service Provider acknowledges and agrees that by entering into this Agreement, ADRIC is 


not transferring or assigning any if its ownership rights in the Courses or in any of ADRIC’s 
trademarks, materials or other intellectual property.   
 


4.2. The Service Provider is only authorized to deliver the Course in the Region and at the location(s) 
approved by this Agreement.  
 


4.3. The Service Provider will only deliver the Course using Approved Trainers and Approved 
Coaches.  
 


4.4. The Service Provider must make application, pay the relevant fees, and obtain approval for its 
Trainers and Coaches in accordance with Section  5 of the Policy. 
 


4.5. The Service Provider will ensure that Approved Trainer(s) and Approved Coach(es) deliver the 
Course in its entirety and substantially in the format provided. 
 


4.6. The Service Provider will use the Course content only for purposes of delivering the Course 
under this Agreement and for no other purpose. The Service Provider will ensure its Approved 
Trainer(s) and Approved Coach(es) use the Course content only for purposes of delivering the 
Course under this Agreement and for no other purpose.  
 


4.7. The Service Provider is responsible for all Course Delivery Expenses and is responsible for any 
and all taxes incurred in the marketing and delivery of the Course.  
 


4.8. The Service Provider shall pay to ADRIC a License Fee equal to twenty-five (25) percent of the 
gross course fees paid by students for the course, plus applicable taxes, with a minimum of $ 
600 per student, payable no later than 30 days after delivery of any Course; 
 


4.9. Along with payment of the License Fee, the Service Provider shall provide ADRIC with: 
 
a. a list of the names and contact information of all students who took the Course with the 


names of the students who completed the Course identified on the list; and  


BP26







 
b. on a form to be provided by ADRIC to the Service Provider for signature of each student, a 


permission form signed by each student authorizing ongoing contact between the student 
and ADRIC; 
  


c. on a form to be provided by ADRIC to the Service Provider, all completed course evaluation 
forms for the Course.  


 
5. Audit 


 
5.1 The Service Provider agrees to maintain accurate and adequate books and records regarding the 


performance of this Agreement during and for two (2) years beyond the Term of the Agreement. 
Upon ten (10) days’ written advance notice, ADRIC shall be entitled to audit and analyze the relevant 
books and records maintained by the Service Provider relating to the Service Provider’s performance 
of this Agreement. The audit shall be conducted at the Service Provider’s expense if the audit 
discloses an underpayment by the Service Provider in excess of five percent (5%). The Service 
Provider shall promptly reimburse ADRIC for any amount shown by such audit to be owed. Any audit 
will be conducted during the Service Provider’s normal business hours in such a manner as not to 
unreasonably interfere with the Service Provider’s normal activities. 
 


6. Quality Control  
 


6.1 To ensure proper delivery of the Course and quality control, ADRIC reserves the right to attend and 
audit all or any part of any Course presentation by the Service Provider. 


 
7. Student and Trainer Materials 


 
7.1 ADRIC will provide the Student Training Materials to the Service Provider and the Service Provider 


agrees to pay ADRIC the Student Training Materials Fee, plus applicable taxes, for each set of 
Student Training Materials.   
 


7.2 In advance of any Trainer Orientation Program, ADRIC will provide the Trainer Orientation Materials 
to any Approved Trainer or Approved Coach with the web link to the online Trainer Orientation 
Program and a copy of the appropriate student and instructor materials and guidelines. 


 
7.3 The Service Provider shall not copy, and shall ensure that each Approved Trainer and Approved 


Coach does not copy, the Student Training Materials or the Trainer Orientation Materials in any 
manner whatsoever.   
 


8. Course Fees 
 


8.1 ADRIC, after consultation with the Regions, may from time to time recommend Course Fees.   
 


8.2 ADRIC may, at its discretion, set a Course Fee. Any Service Provider wishing to offer the Course at a 
lower fee must obtain prior approval in writing from ADRIC. The Service Provider agrees that upon 
written notice from ADRIC of any change in the minimum Course Fee, the Service Provider will not 
charge less than the minimum Course Fee for presentation of any Course.  
 
 


BP27







 
9. Term and Termination: 


 
9.1 This Agreement shall be in effect as of  (today's date)_________________________ and shall 


remain in force through 30 days following course delivery)________________________ (the 
“Term”). 
 


9.2 Either party may terminate this Agreement in the event of a breach of the material terms and 
conditions of this Agreement by the other party, which breach is not remedied following thirty (30) 
days written notice of breach, without further notice or opportunity to cure.  


 
9.3 ADRIC shall have the right to immediately terminate this Agreement by giving written notice to the 


Service Provider in the event the Service Provider: 
 
a.  fails to obtain or maintain insurance in the amount and of the type provided for herein; 


 
b. files a petition in bankruptcy or is adjudicated bankrupt or insolvent, or makes an assignment for 


the benefit of creditors or an arrangement pursuant to any bankruptcy law, or if the Service 
Provider discontinues or dissolves its business, or if a receiver is appointed for the Service 
Provider and such receiver is not discharged within thirty (30) days. 


 
9.4 Upon termination or expiration of this Agreement for any reason, all rights and licenses granted to 


the Service Provider by ADRIC shall revert to ADRIC, and the Service Provider shall forthwith cease 
use of ADRIC’s Course and any trademarks, materials or other intellectual property belonging to 
ADRIC, and return to ADRIC, within 30 days, all copies, in any form or media now in effect or 
hereafter devised, of any Course material including but not limited to advertising templates, student 
materials, and trainer materials.  
 


9.5 If a dispute arises between the parties relating to this agreement, the parties agree to use the 
following procedure as a condition precedent to either party pursuing other available remedies: 


 
a. A meeting shall be held promptly between the parties, attended by individuals with decision-


making authority regarding the dispute, to attempt in good faith to negotiate a resolution of the 
dispute. 
 


b. If, within fifteen (15) calendar days after such meeting (the “Negotiation Period”), the parties 
have not succeeded in negotiating a resolution of the dispute, they agree to submit the dispute 
to mediation and to bear equally the costs of the mediation. 
 


c.  The parties will jointly appoint a mutually acceptable mediator. If they have been unable to 
agree upon such appointment within fifteen (15) calendar days from the conclusion of the 
Negotiation Period, then they will seek the assistance of the President of 
______________________________ [a Region other than the Region in which the Course is 
being presented] in selecting a mediator and if they are unable to agree on a mediator, then 
said President shall appoint a mediator. 
 


d. The parties agree to participate in good faith in the mediation and negotiations related thereto 
for a period of thirty (30) calendar days. If the parties are not successful in resolving the dispute 
through mediation, then the parties agree that the dispute shall be settled by arbitration by a 


BP28







single arbitrator in accordance with The Arbitration Act of Ontario. The decision of the arbitrator 
shall be final and binding and shall not be subject to appeal on a question of fact, law or mixed 
fact and law.  
 


e. If the parties are unable to agree on the single arbitrator, then the President of 
___________________________________ [a Region other than the Region in which the Course 
is being presented] shall appoint the arbitrator.  
 
10. Warranties and Representations:  


 
10.1 Each party warrants and represents that it has full authority to execute this Agreement and that 


nothing prevents it from complying with all the provisions stipulated herein. 
 


10.2 ADRIC warrants and represents that it is the owner and holder of the Course and the intellectual 
property with respect to the Course. 
 


10.3 The Service Provider represents and warrants that it has (and will maintain) the financial 
resources, personnel and business operation that will enable it to adhere to the highest 
performance and quality standards of ADRIC (as solely determined by ADRIC) in its use of ADRIC’s 
Course.  


 
11. Indemnity and Insurance 


 
11.1 The Service Provider agrees to indemnify, defend and hold ADRIC and its members, officers, 


directors, affiliates, and employees harmless from any and all third party claims, demands, costs, 
liabilities, losses, expenses and damages (including attorneys’ fees, costs, and expert witnesses’ 
fees) arising out of or in connection with any third-party claim that, taking the claimant’s allegations 
to be true would result in a breach by the Service Provider of any of its warranties and covenants in 
this Agreement; arises from or relates to the conduct of any of the Approved Trainers or Approved 
Coaches or staff used by the Service Provider in connection with marketing and delivery of the 
Courses. 
 


11.2 ADRIC agrees to indemnify, defend and hold the Service Provider and its members, officers, 
directors and employees harmless from any and all third party claims, demands, costs, liabilities, 
losses, expenses and damages (including attorneys’ fees, costs and expert witnesses’ fees) arising 
out of or in connection with any claim that, taking the claimant’s allegations to be true, would result 
in a breach by ADRIC of any of its warranties and covenants in this Agreement. 


 
11.3 If a Regional Affiliate is the Service Provider, the Regional Affiliate agrees to maintain 


professional liability insurance and directors’ and officers’ insurance. Every other Service Provider 
agrees to maintain professional liability insurance, and if the Service Provider is an organization, 
corporation or other entity with directors and officers, to maintain directors’ and officers’ insurance. 
The Service Provider shall ensure that the facility at which the course is being taught maintains 
general liability insurance. The current limits of such policies shall be to an aggregate of at least $1 
million. Each party shall provide evidence thereof at the other party’s request. 


 


 


BP29







 


 12. Relationship of Parties 


12.1 Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to constitute, create, give effect to or otherwise 
recognize a franchise, partnership, joint venture or formal business entity of any kind and the rights 
and obligations of the parties shall be limited to those expressly set forth herein.  


 13. General  


13.1 Survival of Rights, Duties and Obligations - Termination or expiration of this Agreement for any 
reason shall not release either party from any liability which, at the time of termination or 
expiration, has already accrued to the other party or which thereafter may accrue in respect of any 
act or omission prior to termination or expiration, or from any obligation which is expressly stated 
to survive termination or expiration. 


13.2 Modification of Agreement - No oral explanation or oral information by either of the parties shall 
alter the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement.  No amendment, modification or change 
shall be effective or binding on either of the parties unless set forth in writing and executed by the 
respective duly authorized representatives of each of the parties. 


13.3 Severability - Any provision of this Agreement which is restricted, prohibited or unenforceable in 
any jurisdiction shall, as to such jurisdiction, be ineffective to only the extent of such restriction, 
prohibition or unenforceability without invalidating the remaining provisions of this Agreement or 
affecting the validity or enforceability of such provision in any other jurisdiction. 


13.4 Entire Agreement - This Agreement sets forth the complete and entire understanding of the parties 
regarding the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior agreements, understandings or 
representations, whether oral or written, express or implied, between the parties, relative to the 
subject matter hereof. For assistance in interpretation of this Agreement, the parties may have 
regard to the Policy.  


13.5 Binding Agreement - This Agreement shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the parties and 
their respective successors and permitted assigns. 


13.7 Assignment and Sub-Licensing - This Agreement, and all rights and obligations hereunder, may not 
be assigned or sublicensed in whole or in part by the Service Provider without the prior written 
consent of ADRIC, which may be granted or withheld in its sole discretion. 


13.8 Non-Waiver - The waiver, by either party hereto of any right hereunder, or of any failure to 
perform or breach by the other party, must be in writing and signed by the party to be bound and 
shall not constitute or be deemed a waiver of any other right. 


13.9 Competent Courts and Governing Law - The parties hereto expressly submit themselves to the non-
exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of the Province of Ontario. This Agreement shall be governed by 
and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the Province of Ontario and the laws of Canada 
applicable therein. 


13.10 Notices - All notices required or permitted to be given shall be in writing and shall be valid and 
sufficient if sent by fax, email or postage prepaid, return receipt requested, in any post office in 
Canada, as the case may be, addressed as follows: 


 


BP30







 
 
If to ADRIC:  


ADR Institute of Canada Inc.  
405-234 Eglinton Avenue East 
Toronto, Ontario, Canada, M4P 1K5 
Attention:  Executive Director 
Fax:  416-487-4429 
Email: training@adrcanada.ca 
 


If to the Service Provider:  
Name: _____________________________________ 
Address:_____________________________________________
____________________________________________________
_________________________ 
Attention:___________________________________   
Fax:_______________________________________ 
Email: _____________________________________ 


 
Each party may change its address by a notice given to the other party in the manner set forth 
above.  Notice given by fax or email shall be considered to be given on the day after the fax or 
email is sent. Notice given by mail shall be considered to have been given ten (10) days after the 
mailing thereof. 
 


13.11 Force Majeure - Neither party shall be liable or deemed to be in default for any delay or failure 
in performance of any obligation under this Agreement or interruption of service resulting directly 
or indirectly from any cause beyond the control of such party, other than lack of financial 
resources.  The party claiming such force majeure shall give timely notice to the other party and 
shall use due diligence to remedy the situation.  Such force majeure shall not relieve the non-
performing party of liability in the event of its concurrent negligence, in the event of its failure to 
use due diligence to remove the cause of the force majeure in an adequate manner and with all 
reasonable dispatch, or in the event such default or delay could have been prevented by 
reasonable precautions or could have been circumvented by the non-performing party through the 
use of alternative sources, workaround plans or other means.   


IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed by their duly 
authorized representatives on (date) ________________________. 
 


ADR Institute of Canada Inc.    Service Provider 
 


Per: _________________________   Per:__________________________ 


 


BP31







DRAFT COPY FOR D
ISCUSSIO


N PURPOSES O
NLY


ADR INSTITUTE OF CANADA, INC.


FINANCIAL STATEMENTS


FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014


CONTENTS


Auditors' Report


Balance Sheet


Statement of Members' Equity


Statement of Revenue and Expenditure


Statement of Cash Flow


Notes to Financial Statements


  


BP32







DRAFT COPY FOR D
ISCUSSIO


N PURPOSES O
NLYINDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT


To the Members:


Report on the Financial Statements


We have audited the accompanying financial statements of ADR Institute of Canada, Inc. which
comprise the balance sheet as at December 31, 2014 and the statements of members’ equity, revenue
and expenditure and cash flow for  the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.


Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements


Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.


Auditor’s Responsibility


Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.  We
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.  Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.


An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of these financial statements.


We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.


Opinion


In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the balance sheet of
ADR Institute of Canada, Inc. as at December 31, 2014, and its financial performance for the year then
ended in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations.


Smiths Falls, Ontario Chartered Professional Accountants
date of approval Licensed Public Accountants


- 1 -


BP33







DRAFT COPY FOR D
ISCUSSIO


N PURPOSES O
NLY


ADR INSTITUTE OF CANADA, INC.


BALANCE SHEET


AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2014
2014    2013    


ASSETS


CURRENT


Cash $ 252,202 $ 170,059 
Investments 59,549 341,329 
Accounts receivable 75,962 16,254 
Accounts receivable - government 47,270 24,889 
Accounts receivable - interest 503 3,523 
Prepaid expense 6,044 5,979 


441,530 562,033 


CAPITAL - at cost  (note 2)


Furniture and equipment 21,361 20,990 
Website 23,575 23,575 


44,936 44,565 
Less accumulated amortization 37,096 28,447 


7,840 16,118 


$ 449,370 $ 578,151 


LIABILITIES


CURRENT


Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $   34,211 $ 142,628 
Deferred revenue 15,386 10,992 


49,597 153,620 


MEMBERS' EQUITY


Balance, end of year 399,773 424,531 


$ 449,370 $ 578,151 


APPROVED ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD:


Director


Director


The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.


- 2 -


BP34







DRAFT COPY FOR D
ISCUSSIO


N PURPOSES O
NLY


ADR INSTITUTE OF CANADA, INC.


STATEMENT OF MEMBERS' EQUITY


FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014
2014    2013    


Balance, beginning of year $ 424,531 $ 400,054 
Net (loss) revenue for the year (24,758) 24,477 


Balance, end of year $ 399,773 $  424,531 


The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.


- 3 -


BP35







DRAFT COPY FOR D
ISCUSSIO


N PURPOSES O
NLY


ADR INSTITUTE OF CANADA, INC.


STATEMENT OF REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE


FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014
2014    2013    


REVENUE
Membership fees


Affiliates $ 149,450 $ 144,408 
Chartered Arbitrators and Chartered Mediators 105,581 88,899 
Corporate 15,500 13,000 


Correspondence course fees 23,075 16,245 
Handbook revenue 4,431 15,537 
Other income 9,786 13,316 
Administration fee 59,903 47,679 
Special projects 146,401 199,325 
Interest 3,268 4,073 


517,395 542,482 
EXPENSE


Governance
Audit 3,600 3,500 
Board, Committee and annual meeting 51,224 31,323 


54,824 34,823 


Administration
Accounting and legal 13,166 15,652 
Bad debts 189 1,048 
Management fees 88,265 129,640 
Office 3,092 13,090 
Wages and employee benefits 114,588 56,596 
Insurance 6,869 2,212 
Rent 22,277 18,199 
Telecommunications 35,603 13,036 
Amortization  (note 2) 8,649 8,469 
Bank charges 6,960 6,011 


299,658 263,953 


Program
Marketing and communication 8,464 20,569 
Printing and publications 33,879 23,544 
Correspondence course 5,324 6,253 
Special projects 140,004 168,863 


187,671 219,229 
542,153 518,005 


NET (LOSS) REVENUE $  (24,758) $   24,477 


The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.


- 4 -


BP36







DRAFT COPY FOR D
ISCUSSIO


N PURPOSES O
NLY


ADR INSTITUTE OF CANADA, INC.


STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW


FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014
2014    2013    


OPERATING ACTIVITIES


Net (loss) revenue $  (24,758) $    24,477
Charges to operations not affecting working capital:


Amortization 8,649 8,469


(16,109) 32,946
Net changes in non-cash working capital * (183,157) 1,450


NET CASH FROM (USED IN) OPERATIONS (199,266) 34,396


FINANCING AND INVESTING ACTIVITIES


Purchase of capital assets (371) -   


NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH (199,637) 34,396


CASH AND EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 511,388 476,992


CASH AND EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $ 311,751 $  511,388


* Consisting of changes in accounts receivable, prepaid expenses, accounts payable and accrued liabilities and
deferred revenue.


Cash and equivalents is represented by cash and short term investments.


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.


- 5 -


BP37







DRAFT COPY FOR D
ISCUSSIO


N PURPOSES O
NLY


ADR INSTITUTE OF CANADA, INC.


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS


FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014


1. PURPOSE


The ADR Institute of Canada, Inc. is incorporated without share capital, as a not-for-profit organization
within the meaning of the Income Tax Act, and is exempt from income taxes. Their mission is to establish
and maintain standards with respect to the training, education and conduct of arbitrators, mediators, and
other dispute resolution practitioners.  ADR Institute of Canada, Inc. with the assistance of its provincial
institutes, is working to facilitate training in Canada, coordinate the growth and development of Alternative
Dispute Resolution ("ADR") and promoting the use of ADR across Canada.


2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES


These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-
for-profit organizations.


Basis of accounting


Revenue and expenditures are recorded on the accrual basis whereby they are reflected in the 
accounts in the period in which they are earned and incurred respectively, whether or not such
transactions have been finally settled by the receipt or payment of money.


Revenue recognition


The organization follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions.  Unrestricted contributions
are recognized as revenue when received or receivable if the amount to be received can be reasonably
estimated and collection is reasonably assured.


Membership fees are derived from members on the calendar year basis.  Correspondence course fees,
handbook revenue, administration fees and special projects are derived from billings when the product or
service is delivered.


Amortization


The organization amortizes its capital assets on the straight line method over 4, 5 and 10 years.


Use of estimates


The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, revenues and expenditures and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities.  Actual
results could differ from those estimates.


- 6 -


BP38







DRAFT COPY FOR D
ISCUSSIO


N PURPOSES O
NLY


ADR INSTITUTE OF CANADA, INC.


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS


FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014


3. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS


The organization’s financial instruments consist of cash, accounts receivable and accounts payable and
accrued liabilities.  The carrying amounts reported on the balance sheet for these financial instruments
approximate fair market values due to their immediate or short-term maturities.  Unless otherwise noted,
it is management’s opinion that the organization is not subject to significant interest rate risk and credit
risk arising from these financial statements.


There is no foreign currency risk.


The liquidity risk is constantly monitored through current and future cash flows and financial liability
maturities.


The organization’s exposure to and management of risk has not changed materially from December 31,
2013.


- 7 -


BP39





		02Minutes2015_06_18BoardDraft

		ADR Institute of Canada

		Present as indicated:  X; meetings missed ( )

		Executive:

		X Glen Bell   X Thierry Bériault  X Derek Lloyd   (1) Jim Musgrave  X Scott Siemens

		(1) Jeffrey Smith

		Directors:

		X Stephen Antle  (2) Randy Bundus  X Andy Butt   (4) Mary Comeau

		X Michael Erdle   X Bill Hartnett   X Jim McCartney  X David McCutcheon

		X Louise Novinger Grant X Chuck Smith   X Jennifer Schulz  (2) Anne Wallace

		Staff:

		X Janet McKay (Secretary)



		06Minutes2015_08_20ExecDraft2

		ADR Institute of Canada

		August 20, 2015

		Present as indicated:  X; meetings missed ( )

		Executive:

		X Glen Bell   X Thierry Bériault  X Derek Lloyd   (1) Jim Musgrave  X Scott Siemens

		X Jeffrey Smith

		Staff:

		X Janet McKay (Secretary)



		08 -2015 CRM-Comparison-ChartV6print

		08Membership System Recommendations - 2015 09 10

		11ADRIC Advocacy CommitteeV3

		12Letter to Affiliates re New ADRIC brandV2

		12Stickman use by affiliates Sept

		1. The Mark may be used only by individuals who are members in good standing of ADRIO.

		2. The Mark must be reproduced in the form approved by ADRIC and ADRIO from time to time, including without limitation any size and colour specifications.

		3. The Mark may be used on the member’s business cards, letterhead, printed brochures, marketing materials and web site, solely to indicate membership in ADRIO.  It shall not be used in a manner to indicate any particular qualifications or expertise, or to imply an endorsement of the member by either ADRIO or ADRIC.

		4. The Mark shall be accompanied by the words “Member of the ADR Institute of Ontario”.

		5. There will be no fee for using the Mark, other than the usual ADRIO and ADRIC membership fees.

		6. The member must agree, in writing, to stop using the Mark and to remove it from all materials if he or she ceases to be a member of ADRIO for any reason.

		7. ADRIO and/or ADRIC may take appropriate action to enforce any of the terms and conditions of this amended License Agreement.  For greater certainty, ADRIC is at liberty to take such action, where it becomes aware that any person using the mark improperly or without authorization.

		With the written approval of ADRIC, ADRIO may impose additional conditions or restrictions on the use of the Mark, as it deems necessary.

		In all other respects the terms of the Licensing Agreement shall remain valid and enforceable.  

		Please confirm your agreement with this amendment of the License Agreement by signing and returning this letter to us.

		Yours truly,

		President,ADR Institute of Canada

		I confirm my agreement with this amendment of the License Agreement as wt out in this letter dated xxxx.

		________________________________________________Heather Swartz, President, ADR Institute of Ontario

		I have the authority to bind the corporation.

		Dated: __________________________________________



		14From minutes of the Aug 20 Executive meeting

		14License Agreement_BGAug19V1

		13.1 Survival of Rights, Duties and Obligations - Termination or expiration of this Agreement for any reason shall not release either party from any liability which, at the time of termination or expiration, has already accrued to the other party or w...

		13.2 Modification of Agreement - No oral explanation or oral information by either of the parties shall alter the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement.  No amendment, modification or change shall be effective or binding on either of the parties...

		13.3 Severability - Any provision of this Agreement which is restricted, prohibited or unenforceable in any jurisdiction shall, as to such jurisdiction, be ineffective to only the extent of such restriction, prohibition or unenforceability without inv...

		13.4 Entire Agreement - This Agreement sets forth the complete and entire understanding of the parties regarding the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior agreements, understandings or representations, whether oral or written, express or impl...

		13.5 Binding Agreement - This Agreement shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

		13.7 Assignment and Sub-Licensing - This Agreement, and all rights and obligations hereunder, may not be assigned or sublicensed in whole or in part by the Service Provider without the prior written consent of ADRIC, which may be granted or withheld i...

		13.8 Non-Waiver - The waiver, by either party hereto of any right hereunder, or of any failure to perform or breach by the other party, must be in writing and signed by the party to be bound and shall not constitute or be deemed a waiver of any other ...

		13.9 Competent Courts and Governing Law - The parties hereto expressly submit themselves to the non-exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of the Province of Ontario. This Agreement shall be governed by and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the...

		13.10 Notices - All notices required or permitted to be given shall be in writing and shall be valid and sufficient if sent by fax, email or postage prepaid, return receipt requested, in any post office in Canada, as the case may be, addressed as foll...

		13.11 UForce Majeure - UNeither party shall be liable or deemed to be in default for any delay or failure in performance of any obligation under this Agreement or interruption of service resulting directly or indirectly from any cause beyond the contr...





		06Minutes2015_08_20ExecDraft2.pdf

		ADR Institute of Canada

		August 20, 2015

		Present as indicated:  X; meetings missed ( )

		Executive:

		X Glen Bell   X Thierry Bériault  X Derek Lloyd   (1) Jim Musgrave  X Scott Siemens

		X Jeffrey Smith

		Staff:

		X Janet McKay (Secretary)












ADRIA STRATEGIC PLANNING SESSION SEPT 17 and 18 2015 BACKGROUND                    4.1.3 


BOARD POLICY ON STRATEGIC PLANNING  


Board Policy (Section 2: Strategic Planning ) outlines that the ADRIA Board works according to a 


“planning cycle” . The “Foundation” is the Vision, Mission, Values.   ADRIA’s “blueprint” is the 


constitution, bylaws, strategic plan, operational plan and the budget and the “Framework” as Board 


and Staff Policies and Procedures. 


In “building” a plan policy outlines the following key areas to consider: 


 Historical Picture: How did we start and where have we been? 


 Owner Survey: What products and services do the members want?  


 Environmental Scan: What external forces affect us? (Economic, Political, Technological,etc)  


 Organizational Assessment: What internal strengths and weaknesses affect us 


 Section 5:  Governing Style states:  As an individual each director will . . . Ensure there is a strategic 


plan for the organization and expect that there is an Operational plan in place written for Operations by 


staff 


The BOARD CALENDAR adopted by the Board earmarks Strategic Planning for Sept-November  


STATUS OF THE STRATEGIC PLAN – WHERE ARE WE AT?  


 The first ADRIA strategic plan was approved by the Board January 12, 2012.   The Values, Mission 


and strategic directions have remained essentially the same with work underway to update the 


plan as follows:   


 Final review of agreed upon Vision – either “ No Albertan Fears Conflict”  or  “ Albertan’s 


Fearlessly Resolve Conflict”  


 Review the Mission Statement to ensure compatibility with the new Vision 


 Confirm\Priorize the strategies to achieve the strategic directions (Board input has been 


collected) Note:  The assumption is that the 4 Strategic Directions do not require change. 


 Develop success indicators ( Board members have been asked to input) 


 While a current operational plan is not in place, the ED has been using the Strategic Plan 


as key reference in overseeing ADRIA initiatives.   


 The Board has not yet discussed specific Board initiatives they may wish to undertake to 


operationalize the plan. Present Board led initiatives include:   


 A Mediation Advocacy Task Force examining Mediator Compensation\Pro bono work. 


 Participating in the National ADR Presidents Round Table  


 Participation in the National MOU Task Force.   








1


2


3


4


5


K L M N O P Q R
APPLICATION SalesForce


Supplier Fonteva - MemberNation Amplify in1To
uch


Exware Wild Apricot – Enterprise plan 
added by Jennifer @ ADRIA


iMIS 100 FileMaker (FM) 


Red text = Updated 2015 Pixelera Ola 
Tech 
Corp


AMS AIS GTI


Number of Users 
(staff/admin)


As many as you would like - no 
limits. MemberNation is priced on a 
per user basis 5 current limit


Unlimted Yes, we have 
Super 
Admins (see 
all modules) 
and Limited 
Admins (see 
only the 
modules you 
want them to 
see/access. 
However, all 
staff at this 
level 
see/access 
the same 
modules)


25 – can assign different levels of 
access (administrator, view only, 
page only, etc)


iMIS EMS is capable of having unlimited users with 
different security access for 
staff/admin/volunteers etc.  ADR has been quoted 
for 5 staff users and additional users can be added 
at any time. 


No limitation… must buy FileMaker 
Pro licence for each user.


Number of Member 
users


As many as you would like - no 
limits. 2,000 current limit


Unlimited There are no 
limits on the 
number of 
member 
types or 
number of 
members.


15000 IMSI has the ability to have unlimited member 
users.  Database is licensed in blocks of 25,000.  
The minimum 2,5000 user block has been quoted.


No limitation… 







1


2


3


K L M N O P Q R
APPLICATION SalesForce


Supplier Fonteva - MemberNation Amplify in1To
uch


Exware Wild Apricot – Enterprise plan 
added by Jennifer @ ADRIA


iMIS 100 FileMaker (FM) 


Red text = Updated 2015 Pixelera Ola 
Tech 
Corp


AMS AIS GTI


6


7


24x7 access? Absolutely Yes Yes. Y – web-based software can be 
accessed by any administrator from 
any computer at anytime


YES. The IMIS System will be available 24x7x365, 
except for regularly scheduled maintenance.  All 
Canadian iMIS subscription clients are hosted in 
our data centre located in Toronto, ON, thus 
avoiding any issues or concerns related to the 
privacy of personal, confidential information that 
may be compromised if stored on servers located 
outside of Canada.   ASI’s data centre is located at 
Q9 Networks (www.q9.com) in downtown 
Toronto with 24/7 secured access.  Q9 is widely 
considered to be Canada’s #1 data centre service 
provider.


Solution will be hosted in hosting 
center, so, yes solution can be 
accessed any time, except for 
periodic maintenance (each month 
or three (3) months, depending of 
volume of data).


Concerning GTI support, we are 
available, Monday thru Friday, from 
9AM to 5PM. GTI can also offer a 
service of Emergency Technical 
Support:
‐ Monday thru Friday, until 10PM
‐ Saturday and Sunday, from 10AM to 
6PM


Monday thru Friday, GTA has also 
Preventive Morning Surveillance, 
from 6:30AM.


territory-based control? Yes with custom work Yes Y I believe you 
are referring 
to allowing 
Regions/Affili
ates to have 
their own 
website on 
the system. 
Yes. Cost = 
$4500/site 
added.


Multi-chapter pricing gives 10% 
discount.: Create a template site for 
all chapters to use, WA creates as 
many clones as needed for regions, 
then each account is separate and 
customized by the region


YES.  iMIS EMS has the ability to define 
chapters/branches, and basic system access can 
be controled by region. Depending on the 
intended use, the default security/user model may 
have to be refined.


We suggest to have specific solution 
for each province, with function to 
transfer members to the "National" 
version.







1


2


3


K L M N O P Q R
APPLICATION SalesForce


Supplier Fonteva - MemberNation Amplify in1To
uch


Exware Wild Apricot – Enterprise plan 
added by Jennifer @ ADRIA


iMIS 100 FileMaker (FM) 


Red text = Updated 2015 Pixelera Ola 
Tech 
Corp


AMS AIS GTI


8


9


customizablefields? Yes, as many as you like For 
members
hip 
applicatio
n and 
renewal 
forms 
only.


Y We set-up 
the system 
with 
whatever 
fields you 
collect on 
your 
members.


YES YES.   iMIS 20, allows you unlimited options to 
customize data fields, navigation, menus, screens, 
and processes to create a system that is as unique 
as your organization


Possible, for "power user" with 
required training.


customizable workflow 
configurability?


Yes, this is where we really 
differentiate versus our competition 


Will 
require 
customiz
ation - 
subject 
to 
applicabl
e fees.  
Will need 
ADR to 
define 
what is 
meant by 
workflow 
configura
bility.


Y Not sure 
what this 
means???


What does ADRIC want to be able 
to do here?


YES ‐ iMIS has configurable workflow capability.  
Clients can tailor the user experience, automate 
workflow, and integrate to external applications. 
Depending on the nature of the configuration, 
optional modules may be required.


Must be programed, in collaboration 
with GTI.







1


2


3


K L M N O P Q R
APPLICATION SalesForce


Supplier Fonteva - MemberNation Amplify in1To
uch


Exware Wild Apricot – Enterprise plan 
added by Jennifer @ ADRIA


iMIS 100 FileMaker (FM) 


Red text = Updated 2015 Pixelera Ola 
Tech 
Corp


AMS AIS GTI


10


CRM component 
tracking e-mails, 
communication, event 
attendance , ongoing 
education etc of a 
member?


Yes Only with outisde add on Yes There is an 
email log. 
You can 
track event 
registrations 
but they 
system 
doesn’t know 
who actually 
attended until 
admin 
updates the 
roster after 
the event.  
Continue Ed 
Modules can 
be added. It 
would be 
additional.


YES – appears in each member's 
profile (events they have attended, 
emails sent to them and whether 
they have been received and 
opened, invoices etc)


YES ‐ iMIS EMS has the most robust set of tools, 
the largest library of add‐on applications (more 
than 100 specifically developed for iMIS), a 
dynamic developer’s community, and the widest 
partner network available. With iMIS 20, you have 
unlimited options to customize data fields, 
navigation, menus, screens, and processes to 
create a system that is as unique as your 
organization.  With modues such as iEmail (email 
communications), Informz (marketing & 
communications), Event Management, 
Professional Educations of members and so much 
more, IMIS EMS is one system that combines all 
the features to make any Association successful.  
Please see iMIS20 Features Guide for all modules.  
Please note, an additonal cost may be required for 
specific modules.


We have a module to create 
"group/event", where it's possible to 
add/remove contacts; this module 
includes print list, labels, etc. and 
function to export list of emails. For 
emails, see item #20.







1


2


3


K L M N O P Q R
APPLICATION SalesForce


Supplier Fonteva - MemberNation Amplify in1To
uch


Exware Wild Apricot – Enterprise plan 
added by Jennifer @ ADRIA


iMIS 100 FileMaker (FM) 


Red text = Updated 2015 Pixelera Ola 
Tech 
Corp


AMS AIS GTI


11


List 4 Canadian 
organizations using 
your product


You will be the first MemberNation 
customer in Canada. Salesforce 
has thousands of Canadian clients 
and hundreds of associations using 
Salesforce


1.  
Greater 
Toronto 
Electrical 
Contract
ors 
Associati
on            
2.  
Canadia
n 
Nuclear 
Associati
on            
3. Air 
Transpor
tation 
Associati
on of 
Canada    
4. 
Council 
of 
Canadia
n 
Administ
rative 
Tribunals


45 
custo
mers 
Worl
dwide


Canadian 
Country 
Music 
Association 
(www.ccma.
org), The 
Canadian 
Society of 
Transplantati
on (www.cst-
transplant.ca
),  The Real 
Estate 
Institute of 
BC 
(www.reibc.o
rg),  Quebec 
Insurance 
Brokers 
Association 
(www.rccaq.
com) - see 
more at: 
http://www.ex
ware.com/de
sign.html


North Toronto Ski Club ( ntsc.ca ), 
Canadian Communication 
Association ( www.acc-cca.ca ( 
(customized by Merge Creative), 
ADRIA, and an American site: the 
Greater New York Chapter of ACR ( 
acrgny.org )


Girl Guides of Canada, Canadian Bar Association, 
Advocacy Society, CPA British Columbia.    Please 
visit our website www.advsol.com for additional 
references


 ‐ Association des chirurgiens‐
dentistes du Québec
 ‐ Regroupement provincial des 
comités des usagers
 ‐ Association du personnel 
d’encadrement du réseau de la 
santé et des services sociaux
 ‐ Bell Canada ‐ GTI has developed 
many systems for Bell Canada; 
particular one to manage Co‐op 
Program for Bell dealers







1


2


3


K L M N O P Q R
APPLICATION SalesForce


Supplier Fonteva - MemberNation Amplify in1To
uch


Exware Wild Apricot – Enterprise plan 
added by Jennifer @ ADRIA


iMIS 100 FileMaker (FM) 


Red text = Updated 2015 Pixelera Ola 
Tech 
Corp


AMS AIS GTI


12


bandwidth 
requirements? data 
housing and backups?


Unlimited, everything is in the public 
cloud (Salesforce)


We 
provide 
three 
hosting 
plans 
dependin
g on your 
requirem
ents.  All 
include 
backups.  
All 
hosting 
is 
provided 
through 
Canadia
n Server 
farms.


$1000 
per 
month 
hostin
g


Support & 
Hosting is 
$125/month 
on shared 
server. 
Backs-up are 
done nightly. 
Data storage 
is 1GB free 
and 
$40/month 
for each 
additional 
GB. 
Bandwidth in 
terms of 
GB/month is:
• 0-10 $0
• 10-20 $10
• 20-40 $30
• 40-100 $70
• 100-200 
$150$100 
per additional 
100 GB 
thereafter. 


1600MB Limit YES ‐ Please refer to Page 36 of the iMIS Proposal.  
ASI’s data centre is located at Q9 Networks 
(www.q9.com) in downtown Toronto.  Q9 is 
widely considered to be Canada’s #1 data centre 
service provider.


Depending  number of users: for 10 
to 20 users, we recomand 10Mb for 
dowload and 10Mb for upload. 
Server are located in Hosting Center 
(Netelligent) ; backup are done each 
day, in another location.







1


2


3


K L M N O P Q R
APPLICATION SalesForce


Supplier Fonteva - MemberNation Amplify in1To
uch


Exware Wild Apricot – Enterprise plan 
added by Jennifer @ ADRIA


iMIS 100 FileMaker (FM) 


Red text = Updated 2015 Pixelera Ola 
Tech 
Corp


AMS AIS GTI


13


14


15


16


17


18


Bilingual 
English/French?


ADR will 
be 
responsi
ble for 
providing 
all 
necessar
y French 
translatio
ns for 
system 
generate
d 
message
s


Y Yes. Have to create own French content 
– can add toggle to top of the page 
to switch between English and 
French pages


YES ‐ iMIS translation functionality wil support 
100% translation of all ddefaut English languge 
iMIS content on iMIS brower‐based interfaces (ie. 
All screens prompts, labels, descriptions, buttons, 
etc, for public, member and staff users.)   See page 
35 for more details in the proposal.  Please note 
additional cost will be requried for this module.


Solution presented to IMAQ is not 
bilingual, but we can add a dictionary 
to the solution to make it bilingual.


Workflow and 
Tasking


Send auto email 
reminders and alerts


Yes Yes Y Yes but need 
clarification 
on what you 
mean by 
alerts.


YES – for membership renewal, 
overdue renewal, and upcoming 
events/courses reminders


YES ‐ basic auto emails and alerts are available in 
the core product. Enhanced emails and alerts 
available as optional add‐ons.


Possible, thru server.


Custom form creation 
with custom fields


Yes NO only with custom work This 
applies 
to 
members
hip only.


Y Yes. YES YES ‐ Easily create webformz (additional module) 
based process for joining, renewal, volunteer 
registration, grants, busaries, cpd logging and 
many other areas and deploy them to iMIS.  You 
have the ability to create unlimited field 
throughout iMIS


Possible, for "power user" with 
required training.


View payment 
transaction history


Yes all member history is viewable 
from a single screen


Yes Y Yes. Y YES ‐ First, iMIS has been validated as compliant 
with the Payment Application Data Security 
Standard (PA‐DSS) by the PCI Security Standards 
Council.  You have the ability to view all payment 
transaction history based on security.


Yes, with possibility to enter 
payment by batch.







1


2


3


K L M N O P Q R
APPLICATION SalesForce


Supplier Fonteva - MemberNation Amplify in1To
uch


Exware Wild Apricot – Enterprise plan 
added by Jennifer @ ADRIA


iMIS 100 FileMaker (FM) 


Red text = Updated 2015 Pixelera Ola 
Tech 
Corp


AMS AIS GTI


19


20


21


22


File library system Yes Yes Y Yes. YES YES We suggest to have a function to link 
"related" document for some 
elements. If you want to manage 
documents, we suggest to use a 
system for that (SharePoint, by 
example).


Activity logs and auto 
reminders


Yes a complete history of open and 
closed task by Account and Contact


Yes Y Need 
clarification 
on what you 
are 
specifically 
referring to.


Please clarify – the system tracks 
all emails sent (including 
automatically send reminders of 
upcoming membership renewal or 
events/courses), all invoices, all 
payments, all events, all 
registrations


YES Not sure to understand… Do you 
mean Task management? If it is Task 
management, yes it is possible.


Calendar integrates 
with Outlook?


YesNO System 
generate
s 
vCards.  
Above 
and 
byeond 
vCards, 
the 
system 
must be 
customzi
zed to 
meet any 
specific 
requirem
ents of 
ADR - 
subject 
to 
additional 
fees.


Yes - ie., 
Add to my 
calendar tool 
for all events


NO – but calendar of events can be 
added to the site  


iMIS integrates with MS‐Outlook via optional 
iEmail for iMIS add‐on.


Possible with required plug‐in and 
module.


Integrated email







1


2


3


K L M N O P Q R
APPLICATION SalesForce


Supplier Fonteva - MemberNation Amplify in1To
uch


Exware Wild Apricot – Enterprise plan 
added by Jennifer @ ADRIA


iMIS 100 FileMaker (FM) 


Red text = Updated 2015 Pixelera Ola 
Tech 
Corp


AMS AIS GTI


23


24


25


26


27


28


Designed, marketing-
style emails blast 
capability?


need app - have iContact Yes Y Yes. YES Easily create professional e‐mail communications, 
target the delivery based on data in iMIS, and 
track results and responses.  Please note an 
additional cost is required for the Informz module


It's possible to send email from 
FileMaker, but we prefered to use 
specialized solutions, like CakeMail 
or Mandrill ‐ these tools permit to 
create personalized email forms.


Email directly from 
CRM or other 
provider?


Yes, up to 500 emails/day per user. 
However most of our clients 
integrate with one of the many email 
marketing solutions from the 
Salesforce App Exchange 
http://appexchange.salesforce.com/
results?type=Apps&keywords=emai
l


Directly 
from 
CRM


Y Our system 
has Email 
Distribution 
Module that 
allows you to 
send to 
members, 
contacts, etc.


Email direct from WA system. Both 
automatic and direct emails. Email 
can be set to copy to a staff person, 
or not. Can send individual or bulk 
emails.


YES FileMaker solution includes function 
to send individual emails; it can be 
thru email client (Outlook, as 
example) or via SMTP bridge; when 
it's possible, we prefer SMTP.


Can email unlimited 
recipients in one 
batch?


See above Yes Y Yes. YES - up to membership limit 
(15,000)


YES.  Based on server capacity (standard email 
system), and YES if using optional Informz for IMIS 
emai module.


FileMaker can send email to 
unlimited recipients, but to avoid 
spam problems and to follow answer 
and "interest" history, we prefer to 
work with tools like CakeMail of 
Mandrill


auto-archive of 
messages to website?


Can email to any valid email 
address


Yes Yes, we keep 
copy of all 
emails sent 
by the Email 
Distribution 
module.


YES – All emails sent are recorded YES ‐ messages sent to members are optionally 
logged to their communications history


Do not understand the question… 
What is the link between web site 
and integrated email?


Website / Integration Yes


Hosting and domain? Yes hosted on Salesforce.com Yes Yes. YES – they host and provide a 
wildapricot domain. You can use 
your own domain registered with 
another company.


YES ‐ ASI Hosted clients can use their own Domain 
name for their website


Web parts are hosted in Hosting 
Center. For domain, we must discuss 
with you: we suggest a "national" 
domain and sub‐domains for 
province.







1


2


3


K L M N O P Q R
APPLICATION SalesForce


Supplier Fonteva - MemberNation Amplify in1To
uch


Exware Wild Apricot – Enterprise plan 
added by Jennifer @ ADRIA


iMIS 100 FileMaker (FM) 


Red text = Updated 2015 Pixelera Ola 
Tech 
Corp


AMS AIS GTI


29


30


Must use your website 
or can use only 
membership portal 
integrated with our 
current 2 websites?


Yes, use ours or integrate to your 
existing web sites. The integration 
is a minimum level of effort


Must use 
the 
member 
portal 
built into 
Amplify.  
You can 
continue 
to use 
your 
existing 
websites 
as-is, or 
have us 
design 
new 
websites 
for you.


It's best to 
use our 
system 
because the 
tools are 
more 
integrated 
but it's not 
required. 


Can use WA functions in other 
websites, but may lose mobile 
responsiveness without some 
customization


iMIS clients have the option to either use iMIS to 
host their own public website, or integrate the key 
iMIS modules into an existing 3rd party hosted 
website.


Web parts which are Member 
Directory, Profile Management, 
Annual Subscription (renewal), 
register to activity, online payment, 
can be integrated in existing web 
site. Must establish rules for user 
access ‐ If you have already a module 
to manage user access, we suggest 
to "synchronize" it with our web 
parts (this way, members don't have 
to relogin between your system and 
our web parts).


We can also developped a complete 
web site for you... See item #27.


Fully custom or 
templates or?


Yes, everything is fully customizable 
with MemberNation With Custom 
Work


Both 
Options 
Available


Cust
om


Custom 
design.


Templates – customizable with 
CSS


YES both.  The standard RiSE platform includes an 
easy‐to‐use tool to create and personalize self‐
service, community, and mobile web pages to 
meet the ever‐changing demands.  The RiSE 
platform also includes a selection of templates 
loaded with the features you need to quickly, 
conveniently, and affordably launch your new 
website or microsite. These templates can be 
easily tailored to meet the unique needs of your 
organization — without any programming:


If we develop a web site for you, it 
will be with a CMS (Content 
Managemetn System), so you will be 
able to customized content, etc. 


For "web parts", they can be 
customized for your needs, but it will 
done by GTI.







1


2


3


K L M N O P Q R
APPLICATION SalesForce


Supplier Fonteva - MemberNation Amplify in1To
uch


Exware Wild Apricot – Enterprise plan 
added by Jennifer @ ADRIA


iMIS 100 FileMaker (FM) 


Red text = Updated 2015 Pixelera Ola 
Tech 
Corp


AMS AIS GTI


31


32


33


34


35


Public can email staff 
via site?


YesOnly inside member portal by 
opening a case.


Yes Y Not clear on 
what this 
means???


Site or database? For the website, 
add a link to email. For the 
database, members can contact 
other members, including 
administrators, when they are 
signed in through a button on their 
member profile in a member 
directory.


YES We normally include a link to send 
email to "info@xxx" if member needs 
help or information.


Online contact form? Yes, customizable to capture any 
information you desire


Yes Y Yes. Can insert a third-party form such 
as Google or Wufoo.


YES For which purpose exactly? 
Normally, it is included in web site…


Free upgrades?  How 
many per year 
average?


Salesforce and MemberNation both 
provide 3 major upgrades each 
year. These upgrades are included 
in the price and will not impact any 
customizations you may have made 
to the application


2-4 
upgrades 
per year


If 
supp
ort is 
purch
ased 
$1K 
per 
mont
h


Part of 
Support & 
Hosting 
which is 
$125/month. 
(1 - 2 
upgrades per 
year). 
$50/month 
for each sub-
site added to 
system.


Yes – software upgrades are 
automatic and included


YES ‐ As long as our clients are up to date on their 
support services contract they have unlimited 
upgrades.  Product updates are provided on a 
continual basis to iMIS SUP subscribers to address 
issues and provide new functionality to ensure 
maintaining your iMIS system is as easy and 
straightforward as possible. You have complete 
control to determine which updates to install at 
your convenience.


See items #125, #126 and #127.


Responsive design? 
(Mobile ready?)


No Yes Y Yes. Does not Need an app – YES the 
newest templates are fully 
responsive


YES ‐ iMIS 20 makes it simple and affordable to 
provide a dynamic mobile website with 
personalized content using our ready‐to‐use, 
standard responsive design based templates.   
Unlike proprietary mobile apps that are designed 
just for specific devices and must be continually 
modified whenever the device technology is 
updated, mobile websites are accessible anytime, 
anywhere, from any device and can be quickly 
updated without expensive programming. 


If we develop a web site for you, it 
will be responsive.


For web parts, we suggest to it for 
Member Directory. For profile 
management and renewal, current 
version are not responsive but we 
can adjust them.


Consumer Search 
Engine:  ADR 
CONNECT-type 
features







1


2


3


K L M N O P Q R
APPLICATION SalesForce


Supplier Fonteva - MemberNation Amplify in1To
uch


Exware Wild Apricot – Enterprise plan 
added by Jennifer @ ADRIA


iMIS 100 FileMaker (FM) 


Red text = Updated 2015 Pixelera Ola 
Tech 
Corp


AMS AIS GTI


36


37


38


39


40


Search by name, 
company, location, 
groups, 
profession/industry 
and custom data


Yes, global system search very 
similar to Google


Yes Y Yes, we have 
a Member 
Directory


YES YES You mean Member Directory? It can 
be customized as you want. Must 
confirm with you the required 
functionalities, and we will evaluate 
budget.


Browser searchable - 
Member-Personalized 
URLs?


No, but a members name can be in 
the url


Yes Yes, search 
engine 
friendly 
URLs


The main paige of the directory is 
browser searchable: you can enter 
you own page titles and page 
descriptions, and add a Google 
analytics code to SEO the main 
directory page. I suspect the 
individual member profiles urls are 
not personalized or searchable 
through a browser – will test this 
when our directory is live.


YES Not sure to understand? Do you 
mean a personalized page and URL 
for each member? 


Members and the 
public can do a search 
of members and 
display certain fields of 
a member?


Yes Yes Y Yes. Yes – if there is a member 
directory, it is completely 
searchable, by field (administer can 
decide which field to make public 
and searchable)


YES See item #33.


View "mini" profiles 
within search results 
with quick link to full 
profile?


Yes. Includes name, title, photo and 
link to their social sites


Yes Y Yes. YES – you can customize which 
fields display in the “Mini” profile (up 
to four columns with 3 lines of 
information each)


YES See item #33.


Members' Portal Yes Y Yes. YES YES Can be included with web site 
realization and/or via specialized 
tool.







1


2


3


K L M N O P Q R
APPLICATION SalesForce


Supplier Fonteva - MemberNation Amplify in1To
uch


Exware Wild Apricot – Enterprise plan 
added by Jennifer @ ADRIA


iMIS 100 FileMaker (FM) 


Red text = Updated 2015 Pixelera Ola 
Tech 
Corp


AMS AIS GTI


41


42


43


44


Looks like Consumer 
site but has discrete 
login tab, or?


Yes, when a member clicks the 
login tab from your public web site 
they will actually be logging into the 
member portal. The portal will 
feature the same look and feel of 
your web site for a seamless 
member experience


The 
member 
portal 
has its 
own 
distinct 
look and 
feel, 
separate 
from any 
public 
facing 
websites 
you may 
have


Y Yes. YES – Login can be added 
anywhere you want – including the 
top of each page. Has a gadget you 
can add in different styles (larger 
and smaller).


YES ‐ single login screen for all users, including 
staff


Do you mean more complete 
directory for members? (with more 
detailed information)


Members manage their 
personal preferences 
and alerts?


Yes Yes Y  Yes. (for 
alerts, I need 
to know 
specifics)


YES – Members control privacy and 
email settings.


YES Can be included with web site 
realization and/or via specialized 
tool.


Maintain additional 
profile pages or 
extended bio


Yes, members can also display 
their profile page from other social 
environments (Linkedin, Facebook, 
Twitter, etc.) 


Yes Yes. Only one profile per member, but 
administrator can add as many 
fields as needed, including bio


YES Can be included with web site 
realization and/or via specialized 
tool. Do you mean to offer to 
members ability to complete more 
information on their profile?  This 
information will be shared with 
members and/or public?


Upload personal file 
library and share files 
with others?


Yes Yes N This would 
be an add on 
and I need to 
explain the 
pros/cons


Members upload files to their 
profile? NO. But they can upload 
pictures and share with other 
members. 


YES Can be included with web site 
realization and/or via specialized 
tool.







1


2


3


K L M N O P Q R
APPLICATION SalesForce


Supplier Fonteva - MemberNation Amplify in1To
uch


Exware Wild Apricot – Enterprise plan 
added by Jennifer @ ADRIA


iMIS 100 FileMaker (FM) 


Red text = Updated 2015 Pixelera Ola 
Tech 
Corp


AMS AIS GTI


45


46


47


48


49


50


51


52


Display profile 
formatted for personal, 
professional or 
Corporate/Organisatio
nal members


Yes Yes Need 
clarification 
on this item.


Member profile displays the way the 
administrator sets it up – 
Administrator can determine what's 
public, what is seen only by other 
members, what is seen only by the 
member, or what is seen only by 
administration. Member also has 
control over what is displayed (can 
make some sections private or 
member-only, if they wish.)


YES See item #40


Lost password reset 
option (automated)?


Yes Yes Y Yes. YES YES Normally, it is included in web site. 
See also item #26.


Can members upgrade 
their membership 
themselves?


Yes, our solution empowers the 
member and reduces administrative 
time for admin users 


Yes Yes. YES – customizable for each 
membership level (eg allow 
associate members to upgrade to 
full, but don't allow full to 
downgrade to associate)


YES Yes, with web part  "Annual 
Subscription (Renewal)".


Email and message 
members directly from 
the site?


Yes, and we maintain an Activity 
History so users can easily view all 
communication with a Contact or an 
Account


Yes Y Yes, can be 
added.


YES YES We suggest to include that in 
Member Management Solution (in 
FileMaker) or in Email tool  to keep 
an history of it.


Star rating system and 
feedback.


?  Normally, it is included in web site.


Membership 
Management Tools


Multiple member type Yes Yes Y Yes. N? YES – different membership 
levels, including “batch” 
memberships for 
organizational/group membership. 


YES UNLIMITED Yes (of course)… 


Maintain personal 
AND professional 
AND 
Corporate/Organisatio
nal information


Yes Yes Need 
clarification 
on this item.


YES – membership fields are fully 
customizable and privacy settings 
allow personal information to be 
kept private, and public information 
to be seen by the public.


YES We plan to be able to specify 
personal information (residence 
address, etc.) and professional 
information, including multiple 
places of practice.







1


2


3


K L M N O P Q R
APPLICATION SalesForce


Supplier Fonteva - MemberNation Amplify in1To
uch


Exware Wild Apricot – Enterprise plan 
added by Jennifer @ ADRIA


iMIS 100 FileMaker (FM) 


Red text = Updated 2015 Pixelera Ola 
Tech 
Corp


AMS AIS GTI


53


54


Duplicate detection 
system with auto 
conversion


Yes, global search helps prevent 
the creation of duplicates and built 
in merge tool enables easy 
consolidation of dup records But 
does not detect dups


Duplicate 
record 
detection 
available, 
however 
you must 
select if 
you want 
to keep, 
merge or 
delete 
the 
record.  
Once 
this is 
decided, 
then the 
system 
automati
cally 
performs 
the 
appropria
te action


Dupe Module 
but doesn’t 
auto merge. 
It requires 
admin 
review.


Partially -  System detects by email 
and system-assigned ID. If a 
membership expires, it can be 
automatically archived – if the 
person signs in again using the 
same email, their record will be 
retrieved. System also recognizes if 
you are uploading same contacts 
and will not make two. 


YES ‐ Duplicate manager feature.    Please note an 
additional cost is required


It can be implemented, but we need 
to have rules on this (beyond the 
name, we should establish other 
rules, like birth date, sexe, etc.).


e-mails received from 
Contacts should ideally 
be automatically 
related / appended to 
the Contact record 
together with the e-
mail’s attachment etc. 


Yes, see #44NO only with Match 
My Email


This will 
require 
additional 
develop
ment 
customiz
ation


This may 
require some 
customizatio
ns.


Checking this – we do not use WA 
to receive email. But, there is a 
“send message” button on 
individual profiles appear in a 
member directory – don't know if 
sent messages are archived 
anywhere.  


 YES ‐ via optional iEmail for iMIS add‐on. 
(Requires staff to select emails from members in 
Outlook inbox first).   Please note an additional 
cost is required for iEMAIL


Can be considered has a related 
document. Must discuss with you 
about that.







1


2


3


K L M N O P Q R
APPLICATION SalesForce


Supplier Fonteva - MemberNation Amplify in1To
uch


Exware Wild Apricot – Enterprise plan 
added by Jennifer @ ADRIA


iMIS 100 FileMaker (FM) 


Red text = Updated 2015 Pixelera Ola 
Tech 
Corp


AMS AIS GTI


55


56


Lists maintenance: 
members, non-
members, committees, 
rosters, catagories, 
etc.


Yes Yes Y Yes. YES YES We plan module to enter enterprises 
and contacts, for members and non‐
members. "Group/Event" module 
can be used to manage committees 
and for Event, we can have list of 
registration (roster).


Reports: standard and 
custom reports(name 
badges, mailing labels, 
member directories, 
rosters, member stas, 
certificates, etc)?


Yes To some 
extent 
yes for 
name 
badges 
(events), 
mailing 
lables, 
directorie
s


Y Financial reports, event registration 
report (including attendance lists), 
customizable member reports 


YES.  With our Task Management feature you are 
able to setup this functionality


FileMaker permits to generate 
reports, labels, badges, lists, etc.  We 
plan to create many of them for you, 
but we also suggest to train "power‐
user" to create custom reports.







1


2


3


K L M N O P Q R
APPLICATION SalesForce


Supplier Fonteva - MemberNation Amplify in1To
uch


Exware Wild Apricot – Enterprise plan 
added by Jennifer @ ADRIA


iMIS 100 FileMaker (FM) 


Red text = Updated 2015 Pixelera Ola 
Tech 
Corp


AMS AIS GTI


57


58


Auto-approval via 
directory matching, 
email verification or 
custom code


Yes, notifications of all types can be 
set up and automated


The 
system 
can be 
setup so 
that 
members 
are 
automati
cally 
approved 
based on 
their 
email 
address 
matching 
one that 
is 
associate
d to a 
corporate 
member.


?? Memberships can be sent to be 
automatically/instantly approved or 
require approval (admin has to click 
box in profile saying member 
approved).


YES.  With iMIS approval feature you can set your 
processes to match your daily procedures


Not sure to understand "auto‐
approval". For "renewal" and "profil 
modification", changes can be 
directly applied in member solution 
or can be based on autorisation by 
someone of the organization ‐ it 
depends of your needs and which 
process you have. Do you have online 
payment? Do you need to receive 
initial document (for new member, 
etc.).


For registrations (activity, congress, 
etc.), it depends on how you want to 
manage them: if payments are online 
and you don't need to manage 
capacity (waiting list) , it can be 
direct without approval.


In all cases, usually, we send an email 
to management for all changes and 
registration, giving you the 
possibility, at least, to be informed.


Membership renewal 
and dues payment


Yes Yes Y Yes. YES – automatic reminders can be 
customized (reminders before 
renewal date, on renewal date, and 
after expiry.) If not renewed after 
certain time period, can system to 
automatically delete invoice and 
archive contact. Automatic invoices 
and receipts can be customized 
(timing and content).


YES standard Again, it depends of your rules. Do 
you offer to your member to pay in 
many payments? Usually, we 
consider a member "incomplete" if 
annual subscription is not paid 
entirely. 







1


2


3


K L M N O P Q R
APPLICATION SalesForce


Supplier Fonteva - MemberNation Amplify in1To
uch


Exware Wild Apricot – Enterprise plan 
added by Jennifer @ ADRIA


iMIS 100 FileMaker (FM) 


Red text = Updated 2015 Pixelera Ola 
Tech 
Corp


AMS AIS GTI


59


60


61


62


63


64


65


66


67


68


69


View staff profiles Yes Yes ?? (is this 
just a web 
page?)


Can make a staff directory to 
display.


YES We plan to have a user table, where 
you can specify name, email and 
phone (and access management).


Read director's bios 
and view photos


Yes Yes ?? (is this 
just a web 
page?)


Can make a directory of to show 
board members.


YES Do not understand the question.


Yes, bios are easily updated and 
can be set on public or private. 
Member decides how much 
information they want to share


Event Management


Calendar? Yes Yes Y Yes. YES – will automatically update 
according to the settings (for 
instance if new courses are added).


YES.  Easily place your events into an iMIS 
Calendar


Normally, it is included in a web site. 
We can synchronize list of available 
activities.


Online registration? Yes Yes Y Yes. YES. Events can be open to the 
public, or restricted by membership, 
membership level, or group.


YES.  Enable your members to register for events 
and access event detais including locations, 
agendas, speakers, registrations lists and so much 
more


Web part ‐ See item #26.


Receive auto email 
registration 
confirmation?


Yes Yes Y Yes. YES YES standard Registration Web part sends an email 
to person responsible of registration.


Receive auto reminder 
emails for registered 
events?


Yes Yes Y Yes. YES YES We can program it.


Check-in for events 
online?


Yes  NO Will 
require 
customiz
ation


Add on 
module.


Not for attendees. Admin can check 
in people using a printed 
attendance sheet or online using an 
App.


YES What do you mean by "check‐in"?


View and print event 
location map?


YesNO Yes Yes. YES YES We can program it.


View event registration 
attendee lists and 
comments?


Yes Yes Yes. Can choose whether or not 
attendees can see other attendees 
on event registration page. There is 
not a comment section.


YES Included in Registration module.







1


2


3


K L M N O P Q R
APPLICATION SalesForce


Supplier Fonteva - MemberNation Amplify in1To
uch


Exware Wild Apricot – Enterprise plan 
added by Jennifer @ ADRIA


iMIS 100 FileMaker (FM) 


Red text = Updated 2015 Pixelera Ola 
Tech 
Corp


AMS AIS GTI


70


71


72


73


View event specific 
photo galleries?


YesNO Will 
require 
customiz
ation


Yes. If created by Admin and linked. YES Normally, it is included in a web site.


Manage Attendees - 
View, print (e.g. name 
badges), email, export 
attendee information?


YesNO Yes Y Yes, export 
rosters. Must 
export name 
badge fields 
and then 
merge onto 
labels/name 
badges.


View and export attendee 
information – badges would have to 
be done with outside application 
(Microsoft Mail merge)


YES Included in Registration module.


Event budget 
management?


YesNO There 
are 
financial 
summari
es for 
fees 
collected 
through 
event 
registrati
on, 
promo 
codes 
used and 
to 
reconcile 
accounts 
receivabl
e


No No   Yes ‐ user defined fields can be set up to manage 
event revenue budget, for reporting against 
actuals


We can program it. Need to confirm 
with you what you need.


Invoicing and 
accounting







1


2


3


K L M N O P Q R
APPLICATION SalesForce


Supplier Fonteva - MemberNation Amplify in1To
uch


Exware Wild Apricot – Enterprise plan 
added by Jennifer @ ADRIA


iMIS 100 FileMaker (FM) 


Red text = Updated 2015 Pixelera Ola 
Tech 
Corp


AMS AIS GTI


74


75


76


77


78


79


Fully Integrate with 
QuickBooks? Other 
accounting software?


Yes, our robust and open API's 
enable  NO


Will 
require 
customiz
ation


Y 
custo
m


No. That is 
not 
recommende
d by 
Quickbooks. 
All 
informtation 
can be 
exported. I 
can explain 
how existing 
clients do it.


YES – Quickbooks YES this is a standard feature We can do transfer with many 
accounting systems (QuickBook, 
Acumba, Avantage, Accpac).


Bulk invoicing? Yes Yes No but it is a 
consideration 
for Summer 
2015 
upgrade.


No   YES Yes, it is possible to send invoice in 
batch. For annual subscription, we 
suggest to manage renewal instead 
of sending an invoice, and, once paid, 
send a receipt. For registration, we 
suggest to send receipt, once 
registration is paid and confirmed.


E-Commerce / 
Accounting


Self-registration and 
payment online?


Yes, your web site will serve as the 
"front door" and once a member 
logs in they are in the member 
portal where they are able to find 
and follow members, register for 
events, renew membership, log a 
case, etc.  


Yes Y Yes. YES (Can also allow recurring 
payments with some payment 
systems – allowing pre-authorized 
payment on annual  membership  
renewal.


YES ‐ Members can easily register online and make 
payment, join, renew and so much ore


With web parts. See item #26.


Online store Yes Will 
require 
customiz
ation


Y Yes. PARTIAL – Can add options on to 
membership application and 
renewal including products.


YES ‐ Manage product sales and inventory levels 
with iMIS 


We can develop online store, and add 
a module to manage offers and 
payments, and add history in 
member records (in FileMake 
system)







1


2


3


K L M N O P Q R
APPLICATION SalesForce


Supplier Fonteva - MemberNation Amplify in1To
uch


Exware Wild Apricot – Enterprise plan 
added by Jennifer @ ADRIA


iMIS 100 FileMaker (FM) 


Red text = Updated 2015 Pixelera Ola 
Tech 
Corp


AMS AIS GTI


80


81


82


83


84


85


Purchases/registration
s adjusted to member 
level pricing?


Yes Yes Y Yes - I can 
explain 
options.


YES YES ‐ Absolutely depending on the type of 
membership, the pricing witll be adjusted


Possible to manage fees by member 
categories (or member types)


Buy downloadable 
products in real-time


YesNO Will 
require 
customiz
ation


N Need to add. Perhaps with customization. YES See item #76.


Select from secure 
credit card or offline 
payment options


Yes Yes Mone
ris


Yes. Moneris-Beta Moneris is one of 
several options.


YES ‐ Accept credit cars and create a fully 
customized checkout experience for your 
members.  Both credit card and offline payment 
options


Yes.


Choose from a variety 
of shipping methods


YesNO Will 
require 
customiz
ation


Need more 
information.


Can add customized fields to any 
form (event. ,membership, 
donation), so I assume you could 
create a shipping option.


YES Yes, managed with online store.


Receive auto email 
order and shipping 
confirmation


YesNO Only with custom workflow Will 
require 
customiz
ation


Need more 
information.


As part of membership 
invoice/receipt.


YES Yes, managed with online store.


View past order history 
and status within each 
member profile 
(member can review 
also?)


Yes For 
members
hip 
applicatio
n/renewa
l fees 
and 
event 
registrati
on fees


We have My 
Account 
which allows 
both groups 
to see all 
purchases, 
invoices, etc.


Member can see invoices and 
receipts in their profile.


YES See item #76.







1


2


3


K L M N O P Q R
APPLICATION SalesForce


Supplier Fonteva - MemberNation Amplify in1To
uch


Exware Wild Apricot – Enterprise plan 
added by Jennifer @ ADRIA


iMIS 100 FileMaker (FM) 


Red text = Updated 2015 Pixelera Ola 
Tech 
Corp


AMS AIS GTI


86


87


88


List Canadian Banks 
accepting your 
eCommerce 
processing? 


We provide a variety of payment 
processing options including 
PayPal, Authorize .Net and Intuit 
Payment Network and have no 
restrictions on banks. Should you 
require a different payment 
processing solution, we can easily 
add additional payment processing 
solutions.  


Our 
preferen
ce is 
Moneris, 
however 
we can 
configure 
the 
system 
to work 
with 
other 
providers 
as 
required 
(i.e., 
Beanstre
an, 
Paypal, 
etc)


Our system 
works with: 
Moneris, 
Chase, 
Beanstream 
or PayPal. 


Determined by chosen payment 
system.


All Canadian banks are supported, via Moneris, 
PayPal or IATS payment gateway processing 
services


Multiple merchant 
accounts?


NO Will 
require 
customiz
ation


I believe the 
e-commerce 
gateways will 
only give you 
one 
merchant 
account per 
registered 
company.


This needs to be set up with the 
online payment system, not WA


YES


Security







1


2


3


K L M N O P Q R
APPLICATION SalesForce


Supplier Fonteva - MemberNation Amplify in1To
uch


Exware Wild Apricot – Enterprise plan 
added by Jennifer @ ADRIA


iMIS 100 FileMaker (FM) 


Red text = Updated 2015 Pixelera Ola 
Tech 
Corp


AMS AIS GTI


89


90


91


92


Territory management - 
define users into 
different categories 
and give limited & 
restricted access to 
the specific user 
groups at a record and 
field level?


Yes, one of our strengths is how 
easy you can modify roles and 
profiles and grant sharing access to 
certain types of data NO Only with 
Custom Programming


Will 
require 
customiz
ation


Y We can 
allow 
regions/affilia
tes to have 
limited 
access to 
their web 
pages, 
events, 
members, 
reports, etc. 


N – YES can restrict access to 
pages, events, forums to certain 
user groups


YES ‐ via Chapter Management functionality ‐  
iMIS has many levels of security and territories 
can be put into specific categories and given 
specific access to the group.  You can implement a 
custom security group by modifying a predefined 
group or building your own from scratch


Can be customized for your needs.


CEU (CEE) system 
and Accrediation 
requirements


Members earn, 
monitor, manage their 
own continuing 
Education 
points/units/hours?


Yes NO Yes Y Will require 
custom 
module.


Add a membership field(s) in 
member profile to record this 
information – can allow members to 
update, or only allow admin to 
update and member to view-only


YES ‐ iMIS Professional Education module 
(additional module) allows you to manage 
continuing education, certification and 
accreditation programs with points/units/hours 
credits etc. MIS Continuing Education (CEU) 
provides many advanced features:
■    Defining a program type and credit category 
for each educational program
■    Awarding continuing education credits to each 
attendee according to either automatic program 
defaults or manually‐entered overrides
■    Recording attendance rosters
■    Printing continuing education completion 
certificates
■    Retaining long‐term continuing education 
records for documentation purposes, transcript 
requests, and inquiry and data analysis


Can have a module for that. Usually, 
managed by member in Profile and 
Renewal. Must validate with you if 
these data are mandatory for 
membership







1


2


3


K L M N O P Q R
APPLICATION SalesForce


Supplier Fonteva - MemberNation Amplify in1To
uch


Exware Wild Apricot – Enterprise plan 
added by Jennifer @ ADRIA


iMIS 100 FileMaker (FM) 


Red text = Updated 2015 Pixelera Ola 
Tech 
Corp


AMS AIS GTI


93


94


95


96


97


98


99


100


Online form that can 
be updated and units 
accumulated?


Yes NO Yes Y Will require 
custom 
module.


Use an event form to submit 
information to admin. Admin can 
update the profile if you do not want 
members doing it themselves.


For many organizations, these credits are in the 
form of CEUs (continuing education units) that 
customers are required to complete in order to 
maintain a certain status or designation in their 
profession or industry. The Certification module 
gives you great flexibility in the design of these 
requirements, allowing you to adapt your system 
to the unique conditions and qualifying factors of 
your organization's certification program.


See item #89.


Media / News Page


View news releases Yes Yes Yes. YES – use blog function, control 
who can post news articles, who 
can see the articles and who can 
comment. Allow people to subscribe 
via RSS.


YES Can be included with web site 
realization and/or via specialized 
tool.


Post and view 
comments on news 
items


Yes Yes Yes. YES (includes anti-spam settings) YES ‐ via an optional 3rd party add‐on such as 
DISCUS


Can be included with web site 
realization and/or via specialized 
tool.


Email news articles to 
others?


Yes Yes Yes -
standard 
share/email 
tools


Need to check – can add share 
tools to the main page, perhaps also 
to each article (But anyone can 
copy and paste the address and 
email it!)


YES ‐ via social media sharing links Can be included with web site 
realization and/or via specialized 
tool.


Collegiality







1


2


3


K L M N O P Q R
APPLICATION SalesForce


Supplier Fonteva - MemberNation Amplify in1To
uch


Exware Wild Apricot – Enterprise plan 
added by Jennifer @ ADRIA


iMIS 100 FileMaker (FM) 


Red text = Updated 2015 Pixelera Ola 
Tech 
Corp


AMS AIS GTI


101


102


103


104


105


Online member 
community?


Yes, we call it Social CRM Yes ?? YES YES ‐ An online community lets a group 
collaborate on projects, share knowledge, 
communicate and connect with others, and stay in 
touch using email subscriptions. Communities 
have configurable layout pages that help you 
manage the shared content and also manage the 
group that defines the community.  Create and 
manage member‐only online groups forums, 
blogs, wikis and document libraries


Can be included with web site 
realization and/or via specialized 
tool.


File libraries? Yes Yes ?? Can create a page for members 
with links to files and resources.


YES ‐ You create resource libraries or document 
attachment collections when you want to gather 
resources into one location for the community to 
have access to. Anyone can download files from 
the Resource Library but only administrators can 
use the Organize, New, Edit, and Versions menus. 
You can upload the configured file types to a 
document library as described in Managing 
attachments and uploads. ■    A document library 
may contain policies, meeting minutes, or any 
document that does not fit a forum, blog, or wiki 
content model.


Can be included with web site 
realization and/or via specialized 
tool.


Career and volunteer 
center?


On roadmap, will be released in Q1 
Never Released


Will 
require 
customiz
ation


Job Posting 
module


Other than a regular page of 
listings?


YES ‐ basic support via configuration using native 
tools, or optionally integrate a variety of available 
3rd party add‐ons for managing volunteers and 
job postings.


Can be included with web site 
realization and/or via specialized 
tool.


View member 
community activity 
feeds


Not standard but likely a low level of 
customization


Will 
require 
customiz
ation


?? NO YES ‐ standard via iMIS Communities Can be included with web site 
realization and/or via specialized 
tool.


Community groups / 
chapter pages / 
Committee pages?


Yes Yes Yes, we have 
a Committee 
module


YES YES Can be included with web site 
realization and/or via specialized 
tool.







1


2


3


K L M N O P Q R
APPLICATION SalesForce


Supplier Fonteva - MemberNation Amplify in1To
uch


Exware Wild Apricot – Enterprise plan 
added by Jennifer @ ADRIA


iMIS 100 FileMaker (FM) 


Red text = Updated 2015 Pixelera Ola 
Tech 
Corp


AMS AIS GTI


106


107


108


109


110


111


112


113


Blogs / forums ? Yes Blogs 
can be 
setup, 
but will 
require 
customiz
ation


Yes YES YES Can be included with web site 
realization and/or via specialized 
tool.


Online chat? Yes Will 
require 
customiz
ation


No Need to use outside application. YES Can be included with web site 
realization and/or via specialized 
tool.


RSS feeds? Yes Will 
require 
customiz
ation


Yes YES. YES Can be included with web site 
realization and/or via specialized 
tool.


Social networking


Auto link to fb, 
LinkedIn, Twitter, etc?


Yes Yes Yes YES YES ‐ Social Networking for iMIS is an on‐demand 
community‐building platform. The platform 
features the latest online networking and 
communication tools, such as Blogs, Shared 
Libraries, Profiles, Forums, Tagging and Tag 
clouds, Groups, and Listservs.  Your users can 
easily bookmark or share pages from your WCM‐
generated websites with social networking and 
bookmarking sites like Facebook, LinkedIN, 
Twitter, and Digg using the AddThis For Social 
Networking iPart.  


Can be included with web site 
realization.


Auto update to fb, 
LinkedIn, Twitter, etc?


Will 
require 
customiz
ation


Share tools NO Not standard in current version ‐ but possibly 
automated using process automation


Can be included with web site 
realization.


Surveys







1


2


3


K L M N O P Q R
APPLICATION SalesForce


Supplier Fonteva - MemberNation Amplify in1To
uch


Exware Wild Apricot – Enterprise plan 
added by Jennifer @ ADRIA


iMIS 100 FileMaker (FM) 


Red text = Updated 2015 Pixelera Ola 
Tech 
Corp


AMS AIS GTI


114


115


116


117


118


119


120


Create customised 
surverys?


Yes, via the Salesforce App 
Exchange 


Will need 
to use 
third 
party 
survey 
software


Yes NO (how do you do an anonymous 
survey if you do it through your 
membership database?)


YES with optional Informz for iMIS Survey module 
add‐on


Can be included with web site 
realization, or via specialized tool.


Training and on-
going support


For Staff Yes Yes Yes Online and phone support. 
Searchable database explains in 
detail how to set everything up, 
searchabe Q & A, video tutorials. 
Webinars. 


Please refer to Page 44 of the iMIS Proposal.  We 
offer On‐site, classroom and online training 
options


For membership management 
system, yes, we plan to have training 
with your staff. For other tools 
(blogs, forums, etc.), maybe training 
will be needed… We can offer this 
service.


For Members No, the user interface for members 
is very intutitive and no training has 
been necessary


We do 
not 
provide 
training 
to 
members
, this is 
your 
responsi
bility


Your team 
would 
support your 
members. 
We would 
support your 
admins.


What type of training and support? 
Functions are user-friendly, but all 
help information is online and 
public. 


YES ‐ via existing recorded videos and webinars 
(may be generic, however ‐ custom video 
recordings by client may be desired)


For Renewal, Profile and 
Registration, not supposed to need 
training! For other tools (blogs, 
forums, etc.), maybe training will be 
needed. We can offer this service.


Future upgrades and 
enhancements


Yes, MemberNation and Fonteva 
each do 3 major releases per year. 
These releases do not impact any 
customizations you may have made 
to the app REALLY?


With 
purchase 
of annual 
license


Yes, if on our 
Support & 
Hosting 
package.


YES. The software is regularly 
updated and that is just part of the 
service – after recent major 
upgrades, price of all packages will 
be going up. That is the first time in 
9 years.


YES ‐ Please refer to Page 41 of the iMIS Proposal 
for more details.  ADR has been quoted a 
Subscription model which automatically gets you 
all future upgrades and enhancement 
automaticaly


Will be evaluated when needed.


Unlimited data storage 
or?


Yes, Salesforce provides 20MB per 
instance of Salesforce. Additional 
storage can be purchased in 
increments of 50MB or 100MB 


Based on 
hosting 
plan 
selected


No, see 
above.


NO - 2 GB NO ‐ there is a cap on data storage of 50 Gb for 
the standard fee, but this will likely never be 
exceeded by the client


Not unlimited







1


2


3


K L M N O P Q R
APPLICATION SalesForce


Supplier Fonteva - MemberNation Amplify in1To
uch


Exware Wild Apricot – Enterprise plan 
added by Jennifer @ ADRIA


iMIS 100 FileMaker (FM) 


Red text = Updated 2015 Pixelera Ola 
Tech 
Corp


AMS AIS GTI


121


122


123


124


125


126


127


emarketing tools Emial is built into the product. 
Clients more advanced emarketing 
requirements typically integrate with 
one of the emarketing solutions 
available from the Salesforce App 
e=Exchange 


Yes ?? Email system allows custom 
newsletters to send to member or 
contacts. Track opens and clicks.


ADR has the option of purchasing the Informz 
Marketing tool


???


Other features: One of the biggest advantages of 
MemberNation is the level of 
flexibility that is afforded for any 
customizations. Customizations are 
fast and easy and in most cases 
can be done with straight 
configuration rather than code. 
Additionally, our open APIs enables 
MemberNation to integrate with any 
web-based solution.


Fees:







1


2


3


K L M N O P Q R
APPLICATION SalesForce


Supplier Fonteva - MemberNation Amplify in1To
uch


Exware Wild Apricot – Enterprise plan 
added by Jennifer @ ADRIA


iMIS 100 FileMaker (FM) 


Red text = Updated 2015 Pixelera Ola 
Tech 
Corp


AMS AIS GTI


128


129


130


131


Software purchase No purchased software. We have a 
licensing model (like Salesforce)


$70-
90K 
plus 
$10-
15K 
per 
affiliat
e


27500 plus 
$4500 per 
affiliate


$200/Mth Enterprise plan is now 
$270 per month – software is not 
purchased, this is an online 
membership software system.


$18K per annum 1‐ For Customized Member 
Management Solution and folliwing 
web parts: Online Profil 
Management, Online Annual 
Renewal, Online Registration to 
activities (without participant's 
options), Online Payment and 
Member Directory
a) Analysis = from $9,000 to $12,000
b) Realization of the solution = 
approximately between $60,000 to 
$75,000 *. See Annex A (Preliminary 
Budget) for more details.


* Must be validated after analysis. 
Doesn't include importation of 
existing data. 


2‐ For Web Site Realization and other 
tools (blog, forum, etc.), we need 
more information to evaluate.


Licences: $175/seat/month - $2100/seat/year 
x4 or 5= $8400 or 10,500/ year for 
seat and licence


$15K+$1
0K per 
affiliate


None. Affiliates would have to pay 
their own monthly fee depending on 
number of members/contacts 
(range from $70 to $270 per 
month). 


Annual Non Profit Licences (annual 
cost):
‐ FileMaker Server = $255
‐ FileMaker Pro (1 licence by user) = 
$79, so for 10 users , will be $790


Seats: See above Unlimited unlimited 
admins, 
members, 
events, 
registrations


Annual fees:
Dedicated Server for Member 
Management Solution = $1,800
Hosting of web parts = $600


Implementation  $13,720.00 $25K Includ
ed


No cost if DIY, can pay someone to 
set it up for you.


$48K See item #125.







1


2


3


K L M N O P Q R
APPLICATION SalesForce


Supplier Fonteva - MemberNation Amplify in1To
uch


Exware Wild Apricot – Enterprise plan 
added by Jennifer @ ADRIA


iMIS 100 FileMaker (FM) 


Red text = Updated 2015 Pixelera Ola 
Tech 
Corp


AMS AIS GTI


132


133


134


135


Support Included in our license fee First 
three 
months 
included, 
additional 
support 
available 
after 
initial 
period.


$1K 
per 
monnt
h


Support & 
Hosting is 
$125/month, 
plus $50 per 
each 
region/affiliat
e sub-site


Included Depends of your needs. Usually, you 
can plan:
‐ First year: approximately 20% of 
realization budget ($12,000 to 
$15,000)
‐ Following years: approximately 10% 
of realization budget ($6,000 to 
$7,500)


Unlimited admin seats System 
is not a 
seat-
based 
license, 
you can 
have as 
many 
admin 
seats as 
required.


25 admin limit n/a


Notes Configuration and implementation 
happen in unison and we are 
projecting five weeks from kickoff to 
completion


Website 
design 
$10K per 
site


12-14 
week 
lead 
time


ADR Institute of 
Canada


Main Shortcomings of Current 
System







1


2


3


K L M N O P Q R
APPLICATION SalesForce


Supplier Fonteva - MemberNation Amplify in1To
uch


Exware Wild Apricot – Enterprise plan 
added by Jennifer @ ADRIA


iMIS 100 FileMaker (FM) 


Red text = Updated 2015 Pixelera Ola 
Tech 
Corp


AMS AIS GTI


136


137


138


139


140


141


142


Bilingual Unfamiliarity with HST concept-
constant problems that take months 
to resolve-cost Institute $K's for 
uncollected HST


have the CEE points as part of the 
membership renewal ‐ the renewal 
form could have a section with 
customized fields for CEE. Members 
would have the option to check off 
CEE admin fee and fill in the section  if 
it is applicable to them that year, and 
the fields they fill in would become 
part of their membership profile. 


CEE Report and fee Not directly connected to our 
website-only by a link.


designation renewal Constant compatibility issues with 
Internet Explorer.


Affiliate 
Specific 
Needs:  


(add more 
lines as 


required)


Arbitration Case admin Issues with product that need fixes 
take months to resolve.


ADRIO - 
integrated 
website with 
seamless 
login to 
member 
portal


ADRAI ADRIM ADRIA 


Products - Handbooks Last 2 renewal periods software did 
not process renewals correctly.  Fix 
took 1 month to resolve.


one login for 
all online 
services


Correspondence 
Course and tracking


Any request for changes cost 
thousands in custom work fees. 
Features that should be out of the 
box they consider custom.


cms for 
website-
totally 
customizeabl
e


Joining Members to 
Committees


Many problems with ADR Connect 
in search logic problems.


Ethics 
Course 
payment and  
tracking 


ADRSK







1


2


3


K L M N O P Q R
APPLICATION SalesForce


Supplier Fonteva - MemberNation Amplify in1To
uch


Exware Wild Apricot – Enterprise plan 
added by Jennifer @ ADRIA


iMIS 100 FileMaker (FM) 


Red text = Updated 2015 Pixelera Ola 
Tech 
Corp


AMS AIS GTI


143


144


145


146


147


148


149


150


Forums? Membership pro rating system does 
not work and still not repaired.


Joining 
Members to 
Committees 
and Sections


IMAQ 


Design of forms cannot be done in 
house. Applications must be 
custom designed to integrate with 
member records.


Reasons for 
not renewing


BCAMI 


File librairies difficult to maneuver.  
No way to host video.


Workflows difficult to determine if 
they are functioning.


Affiniscap
e


Equati
on


Cloud 4 Good Cloudware Connections Member 
360


Avectr
a


Altus Navantis Ideaca


Microsoft Dynamics


Other systems reviewed in 2012 before selection of MemberNation








Membership Type Notes
Law Firms and ADR 


Organisations over 15 
practitioners


Law Firms and ADR 
Organisations under 15 


practitioners


Government, Non‐Profit 
Organizations & Charities 


(wishing to be nominated to 
Board of Directors)


Educational 
Institutions


do we allow "competitors" to have an 
opportunity to sit on Board?


Fees $1,000 


ADRIC Key Commitment:  Value excellence in 
ADR instruction and 
research focusing on 
key faculties (Law, 
Business, HR, Social 
Work, etc.)


h


ADRIC Organizational Marketing Structure & Benefits


Y l l d hi i f i h ADRIC B d f Di d/ N i l


Sustaining Corporate Member


Foster new business development opportunities for Law Firms through:
• Promotion of the ADRIC Conference, specifically within the national and international corporate council 
community (CBA, CCCA, etc.) 
• Partnerships & Advertising to attract attendance and interaction (ICC, etc.) 
• Enhanced capacity to deliver webinars, made available to Law Firms
• Promoting and attracting partners from the Business community


Promote ADR as a proactive practice that saves money for the business community
• Marketing focus on internal ADR resources, HR, legal and contracting staff


Firms & Organizations Non‐
Practitioners or practice only 
within own organization 
(including Government)


Associate Corporate Member


Promote ADR as a proactive practice 
that saves money for the business 
community
• Marketing focus on internal ADR 
resources, HR, legal and contracting 
staff


O i ADR I i f C d i


Free $500


Voting Rights 


Webinars


Representatives Opportunity to name 
one Primary 
Representative 
(includes affiliate 
relationship of his/her 
choice)


Would be encouraged to be members of their 
Regional Affiliate. 


Responsibilities


ADRIC Arbitration Administration


Advertising on ADRI Websites  NoYour organizational logo featured on 
the ADRIC website and on the 


Yes, plus leadership opportunity for main contact to serve on the ADRIC Board of Directors and/or National
Committees.


Opportunity to name one complimentary full membership for the Corporate Representative (includes 
affiliate relationship of his/her choice), plus "Associate Corporate Members" (1 per province in which the 
organization conducts business)


Your organizational logo featured on the ADRIC website and on appropriate Affiliates’ websites (if the 
affiliate wishes) under the heading: ADRIC Corporate Members.


Primary Contact is to distribute all information from ADR Institute of Canada to colleagues


25% discount on arbitration administration services


Opportunity to provide at least one webinar per year ‐ ADRIC to organize, promote and facilitate the 
webinars


Opportunity to attend and engage.


Opportunity to name one Primary 
Representative (includes affiliate 
relationship of his/her choice), plus 1 
per province in which the organization 
conducts business


Opportunity to serve on ADR Institute of Canada committees


appropriate Affiliates’ websites (if the 
ffili t i h ) d th h di







Membership Type Notes
Law Firms and ADR 


Organisations over 15 
practitioners


Law Firms and ADR 
Organisations under 15 


practitioners


Government, Non‐Profit 
Organizations & Charities 


(wishing to be nominated to 
Board of Directors)


Educational 
Institutions


Advertising ‐ Canadian Arbitration and 
Mediation JOURNAL


 25% discount on ads 
in each issue 


If no ad provided by deadline, only  logo will be 
included.


Use of ADRIC’s modified logo On website and materials ‐ guidelines and text to be 
provided by ADRIC


Subscription to Canadian Arbitration 
and Mediation Journal 


2 per year


Subscription to ADR Perspectives 
Newsletter and opportunities to 
contribute


 6 issues per year


Commercial Mediation Handbook and 
Arbitration Handbook


Free Copy of each plus special rates on additional copies Discounts on  handbooks


Yes


Yes


Yes


ADRIC Organizational Marketing Structure & Benefits


Sustaining Corporate Member Associate Corporate Member


Complimentary ¼ page ads (or 25% discount on larger ads) in each issue Logo included (or 25% discount on 
ads) in each issue 


Firms & Organizations Non‐
Practitioners or practice only 
within own organization 
(including Government)


Arbitration Handbook 
ADRIC customized promotional 
materials to spread awareness of ADR 


Specific brochures, etc, to be determined


Discount on the administration of 
National Mediation and Arbitration 
Rules


Pending Board approval (suggested 10% discount)


Provincial Affiliate Communications Affiliate opportunity to capitalize on Corporate 
contacts


Attendance at ADRIC Conference  2 passes plus member rate for extra 
participants from the organization


Special sponsorship opportunities for 
the ADRIC Conference and/or special 
benefits (table/display, etc)


Sponsorships include advance access to Conference 
registration list


Invitation to networking reception at 
the ADRIC Conference 


No


Networking Opportunities and/or 
other activities with Businesses and 


No


“First dibs” on sponsorship opportunities and speaker placements


1 pass plus member rate for extra participants from the organization


Yes


Yes


Yes


10% discount on non‐member registration fees


“First dibs” on sponsorship opportunities and speaker 
placements


Yes


Yes


other activities with Businesses and 
Corporate Council 


Recognition program for businesses 
that develop or embrace outstanding 
ADR practices


Currently no, but 
could be considered 
in the future


At conference or in Journal or newsletter.


Group Membership Discounts Pending Board and Affiliate approval


Designations Application and Annual 
Fees Discounts


Pending Board and Affiliate approval 


Yes


Yes


Yes








Strategic Planning Session (SPS)


September 2015











SPS Overview


The Journey thus far – developing ADRIA’s Strategic Plan


Board roles & responsibilities (Strategic vs Operational)


Vision, Mission, Values


Key Marketing Messages


2015 Achievements & Challenges


Strategic Directions / Goals (4)


2015 Strategies (11)


2016 Strategies


2016 Success Indicators











Board of Directors







Vision 
No Albertan Fears Conflict


Albertans Fearlessly Resolve Conflict


Creating options such that no Albertan fears conflict


Building a province where no Albertan fears conflict


Supporting Albertans so that no one need fear conflict


No Albertan Fears Conflict,  


and ADRIA is their trusted source of ADR expertise.


because they choose ADR First.


and ADR is their first choice.







Mission 
To provide leadership and services in appropriate dispute resolution (ADR) to our 
members by:


• Fostering excellence in negotiation, mediation, arbitration, and restorative practices


• Supporting the viable practice of ADR in Alberta


• Providing excellence in ADR professional development


• Promoting the ethical use of ADR processes


• Maintaining accreditation standards, accountability and designations for the ADR profession


• Encouraging those practicing in ADR to join our organization


Notes for Board consideration:  


Our Vision is public focussed on Albertans, but our Mission statement is exclusively 
focussed on the ADR profession and our membership.


Should the Board revisit the Mission in advance of rebranding?


For example, a revised Mission statement could include:


• Connecting Albertans with ADR resources and expertise  [supports both Vision and Marketing] 







Our Values 
Excellence


We challenge ourselves to deliver the highest quality programs and services. We stay abreast of new 
ideas and developments and seek out changes and innovations that help us continuously raise the 


bar in everything we do.


Uncompromising Ethics
We treat others with honesty, openness, fairness and respect in every situation.


Collaboration
We value different views and ideas and believe that by working effectively together and with others 


we can reach our goals. We embrace the opportunity to explore mutual interests and new 
relationships. We welcome opportunities to leverage our resources through partnering.


Accountability
We steward our resources with diligence and care. We honour the commitments we make to others.


Leadership
We will promote new and important directions and opportunities for our profession and our 


organization, even though the path may be difficult. We recognize that it is only through trying new 
ideas and learning from our failures that we can grow and move forward.







Key Marketing Messages 
All Audiences:


ADRIA is the source of ADR information, resources and expertise in Alberta


Members:


ADRIA membership is valuable & beneficial


Public:


ADR is the FIRST choice for preventing and managing conflict


Business & Organizations:


ADR is the BEST choice for preventing and managing conflict







Strategic Directions (Goals) 


1. Enhance the value, awareness, reputation of and access to ADR services.


2. Strengthen our Profession.


3. Strengthen ADRIA as a membership organization.


4. Strengthen the long term sustainability of ADRIA.







2015 Strategies (recently resequenced)


1. Promote ADR Awareness within the General Public, Government and Business Sectors


2. Develop New Revenue Streams


3. Increase ADRIA’s Profile by Forging Strategic Partnerships


4. Increase the Value of ADRIA/ADRIC Membership to Practising  ADR Professionals 


5. Promote Chartered Designations, internally and externally


6. Provide Leadership to Strengthen Alberta’s ADR Community 


7. Promote ADR Training and the Q. Designations to Key Professions as a Valuable    
Secondary Qualification 


8. Engaging New ADR Practitioners


9. Promote High Professional Standards & Ethical Conduct


10. Maximize the Potential of Technology


11. Adopt Best Business Practices 







ADRIA 2015 
Achievements & Challenges (to date)







2015 Strategies (recently resequenced)


1. Promote ADR Awareness within the General Public, Government and Business Sectors


2. Develop New Revenue Streams


3. Increase ADRIA’s Profile by Forging Strategic Partnerships


4. Increase the Value of ADRIA/ADRIC Membership to Practising  ADR Professionals 


5. Promote Chartered Designations, internally and externally


6. Provide Leadership to Strengthen Alberta’s ADR Community 


7. Promote ADR Training and the Q. Designations to Key Professions as a Valuable    
Secondary Qualification 


8. Engaging New ADR Practitioners


9. Promote High Professional Standards & Ethical Conduct


10. Maximize the Potential of Technology


11. Adopt Best Business Practices 







1. Promote ADR Awareness within the General Public, Government and Business Sectors 


• New ADRIA website, updated/new content, enhanced public face


• Conflict Resolution Day website, committee work and ADRIA promotion


• ADR Directory launched


• Developmental work on ADRIC & ADRIA Organizational Memberships


• Blog for non-profit organizations in conflict


• Introductory ADR instruction to GOA DRN Conference


• Public Complaint Policy


• Reforming the Family Justice System initiative


• Private Training Contracts (limited)


• Requests for Consultations







2. Develop New Revenue Streams


• Led ADRIC Corporate & Organization membership review


• ADRIA Organizational marketing content developed


• Website being prepared for organizational recognition


• Select & Appoint marketing content developed


• Private contracts (limited, impacted by downturn)


• DRN Conference admin


• Leading Designation Marketing Subcommittee


• No new rosters, but participating in ADRIC Subcommittee


• Casino revenues untapped











3. Increase ADRIA’s Profile by Forging Strategic Partnerships


• Signed MOU with PMAST


• Draft MOUs with NCSA, and working on the AFMS


• Leadership & engagement with ADRIC – committees, conference, etc.


• Leadership within the community of ADRIC Regional Affiliates


• GOA consultations, assistance and service on Advisory Groups


• ADR Conference partnerships being explored for 2016/17


• Networking event collaborations


• Promotion of non-ADRIA non-profit events and training







4. Increase the Value of ADRIA/ADRIC Membership to Practising  ADR Professionals 


• ADR Directory


• March Insurance overhaul


• Professional Development & Networking opportunities, with new courses


• Job Board, references and referrals


• Advocacy White Paper, and public awareness measures


• Monthly Newsletter, including a listing all ADR activities available


• Volunteer opportunities


• Contracts awarded (Instructors, Coaches, Select & Appoint, Design, etc)


• Designations promoted


• Multi-province ADRI membership discounts 


• Bridging the Distance measures with better IT solutions


• Enhanced website, and an 18 month course planning schedule


• etc.











5. Promote Chartered Designations, internally and externally


• Marsh Insurance discount


• ADR Directory


• Public information on website


• Promotional materials in development


• Preferential selection


• Advocacy efforts







6. Provide Leadership to Strengthen Alberta’s ADR Community 


• Joint Networking, luncheon, PDev and conference activities


• CR Day website and activities


• Active support to the RFJS initiative, co-lead for the DR Sector 


• Serving on ADR hiring boards


• University & College Advisory Groups


• Website as a public source of ADR information, resources and expertise


• MOUs and collaboration with the non-profit ADR community, GOA, etc


• Support to ADRIC and other Affiliates











7. Promote ADR Training and the Q. Designations to Key 
Professions as a Valuable Secondary Qualification 


• Conflict Management for HR Professionals course piloted


• Outreach to CBA Alberta Chapter events


• Promotional materials in early development


• Much work to be done in this area







8. Engaging New ADR Practitioners 


• High Standards of training, membership support and services


• Certificates and Designations


• Increased emphasis on IT, social media and web-based interaction


• Mediation Skills Practice, Coaching, Mentorship opportunities


• ADRIA & ADRIC course provision, with membership requirements


• Partnerships/Outreach to educational institutions, including service on AGs


• Networking and Conference opportunities


• Job Board now only accessible by members


• Volunteer opportunities


• Starting an ADR Business workshops (infrequently)











9.  Promote High Professional Standards & Ethical Conduct


• Course development work for ADRIC completed


• Working with ADRIC on National Training Committee(s)


• Pressure on ADRIC to revise/update codes and standards 


• MDC & ADC TORs and succession planning


• Updates to designation application procedures


• Consultations with The Ethicals







10. Maximize the Potential of Technology 


• New website (Wild Apricot), Newsletters and membership database


• Service on ADRIC IT Committee


• Virtual AGM


• Bridging the Distance Committee


• Use of inexpensive Zoom technology in lieu of teleconferencing


• Online ADR Directory


• Online Mediation Skills Practice sessions


• Online payment system improved


• Online registrations for events


• Expanded use of Social Media







11. Adopt Best Business Practices 


• Strategic & Business Planning Processes improved


• Quarterly Financial Reviews and Business Unit Report


• Restructured Audit Report, using business lines


• Simplified cheque signing procedures and oversight


• Compliance issues addresses (FOIP, Privacy, Security, CASL, etc)


• Filings maintained with Central Registry


• Insurance reviewed and improved


• Marketing & Communications Strategy adopted


• Board Policies updated (ongoing)


• Staff vs Contractor structure revisited (HR)











Strategic Directions (Goals) 


1. Enhance the value, awareness, reputation of and access to ADR services.


2. Strengthen our Profession.


3. Strengthen ADRIA as a membership organization.


4. Strengthen the long term sustainability of ADRIA.







2016 Strategies – any changes? 


1. Promote ADR Awareness within the General Public, Government and Business Sectors


2. Develop New Revenue Streams


3. Increase ADRIA’s Profile by Forging Strategic Partnerships


4. Increase the Value of ADRIA/ADRIC Membership to Practising  ADR Professionals 


5. Promote Chartered Designations, internally and externally


6. Provide Leadership to Strengthen Alberta’s ADR Community 


7. Promote ADR Training and the Q. Designations to Key Professions as a Valuable    
Secondary Qualification 


8. Engaging New ADR Practitioners


9. Promote High Professional Standards & Ethical Conduct


10. Maximize the Potential of Technology


11. Adopt Best Business Practices 







Success Indicators for 2016


Objective vs Subjective


SMART
















 


 
 


 


UNIFORM LAW CONFERENCE OF CANADA 


WORKING GROUP ON ARBITRATION LEGISLATION 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


DOMESTIC ARBITRATION IN CANADA: 


PROPOSALS FOR A NEW UNIFORM 


ARBITRATION ACT 


 


 


 


 


Discussion Paper  
 


 


 


 


June 2015 


 


 







 


 
 


Preface 


 


Several years ago the Uniform Law Conference of Canada established a Working 


Group to recommend changes to the ULCC’s Uniform International Commercial 


Arbitration Act and Uniform Arbitration Act, each of which has been widely 


implemented by provincial and territorial legislation. Phase One (International) of 


the project culminated with ULCC approval of a new Uniform International 


Commercial Arbitration Act in March 2014.  


This Discussion Paper concerns Phase Two, and sets out preliminary text for a 


revised Uniform Arbitration Act (for domestic arbitrations in Canada), 


commentary by the Phase Two Working Group and survey questions to facilitate 


comment. The draft text has not yet been edited by professional legislative 


drafters. It has not been reviewed or approved by the ULCC.  


The members of the Phase Two Working Group encourage readers to review the 


preliminary text and complete the online survey which can be accessed using the 


link provided in the email transmitting this document. We invite comments, 


whether through the survey or by separate communication.  


If a final recommended text is to be presented to the ULCC at its August 2015 


Annual Meeting in Yellowknife, the text must be completed by the end of July. We 


therefore ask that you respond to the survey and provide comments as soon as 


possible, and in any event by July 15, 2015. 


We thank you for your participation in this important project. 


 


                 Gerald W. Ghikas, Q.C. 
    Chair, Phase Two Working Group 


gghikas@ghikasarbitration.com







 


 
 


WORKING GROUP MEMBERS 


Chair: Gerald W. Ghikas, Q.C., Vancouver Arbitration Chambers, 


Vancouver, BC 


Steering Committee: Bryan C. Duguid, Q.C., Jensen Shawa Solomon Duiguid Hawkes 


LLP, Calgary, AB 


John D. Gregory, Ministry of Attorney General, Toronto, ON 


Thomas G. Heintzman, Q.C., Heintzman ADR, Toronto, ON 


William G. Horton, William G. Horton Professional Corporation, 
Toronto, ON 


Jack Marshall, Q.C., Jack Marshall, Q.C. Professional Corporation, 
Calgary, AB 


Richard J. Olson, McKechnie & Company, Vancouver, BC 


James E. Redmond, Q.C., James E. Redmond, Professional 
Corporation, Edmonton, AB 


Advisory Board Members: Debbie Asirvatham, Borden Ladner Gervais LLP, Vancouver, BC 


Kenneth F. Bailey, Q.C., Parlee McLaws, Edmonton, AB 


Clarence J.  Dwyer, The Centre for Innovative Dispute Resolution, 
Halifax, NS 


Kenneth J. Glasner, Q.C., ADR Chambers, Vancouver, BC 


Angus M. Gunn, Q.C., Borden Ladner Gervais LLP, Vancouver, BC 


Ludmila Herbst, Farris & Company, Vancouver, BC 


Dimitri Maniatis, Langlois Kronström Desjardins, Montréal, QC 


Augustus Richardson, Q.C., Alternative Dispute Resolution 
Services Inc., Halifax, NS  


Sylvie Scherrer, Justice Québec, Québec, QC 


Joel Richler, Blakes, Toronto, ON 


Bevin Worton, University of Ottawa Faculty of Law, Ottawa, ON 







 


1 
 


Table of Contents 
Part 1 – INTRODUCTORY MATTERS ..................................................................................................................... 1 


Section 1: Purpose and Objectives of the Act ................................................................................................. 1 


Section 2: Definitions ...................................................................................................................................... 1 


Section 3: Application of Act ........................................................................................................................... 3 


Section 4: Contracting Out .............................................................................................................................. 5 


Section 5: Waiver of Right to Object ............................................................................................................... 7 


Part 2– COURT INTERVENTION............................................................................................................................ 8 


Section 6: Court Intervention Limited ............................................................................................................. 8 


Section 7: Stay of Court Proceedings .............................................................................................................. 8 


Part 3 – ARBITRATION AGREEMENTS ................................................................................................................ 13 


Section 8: Separability of Arbitration Agreement ......................................................................................... 13 


Section 9: Consolidation of Arbitrations ....................................................................................................... 15 


Part 4 – COMMENCEMENT OF ARBITRAL PROCEEDINGS ................................................................................. 18 


Section 10: Limitation Periods ....................................................................................................................... 18 


Section 11: Commencement of Proceedings ................................................................................................ 19 


Section 12: Power of Arbitral Tribunal to Decide Limitations Issues ............................................................ 22 


Part 5 – CONSTITUTING THE ARBITRAL TRIBUNAL ............................................................................................ 23 


Section 13: Number of Arbitrators ................................................................................................................ 23 


Section 14: Procedure for Appointment of Arbitrators ................................................................................ 24 


Section 15: Independence and Impartiality of Arbitrators ........................................................................... 25 


Section 16: Immunity of Arbitrators .............................................................................................................. 27 


Part 6 – REMOVAL AND REPLACEMENT OF ARBITRATORS ............................................................................... 28 


Section 17: No Revocation of Appointment .................................................................................................. 28 


Section 18: Challenge and Removal of Arbitrator ......................................................................................... 28 


Section 19: Termination of Arbitrator’s Mandate ......................................................................................... 31 


Section 20: Appointment of Substitute Arbitrator ........................................................................................ 31 


Part 7 – JURISDICTION OF THE ARBITRAL TRIBUNAL ........................................................................................ 32 


Section 21: Arbitral Tribunal’s Power to Determine its Own Jurisdiction ..................................................... 32 


Part 8 – POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE ARBITRAL TRIBUNAL AND THE PARTIES .............................................. 36 


Section 22: General Duties of the Arbitral Tribunal ...................................................................................... 36 







 


2 
 


Section 23: General Duties of the Parties ..................................................................................................... 37 


Section 24: Legal or Other Representation ................................................................................................... 37 


Section 25: Law Applicable to the Substance of the Dispute ........................................................................ 38 


Section 26: Conflict of Laws ........................................................................................................................... 39 


Section 27: Application of Specific Agreed Standards ................................................................................... 39 


Section 28: Hearing Location ......................................................................................................................... 40 


Section 29: Evidence ...................................................................................................................................... 40 


Section 30: Arbitrators’ Authority to Determine Procedural Matters .......................................................... 41 


Section 31: Powers of Tribunal in Case of Party Default ............................................................................... 44 


Section 32: Powers of Tribunal to Request Evidence from Non-Parties ....................................................... 47 


Section 33: Power of Tribunal to Appoint an Expert ..................................................................................... 50 


Section 34: Mediation and Conciliation ........................................................................................................ 52 


Part 9 – INTERIM MEASURES ............................................................................................................................. 54 


Section 35: Powers of Arbitral Tribunal Concerning Interim Measures ........................................................ 54 


Section 36: Preliminary Orders ...................................................................................................................... 54 


Section 37: Specific Regime for Preliminary Orders ...................................................................................... 55 


Section 38: Modification, Suspension, Termination ..................................................................................... 57 


Section 39: Provision of security ................................................................................................................... 58 


Section 40: Disclosure ................................................................................................................................... 58 


Section 41: Costs and Damages ..................................................................................................................... 58 


Section 42: Enforcement of Interim Measures ............................................................................................. 59 


Section 43: Grounds for Refusing Enforcement of Interim Measures .......................................................... 59 


Section 44: Powers of Court Concerning Interim Measures ......................................................................... 60 


Part 10 – AWARDS AND TERMINATION OF ARBITRAL PROCEEDINGS .............................................................. 60 


Section 45: Majority Decision ........................................................................................................................ 60 


Section 46: Form of Award ............................................................................................................................ 61 


Section 47: Delivery of Award to Parties ....................................................................................................... 61 


Section 48: Extension of Time Limit for Award ............................................................................................. 63 


Section 49: Corrections, Clarifications and Additional Awards ..................................................................... 63 


Section 50: Partial Awards ............................................................................................................................. 64 


Section 51: Binding Nature of Award ............................................................................................................ 65 


Section 52: Awards Concerning Costs ........................................................................................................... 65 







 


3 
 


Section 53: Arbitral Tribunal’s Fees and Expenses ........................................................................................ 68 


Section 54: Termination of proceedings ....................................................................................................... 70 


Section 55: Interest ....................................................................................................................................... 71 


Part 11 – RECOURSE AGAINST AND ENFORCEMENT OF AWARDS .................................................................... 72 


Section 56: Appeals on Questions of Law ..................................................................................................... 72 


Section 57: Setting Aside Awards .................................................................................................................. 77 


Section 58: Time Limit for Appeals and Applications to Set Aside ................................................................ 84 


Section 59: Further Appeal ............................................................................................................................ 84 


Section 60: Enforcement of Awards .............................................................................................................. 85 


Section 61: Limitation Period for Enforcement Proceedings ........................................................................ 88 


Part 12 – ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS .................................................................................................................. 89 


Section 62: Confidentiality of Arbitral Proceedings ...................................................................................... 89 


Section 63: Delivery ....................................................................................................................................... 90 


Section 64: Crown Bound .............................................................................................................................. 92 


Section 65: Transitional ................................................................................................................................. 93 


 


 


 







 


 


Uniform Arbitration Act 
June 2015 Preliminary Draft 


 


Part 1 – INTRODUCTORY MATTERS 
 


Purpose and Objectives of the Act 
 


1. The purpose of this Act is to facilitate the use of arbitration as an alternative 
to court proceedings by recognizing the following principles - 


 
(a) subject to certain minimum procedural requirements from which 


parties may not derogate, parties should be free to agree on the 
process by which their disputes are to be resolved;  
 


(b) courts should not intervene in arbitral proceedings except for the 
purposes expressly authorized by this Act. 


 


Commentary: This Section is new. It states the purpose of the Act, which then is 
achieved through the Act’s other provisions. Section 5 sets out those provisions 
that are mandatory and from which the parties may not derogate. Section 7 
states that courts cannot intervene unless expressly authorized by the Act. Other 
provisions describe when court involvement is authorized.   
 
Survey Question: 
 
SQ1 Is it appropriate to include a statement of the purposes and objectives of 


the Act? 
 


Definitions  


2. In this Act, 
 


“arbitration agreement” means an agreement, whether written or not and 
whether independent or part of another agreement, by which two or more 







 


2 
 


parties agree to submit to arbitration a dispute, whether contractual or not, 
that has arisen or which may arise between or among them, 


 
“arbitral tribunal” means a sole arbitrator or a panel of more than one 
arbitrator, and includes an umpire and an arbitrator or arbitrators appointed 
for the purposes of an agreed appeal or review process, 
. 
“award” means a final decision of an arbitral tribunal concerning all or part 
of the dispute which is the subject of the arbitration, including a final 
decision concerning jurisdiction or costs, but does not include an order or 
decision of an arbitral tribunal concerning a matter of procedure,  
 
“court” means the [enacting jurisdiction to insert name of the relevant 
court], 
 
“mandatory provisions” means those provisions of this Act from which the 
parties  may not derogate, as provided in section 5, 
 


Commentary: The definition of “arbitration agreement” is revised to make clear 
that arbitrable disputes are not limited to contractual disputes.  
 
The definition of “arbitral tribunal” replaces the definition of “arbitrator” in 
keeping with the approach taken in the Model Law. Consideration was given to 
deleting the reference to “umpire” which appears in the existing Uniform Act. . 
The use of an umpire may be so rare as to justify removing umpires from the 
definition. Arbitrators serving in an agreed review process are included. 
 
The definition of “award” has been substantially revised. The purpose is to 
identify what is and what is not, in substance, an “award” that may be the subject 
of court proceedings as authorized by the Act. Procedural orders of arbitral 
tribunals are not to be treated as “awards.” The term “interim award” is not 
included.  
 
The definition of “court” has not been changed in substance. 
 
A definition of “mandatory provisions” has been added. See the Commentary 
under Section 5. 







 


3 
 


 
Survey Questions:  
 
SQ2 Do you agree that the definition of award should not refer expressly to 


“interim award”? 
 
SQ3 Do you agree that the definition of “arbitrator” should include an umpire? 
 
Application of Act  


3.(1) Except as otherwise provided in this Act, this Act applies to any arbitration 
under an arbitration agreement whether made before or after the coming 
into force of this Act.  


 
(2)  This Act does not apply to an arbitration that is “international” within the 


meaning of [enacting jurisdiction to insert name of enactment implementing 
the Uniform International Arbitration Act], unless the parties have agreed in 
writing that this Act applies. 


 
(3) This Act, other than sections 5, 7, 32(1)(b), (4), (5), (6) and (7), 41, 42, 43, 60 


and 61 does not apply unless the place of arbitration is within [enacting 
jurisdiction].  


 
(4) The place of arbitration is within [enacting jurisdiction] if: 


 
(a)  [enacting jurisdiction] or a place within [enacting jurisdiction] is 


designated as the place or seat of arbitration; or  
 


(b) failing a designation under subsection 4(a), the arbitration laws of 
[enacting jurisdiction] are designated as being applicable; or 


 


(c) failing a designation under subsections 4(a) or (b) the law of [enacting 
jurisdiction] is applicable to the substance of the dispute. 
 


(5) For the purposes of subsections 4(a) and (b) a designation is effective if 
made: 
 
(a) by the parties to the arbitration agreement, or 







 


4 
 


 
(b) failing a designation under subsection (5)(a), by an institution or person 


vested by the parties with powers in that regard. 
 
(6)  In an arbitration dealing with issues governed by [the enacting jurisdiction’s 


statute on family relations], an arbitration agreement shall be enforced only 
to the extent that a [domestic contract] made in similar circumstances would 
be enforced, and an award shall be enforced only to the extent that the 
court could have made the same disposition of the issues that it deals with. 
[NOTE: the text of this section is subject to review and comment by 
members of the family law bar] 


 
(7) Subject to subsection (6), and unless the other enactment provides 


otherwise, this Act applies to an arbitration authorized or required pursuant 
to another enactment of [enacting jurisdiction] and commenced after the 
coming into force of this Act, with such modifications as are necessary to 
give effect to the express provisions of the other enactment; provided that 
in the event of conflict between this Act and the other enactment, the other 
enactment prevails.  


 
Commentary: The Uniform International Commercial Arbitration Act (ICAA) 
defines when an arbitration is considered to be “international” and, thus, 
governed by the ICAA. Proposed Subsection 3(2), above, makes it clear that if the 
arbitration is “international” the proposed new (domestic) Act does not apply, 
unless the parties agree in writing that the domestic Act rather than the ICAA 
applies. The Working Group will recommend to the ULCC that an amendment be 
made to the Uniform ICAA to add the following provision: 
 


This Act does not apply if all parties to the arbitration agree in writing that 
the [enacting jurisdiction to insert name of its enactment governing non-
international arbitration] applies. 
 


Proposed Subsection 3(3) establishes the general rule that the Act does not apply 
if the “place of arbitration” (which is defined in Subsection 3(4)) is not in the 
enacting jurisdiction, and also lists the exceptions to that general rule. 
 
Subsection 6 contemplates that the enacting jurisdictions will (as BC and Ontario 







 


5 
 


already have done) describe in their family law enactments the extent and 
manner to which the new Uniform Arbitration Act will apply to “family 
arbitrations” (e.g. arbitrations under marriage contracts, separation agreements 
etc]  
 
Subsection (7) makes the Act applicable to arbitrations under other enactments 
of the enacting jurisdiction, unless the other enactment states to the contrary. 
The Working Group anticipates that enacting jurisdictions will wish to ensure, for 
example, that labour legislation makes clear that the Act does not apply.   
 
Survey Questions 
 
SQ4 Do you agree that parties to an international arbitration agreement 


should have the ability to “opt-in” to this Act by agreement in writing? 
 
SQ5 Do you agree that the applicability of the Act to family arbitrations is 


best left to be dealt with by family law legislation? 
 
Contracting Out 


4.(1) The parties to an arbitration agreement may agree to vary or exclude any 
provisions of this Act except the following mandatory provisions, from which 
the parties may not derogate: 


 
(a)  Section 3 (Application of Act); 
(b) Section 4 (Contracting Out); 
(c) Section 6 (Court Intervention Limited); 
(d) Section 7 (Stay of Court Proceedings); 
(e) Section 8(3) (Scott v Avery clauses); 
(f) Section 22 (General Duties of the Arbitral Tribunal); 
(g) Section 50 (Binding Nature of Award); 
(h) Section 55 (Recourse Limited); 
(i)  Section 56 (Appeals on Questions of Law); 
(j) Section 57 (Setting Aside Awards); 
(k) Section 60 (Enforcement of Awards); 
(l) Section 64 (Crown Bound; and 
(m) Section 65 (Transitional))   


 







 


6 
 


(2) An agreement to exclude or vary a provision of this Act other than a 
mandatory provision may be express or may arise by implication. 


 
(3) Where an arbitration agreement incorporates by reference arbitration rules, 


those rules form part of the arbitration agreement for the purposes of this 
Act. 


 
Commentary: One purpose of the Act is to respect party autonomy while at the 
same time ensuring that minimum standards of conduct are maintained. This 
Section identifies those requirements of the Act which set minimum standards 
from which the parties should not be able to derogate.  
 
Section 3 – the applicability of the Act, and hence the jurisdiction of local courts in 
arbitral matters, should prima facie be decided by the legislature. The parties 
should be able to expand or reduce that jurisdiction only as expressly permitted in 
the Act.  
 
Section 4 –the parties should not be able to circumvent the statutory bars to 
contracting out. That would defeat the purpose of including in the Act a provision 
that prohibits contracting out of certain sections. 
 
Section 6 – the parties should not, by agreement, be able to expand the limited 
jurisdiction of the court to intervene beyond that set out in the Act. 
 
Section 7 – the parties should not be able to contract out of the right to apply to a 
court for a stay of court proceedings or to enlarge the jurisdiction of the court on 
stay applications.  
 
Section 8(3) - this is the section that gives effect to Scott v. Avery clauses.  It is 
mandatory in the existing UAA.  It should be mandatory because it goes to the 
heart of arbitration as an alternative to the court system.  If the parties do not 
want to have a Scott v Avery clause to be given the same effect as an arbitration 
agreement, then the parties should not be agreeing to a Scott v. Avery clause.  
 


Section 22 - this section requires each party to be given a reasonable opportunity 
to present and respond.  This is as fundamental an aspect of arbitration as any.  
So, similar to the reasoning for Section 50 (see below), if parties want to have a 
process that does not have those reasonable opportunities, then they need to 







 


7 
 


agree to something other than arbitration, for instance, expert determination, 
which would put their dispute process outside of this statute entirely. The 
equivalent section in the existing Uniform Act is mandatory. 
                
Section 50 – if the parties wish to have a process that results in a non-binding 
result they should agree to a process other than arbitration. 
 
Section 55 – 57 and 60 - the mechanisms for opting out or opting in to statutory 
rights are embodied in these sections and should not be reduced or expanded by 
agreement. The equivalents of Sections 57 and 60 in the existing Uniform Act are 
mandatory. 
 
SQ6 Do you agree that parties should be able to contract out of the requirement 


for arbitrators to be independent? 
 
SQ7 Do you agree that parties should be able to contract out of the requirement 


that arbitrators be impartial? 
 
Waiver of Right to Object  


5. A party who knows that any provision of this Act from which the parties may 
derogate or any requirement under the arbitration agreement has not been 
complied with and yet proceeds with the arbitration without stating an 
objection to such non-compliance without undue delay or, if a time-limit is 
provided therefor, within such period of time, shall be deemed to have 
waived the right to object. 


Commentary: This is the language of the Model Law and the existing Uniform Act. 
The proposed Section states that the mandatory provisions of the Act cannot be 
waived by acquiescence. The Working Group considered whether this is 
appropriate. The logical conundrum is that it seems to be inconsistent to provide 
that parties cannot derogate from a provision by agreement and at the same time 
provide that one party may derogate from the same provision by waiver. On 
balance, the Working Group concluded that, generally, the failure to make timely 
objections to breaches of mandatory requirements, while undesirable, should not 
preclude a party from pursuing any recourse to which it might otherwise be 
entitled. 
 







 


8 
 


Part 2– COURT INTERVENTION  
 


Court Intervention Limited 


 
6. No court may intervene in matters governed by this Act, except as 


expressly provided by this Act. 
 
Commentary: This is essentially the wording of the original version of Section 6 of 
the existing Uniform Act.  Because of concerns arising from several decisions in 
which courts had decided that they retained discretion to intervene in arbitral 
proceedings despite the clear wording of the section, the ULCC amended section 
6 to read as follows: 
 


No court may intervene in matters governed by this Act, except as 
provided by this Act and for the following purposes: 
 
(a) to assist the arbitration process; 
(b) to ensure that an arbitration is carried on in accordance with 


the arbitration agreement; 
(c) to prevent manifestly unfair or unequal treatment of a party to 


an arbitration agreement; 
(d) to enforce awards. 


 
The added words were intended to reinforce the limitation on court intervention 
to those matters specifically set out in the Act.  However, since that amendment, 
there have been cases in several jurisdictions where the added subsections have 
been interpreted as giving the court a broader discretion to intervene.  The 
approach taken in the present draft is to revert to a clear general prohibition on 
court intervention subject only to intervention expressly authorized by another 
provision of the Act. 
 
Stay of Court Proceedings 


7(1) If a party commences a court proceeding in respect of a matter that another 
party to the court proceeding alleges is the subject of an arbitration 
agreement, the court in which the proceeding is commenced shall, at the 
request of the other party made before that other party has taken any other 







 


9 
 


steps in the court proceeding, refer the parties to arbitration, unless the 
court finds that 


(a) the court proceeding is not in respect of any matter that is the subject 
of an arbitration agreement; 
 


(b) a party against whom the arbitration agreement is sought to be 
enforced entered into the arbitration agreement while under a legal 
incapacity;  


 
(c) the arbitration agreement does not exist or is null and void or 


unenforceable; or 
 


(d) the dispute is not capable of being the subject of arbitration under 
[enacting jurisdiction] law. 


 
(2) An arbitration of the dispute may be commenced and continued while a 


request under subsection (1) is before the court.   


(3) If the court refers the parties to arbitration concerning any matter, the court 
shall stay the court proceedings in respect of that matter. 


(4) If the court refers the parties to arbitration without making a finding 
concerning the existence or non-existence of any of the circumstances 
described in subsections 1(a) – (d), that does not preclude an arbitral 
tribunal from making a finding that such a  circumstance exists. 


(5) If the court finds that one or more of the circumstances described in 
subsections 1(a) – (d) exists in respect of all or some of the matters in 
dispute in the court proceeding, then in respect of those matters only  


(a) the court proceeding may continue;  
 


(b) no arbitration of the dispute shall be commenced, and 
 


(c) an arbitration that has been commenced shall not be continued, and 
anything done in connection with the arbitration before the court made 
its decision is without effect. 


 







 


10 
 


Commentary: This is one of the most important provisions in the Act. It ensures 
that arbitration agreements are respected and enforced by the courts. It also has 
an impact on the applicability of the competence competence principle whereby 
arbitrators can, and generally should, make the first determination of their own 
jurisdiction. In Dell Computer Corp v  Union des consumatteurs 2007 SCC 34 the 
Supreme Court of Canada held that, except in very limited circumstances (where 
it is possible to do so on the basis of documents and pleadings filed by the parties 
without having to hear evidence or make findings about its relevance and 
reliability, in which case the court may choose to decide the issue) consistent 
with the competence competence principle a court should refer all issues 
concerning arbitrator jurisdiction, including issues relating to the validity or 
applicability of the arbitration agreement, to the arbitral tribunal. That finding 
was informed by an analysis of the language of the UNCITRAL Model Law and the 
New York Convention, which, the Court observed, permitted, but did not require 
a court to decide contested issues of jurisdiction. In that regard, the phrase “shall 
refer the parties to arbitration unless the court finds” in those two instruments is 
important, as it leaves open the question of whether any finding at all need be 
made by the court. 
 
The text of the existing Uniform Arbitration Act departs from the language of the 
Model Law and the Convention. Subsections 7(1) and (2) are as follows: 
 


7(1) If a party to an arbitration agreement commences a proceeding in 
respect of a matter to be submitted to arbitration under the agreement, 
the court in which the proceeding is commenced shall, on the motion of 
another party to the arbitration agreement, stay the proceeding. 


 
(2) However, the court may refuse to stay the proceeding in any of the 


following cases: 
(a) a party entered into the arbitration agreement while under a legal 


capacity; 
(b) the arbitration agreement is invalid; 
(c) the subject-matter of the dispute is not capable of being the 


subject of arbitration under the law of (enacting jurisdiction) even 
if the parties expressly agree to submit the dispute to arbitration; 


(d) the motion was brought with undue delay; 
(e) the matter is a proper one for default or summary judgment. 







 


11 
 


 
Although the power to refuse a stay is clearly discretionary, it may be less 
clear than desirable that the court can decline to decide whether any of the 
cases listed under subsections 7(2)(a) to (e) exist, and simply refer those 
questions, also, to the arbitral tribunal. The new proposed text is intended to 
make this clear. 
 
It might be argued that on its face, the language of the Model Law, the 
Convention and the existing Uniform Arbitration Act requires a court to decide 
whether the plaintiff in the court proceeding is “a party to an arbitration 
agreement” before the court can decide a stay application. Whether an 
arbitration agreement exists and, if so, who may enforce it and against whom it 
may be enforced, can be very complex questions and can engage an examination 
of multiple potentially applicable laws. In practice, however, it is clear (see Dell) 
that questions relating not only to the existence and scope of an arbitration 
agreement but also to the parties as between whom the arbitration agreement 
can be enforced are generally to be left for the arbitral tribunal in the first 
instance. Subsection 7(1) of the proposed new text refers to a “proceeding in 
respect of a matter that another party to the court proceeding alleges is the 
subject of an arbitration agreement” to more clearly give effect to the legislative 
intent, recognized by the Supreme Court, that a court is not required to make a 
definitive finding as to whether the plaintiff in the court proceeding is a party to 
the relevant arbitration agreement. Subsections 7(1)(a) and 7(4) have been added 
for the same reason. 
 
Under the existing Uniform Arbitration Act, a court was empowered to refuse a 
stay if it considered that there was undue delay or the matter is a proper one for 
default or summary judgment. Under the proposed new text these circumstances 
would no longer justify refusing a stay.  The timing of the stay request is already 
addressed under subsection 7(1) by requiring that the request be made before 
taking any other step in the court proceeding. The mere fact that arbitration 
procedures typically require a claimant to prove its case, at least on a prima facie 
basis, before an award is made, rather than replicating default or summary 
judgment processes available under some court rules, does not justify eroding 
the commitment to arbitration over litigation. 
 
Subsections 7(5) and (6) of the existing Uniform Arbitration Act state: 







 


12 
 


 
(5) The court may stay the proceedings with respect to the matters dealt 


with in the arbitration agreement and allow it to continue with respect 
to other matters if it finds that, 


 
(a) the agreement deals with only some of the matters in respect of 


which the proceeding was commenced; and 
(b) it is reasonable to separate the matters dealt with in the 


agreement from the other matters. 
 


(6) There is no appeal from the court’s decision. 
 
This provision suggests that where a court finds that it is not “reasonable” to 
separate matters required to be arbitrated from those not required to be 
arbitrated, the court could refuse a stay, and that the court’s finding on that issue 
is final and binding. The proposed new text deletes subsections 7(5) and (6).  This 
is consistent with the approach recommended by the Alberta Law Reform 
Institute and reflects a consensus that the risk of multiple proceedings or 
conflicting decisions should not outweigh the risk that parties wishing to avoid 
their commitment to arbitrate, or to delay or disrupt arbitral proceedings,  might 
commence an action which includes claims that are both within and without the 
scope of the arbitration agreement or unnecessarily names persons who are not 
parties to the arbitration agreement for tactical reasons. Under the proposed 
new text the court would be mandated to stay the action with respect to the 
matters and the parties that are or may be within the reach of the arbitration 
agreement, but if, applying the Dell test, it is clear that there are claims and 
parties to which the arbitration agreement does not apply, the court can allow 
the court proceedings to continue in relation to those claims.  
 
Survey Questions 
 
SQ8 Do you agree with the proposed new formulation of the circumstances in 


which the court may grant a stay as set out in Section 7(1)? 
 
SQ9 Do you agree that former subsections 7(5) and (6) should not be carried 


forward into the new Act? 
 







 


13 
 


SQ10 Do you think that the court should have the power to over-ride a 
commitment to arbitrate and to require that all claims be litigated in court 
where not doing so would result in a multiplicity of proceedings concerning 
related matters and potentially inconsistent results? 


 


Part 3 – ARBITRATION AGREEMENTS 
 


Separability of Arbitration Agreement 


 


8(1) An arbitration agreement which forms or was intended to form part of 
another agreement shall not be regarded as non-existent, null and void or 
unenforceable solely because that other agreement is non-existent, null and 
void or unenforceable, and it shall for that purpose be treated as a distinct 
agreement.  


 


(2)  A reference in an agreement to a written form of arbitration clause or to a 
document containing an arbitration clause constitutes an arbitration 
agreement if the reference is such as to make that clause part of the 
agreement. 


 


(3) An agreement requiring or having the effect of requiring that a matter be 
adjudicated by arbitration before it may be dealt with by a court has the 
same effect as an arbitration agreement. 


 


(4) An arbitration agreement may be revoked only in accordance with the 
ordinary rules of contract law. 


 


Commentary: Subsections 5(1) and 5(3) of the existing Uniform Arbitration Act 
are now included in the definition of “arbitration agreement” in Section 2.  
Subsection 5(2) of the existing Uniform Arbitration Act has been deleted. It states: 


 
(2) If the parties to an arbitration agreement make a further agreement in 


connection with the arbitration, it is deemed to form part of the 
arbitration agreement. 







 


14 
 


 


Arbitration agreements are to be construed and applied in accordance with 
whatever law is found to be applicable. It does not seem necessary to single out 
only the issue of the effectiveness of “a further agreement in connection with the 
arbitration.” It also is not clear whether the existing clause is limited to an 
agreement that supplements an arbitration agreement or also speaks to an 
agreement to amend it. Nor is it clear whether the effect of this provision might 
be that a supplementary agreement made in the course of a single arbitration 
proceeding might then apply to all future arbitrations. 


 


Subsections 5(4) and 5(5) of the existing Uniform Arbitration Act are carried 
forward as Subsections 8(3) and 8(4). 


 
Subsection 8(1) is new, although Canadian Courts consistently have recognized 
and applied the principle of severability. The text says the arbitration agreement 
is not invalid solely because the other agreement is invalid. There may be cases 
where an alleged arbitration agreement is ineffective for other reasons. 


 
The consensus is that nothing need be included in the Act to authorize the 
formation of arbitration agreements by electronic communications, because the 
Act expressly does not require that arbitration agreements be in writing. 
 
It is sometimes necessary to determine whether an arbitration agreement exists 
and, if so, on what terms. This can give rise to the question of what law is 
applicable to the notionally, or perhaps actually, separate arbitration agreement. 
Art. 3121 of the Civil Code of Quebec states: 
 


3121. 
 


Failing any designation by the parties, an arbitration agreement is governed 
by the law applicable to the principal contract or, where that law invalidates 
the agreement, by the law of the country where arbitration takes place. 
 


An alternative provision might be: 
 







 


15 
 


Failing any designation by the parties, an arbitration agreement is governed 
by the law of the place of arbitration or, where that law invalidates the 
agreement, the law applicable to the substantive contract. 


 
However, there is no clear consensus that any such a provision is needed in the 
new Act. 
 
Survey Questions 
 
SQ11 Do you think it would be useful to include a provision describing how the 


law applicable to the arbitration agreement should be identified?  


 
Consolidation of Arbitrations 


9(1) If all parties to two or more arbitral proceedings have agreed to consolidate 
those proceedings, after having exhausted any agreed procedure to carry out 
the consolidation, and unless prohibited by that agreed procedure, a party, 
with notice to the others, may apply to the [enacting jurisdiction to 
designate appropriate court] for an order that the proceedings be 
consolidated as agreed to by the parties. 


 
(2) Subsection (1) does not prohibit parties from consolidating arbitral 


proceedings without a court order. 
 
(3) On an application under subsection (1), if all parties to the arbitral 


proceedings have agreed to consolidate the proceedings but have not 
agreed, through the adopting of procedural rules or otherwise, 


 
(a) to the designation of parties as claimants or respondents or a method 


for making those designations; or 
 


(b) to the method for determining the composition of the arbitral tribunal 
the court may,  


 
subject to subsection (4), make an order deciding either or both of those 
matters. 


 







 


16 
 


(4) If the arbitral proceedings are under different arbitration agreements, no 
order shall be made under subsection (1) unless, by their arbitration 
agreements or otherwise, the parties have agreed 


 
(a) to the same place of arbitration or a method for determining a single 


place of arbitration for the consolidated proceeding within [enacting 
jurisdiction]; 


 
(b) to the same procedural rules or a method for determining a single set of 


procedural rules for the conduct of the consolidated proceedings; and 
 


(c) either to have the consolidated proceedings administered by the same 
arbitral institution or to have the consolidated proceedings not be 
administered by any arbitral institution. 


 
(5) In making an order under this section, the court may have regard to any 


circumstances that it considers relevant, including 
 


(a) whether one or more arbitrators have been appointed in one or more 
of the arbitral proceedings; 


 
(b) whether the applicant delayed applying for the order; and 


 
(c) whether any material prejudice to any of the parties or any injustice 


may result from making an order. 
 
Commentary: Various legislative drafters and arbitral institutions have 
tackled the question of avoiding multiple arbitration proceedings involving similar 
parties or similar facts. However, given the basic principle that arbitration is 
strictly a creature of the agreement of the parties, and that only those parties 
who have agreed to arbitrate any given dispute can be compelled to do so, they 
have generally arrived at the position that they should not provide for 
consolidation of arbitrations unless the parties to those arbitrations have agreed 
to consolidate. 
 
There have been various approaches to the problem.  The UK Arbitration Act, 
1996, has simply stipulated that the parties are free to agree that their arbitral 







 


17 
 


proceedings be consolidated, but unless the parties agree to confer such power 
on the tribunal, it has no power to order consolidation.   In Australia, a somewhat 
more activist approach has been taken (e.g. New South Wales and Queensland).  
The matter of consolidation has been approached on an “opt-out” basis – certain 
powers of consolidation are given to an arbitral tribunal upon application by a 
party, but the section begins with the words “unless otherwise agreed by the 
parties.” So unless the parties have opted out, where there are arbitral 
proceedings with common questions of fact or law or involving relief claimed in 
respect of the same or a series of transactions, or for some other reason where “it 
is desirable that an order be made”, consolidation made be ordered by the 
tribunal(s).   
 
In Canada, the ULCC, on the recommendation of the Working Group included in 
its new Uniform International Arbitration Act section 9, which approaches the 
matter on the basis that consolidation requires the agreement of the parties to 
the arbitral proceedings, but gives the court power to provide assistance to the 
parties in carrying out that agreement, unless the parties have agreed to other 
mechanics for consolidation.  The proposed section mirrors the wording of the 
new Uniform International Act. 
 
The Working Group has considered whether proposed subsections 9(1) and (2), 
without more, would be sufficient and whether the balance of the proposed 
Section invites undue court intervention. The preponderant view is that 
subsections (3), (4) and (5) are needed to limit the extent of court involvement 
and to give the court guidance concerning factors that should be considered when 
asked to order consolidation. 


  
Survey Questions: 
 
SQ12 Do you agree that consolidation of arbitrations should only occur where the 


parties have agreed to consolidate? 


 
SQ13 Do you agree that it is helpful to have a provision in the new Uniform Act 


allowing a court to enforce consolidation agreements? 


 
SQ14 Do you agree that proposed subsections (3) – (5) provide useful  direction to 


a court as to when and when not to make an order for consolidation? 







 


18 
 


 


Part 4 – COMMENCEMENT OF ARBITRAL PROCEEDINGS 
 
Limitation Periods 


10(1) The law with respect to limitation periods applies to an arbitration as if the 
arbitration were a court proceeding. 


  
(2)  Where a court proceeding is commenced and it is determined by the court 


that 


(a)  a claim made in the court proceeding was required to be made in 
arbitral proceedings rather than in court proceedings; or  


(b)  the court proceeding is stayed pursuant to Section 7;  


provided that the claim is made in an arbitral proceeding within 30 days after the 
court’s determination, any limitation period applicable to that claim under 
[enacting jurisdiction to insert name of its Limitations Act] does not run during the 
period from the date that the claim was made in the court proceeding to the date 
the claim is made in the arbitral proceeding.   


(3) Where an arbitral proceeding is commenced and  


(a) a claim made in the arbitral proceeding is dismissed or the arbitral 
proceeding is suspended or terminated in respect of a claim because 
the arbitral tribunal or a court determines in accordance with this Act 
that the claim was required to be made in court proceedings rather 
than arbitral proceedings; or 
 


(b) an award made in respect of a claim is set aside by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, or such a court refuses to enforce such an award, because 
it determines that the claim is required to be made in court proceedings 
rather than in arbitral proceedings; 


 
provided that the claim is made in court proceedings within 30 days after the 
determination of the court or arbitral tribunal, any limitation period 
applicable to that claim under the [enacting jurisdiction to insert name of its 
Limitations Act] does not run during the period from the date that the claim 







 


19 
 


was made in the arbitral proceeding to the date the claim is made in the 
court proceeding.   


 
Commentary: Subsection (1) makes the limitations regimes for arbitration and 
court proceedings the same.  Subsections 10(2) and (3) are carried forward from 
the existing Uniform Arbitration Act. 
 
Proposed subsections 10(2) and (3) toll the limitation period for arbitral or court 
proceedings if a claim is pursued in the wrong venue in the first instance and the 
limitation legislation of the enacting jurisdiction applies; it would be ineffective to 
alter the limitation law of another jurisdiction.  
 
Survey Questions 
 
SQ15 Do you agree that the running of time for limitation period purposes should 


be tolled as provided by proposed subsections 10(2) and (3)? 
 
Commencement of Proceedings 


11(1) If the parties have agreed how arbitral proceedings are to be commenced, 
then arbitral proceedings shall be commenced in accordance with that 
agreement. 


 
(2) If the parties have not agreed how arbitral proceedings are to be 


commenced, then arbitral proceedings are commenced when: 
 


(a) a party to an arbitration agreement delivers to the other party or 
parties a notice appointing an arbitrator or requesting the other party 
or parties to participate in the appointment of an arbitrator under the 
arbitration agreement; 


 
(b) if the arbitration agreement gives a person who is not a party to the 


arbitration agreement the power to appoint an arbitrator, one party 
delivers a notice requesting that person to exercise the power of 
appointment and delivers  a copy of the notice to the other party or 
parties; or 


 







 


20 
 


(c) a party to an arbitration agreement delivers to the other party or 
parties a notice demanding arbitration under the arbitration 
agreement. 


 
(3)  If a notice delivered under subsection (2) does not contain a concise 


description of the matter in dispute, a party or person receiving the notice 
may deliver to the party who delivered the notice a written request for such 
a description. 


 
(4) A party receiving a written request under subsection (3) will, within ten (10) 


days after delivery of the request, or such additional time as the arbitral 
tribunal considers appropriate, deliver to the requesting party and each 
other person or party to whom the original notice was delivered, a concise 
description of the matter in dispute. 


 
(5) The failure of a party to comply with subsection (4) does not render a notice 


delivered under subsection (2) invalid or ineffective to commence an arbitral 
proceeding, but the arbitral tribunal may order that the proceeding be 
stayed or suspended until such time as a concise description of the matter in 
dispute is delivered.  


 
Commentary: It is important to be able to establish with certainty not only that 
arbitral proceedings have been commenced but also precisely when they were 
commenced. Institutional arbitration rules generally address these issues. Many 
arbitration agreements also state how proceedings are to be commenced. The 
text of the existing Uniform Arbitration Act states: 
 


23(1) An arbitration may be commenced in any way recognized by law, 
including the following: 


(a) a party to an arbitration agreement serves on the other 
parties notice to appoint or to participate in the appointment 
of an arbitrator under the agreement; 


(b) if the arbitration agreement gives a person who is not a party 
power to appoint an arbitrator, one party serves notice to 
exercise that power on the person and serves a copy of the 
notice on the other parties; or 







 


21 
 


(c) a party serves on the other parties a notice demanding 
arbitration under the agreement. 


 
(2)  The arbitral tribunal may exercise its powers when every member has 


accepted appointment. 
 


The proposed new subsection 11(1) adds a clear statement that if an arbitration 
agreement or rules incorporated by reference state how and when arbitral 
proceedings are commenced, the agreement of the parties is determinative. 
 
Subsection 11(2) uses the phrase “deliver” rather than “serve.” Section 63 sets 
out what constitutes delivery and when delivery is deemed to have occurred. In 
addition to other minor changes of expression, subsection 11(2) deletes the 
statement that arbitral proceedings may be commenced in “any way recognized 
by law.” One function of the Act is to set out with certainty what steps will be 
sufficient as a matter of law.  
 
The proposed new Act also omits Section 24 of the existing Uniform Arbitration 
Act, which states as follows: 


 
Matters referred to arbitration 
 
24  A notice that commences an arbitration without identifying the dispute 


is deemed to refer to arbitration all disputes that the arbitration 
agreement entitles the party giving the notice to refer. 


 
The scope of the dispute being submitted to arbitration should be delineated at 
an early stage in the proceeding. The Working Group considered that current 
Section 24 might encourage parties not to state the matter in dispute when giving 
notice of arbitration so as to ensure that the jurisdiction of the arbitrators is as 
broad as possible, leaving the responding party in a state of uncertainty. Art. 944 
of the Quebec Code of Civil Procedure addresses the issue by requiring that the 
notice commencing the arbitration must “specify the matter in dispute.”  
Proposed subsections 11(3) and (4) allow a responding party to request a concise 
description of the matter in dispute to which the commencing party must reply 
within ten days. The proposed section does not render a deficient notice 
ineffective to commence an arbitral proceeding, but gives the arbitral tribunal, 







 


22 
 


once constituted, the power to stay or suspend proceedings. This approach is 
thought to strike a fair balance between requiring that a party describe the 
dispute and invalidating the commencement of proceedings for failure to do so.  
 
Survey Questions 
 
SQ16 Do you agree that the failure to give a concise description of the matter in 


dispute should not render an originating notice ineffective to commence 
arbitral proceedings? 


  
SQ17 Do you agree that the arbitral tribunal, once constituted should have the 


power to stay or suspend proceedings until a concise description of the 
matter in dispute is provided? 


 
Power of Arbitral Tribunal to Decide Limitations Issues 


12 If a party to an arbitration agreement alleges that a claim to which the 
arbitration agreement applies is barred for failure to commence arbitration 
proceedings within the time provided by: 


(a)  the arbitration agreement; or 


(b) the applicable limitation law; 


the arbitration shall continue, the arbitral tribunal shall be constituted and 


the arbitral tribunal shall determine whether the claim is barred as alleged.  


Commentary: This new Section is intended to make clear that the arbitral 
tribunal is empowered to decide limitations defences, including defences that the 
arbitration was not commenced within a time limited by the arbitration 
agreement.  
 
The Arbitration Act (British Columbia) and the Arbitration Act 1996 (England) both 
contain provisions authorizing a court in appropriate circumstances to extend a 
contractual time limit for commencement of proceedings without extending any 
non-contractual limitation period. The BC Act allows the court to extend the time 
for taking a contractually required step to prevent “injustice.” 


 


The Working Group considered that, generally, it would be an undue 







 


23 
 


encroachment on the autonomy of the parties to over-ride their express 
agreement as to the times by which an arbitral proceeding must be commenced 
by including a broadly expressed discretionary power to extend. However, there 
are circumstances when, as matter of law, a party should not be allowed to insist 
on strict compliance with a contractual time limit (e.g. waiver or estoppel). The 
Working Group considered whether it would be appropriate to include a 
provision giving the arbitral tribunal the power to extend contractual time-limits 
for commencement in such circumstances, as does the English Act. The Working 
Group concluded that no such separate provision is required, as the proposed 
provision empowers the arbitral tribunal to take into account any applicable 
legal defences to the strict enforcement of either a contractual or statutory time 
bar.   
 
Survey Questions: 
 
SQ18 Do you agree that it is useful to include a provision to make it clear that 


the arbitral tribunal, rather than the court, is to decide defences based 
on limitation periods? 


 
SQ19 Do you believe that, in addition to giving effect to legal defences to the 


strict of enforcement contractual limitation periods, there should be a 
general discretionary power in the court or the arbitral tribunal to 
extend a contractual time limit for the commencement of arbitral 
proceedings? 


 


Part 5 – CONSTITUTING THE ARBITRAL TRIBUNAL 
 


Number of Arbitrators  


 
13. If the arbitration agreement does not specify the number of arbitrators who 


are to form the arbitral tribunal, it shall be composed of one arbitrator. 
 
Commentary: This provision is carried forward from the existing Uniform 
Arbitration Act. 
 
 







 


24 
 


Procedure for Appointment of Arbitrators 


14(1) If the parties have not agreed on a process for the appointment of the 
arbitral tribunal or, where required, for the selection of a chair 


 
(a) if the arbitral tribunal is composed of a sole arbitrator and the parties 


are unable to agree on the arbitrator, the sole arbitrator shall be 
appointed, upon request of a party, by the court; 


 
(b) if the arbitral tribunal is composed of three arbitrators: 


 


i. each party shall appoint one arbitrator, and the two party-appointed 
arbitrators shall appoint the third arbitrator;  


ii. if a party fails to appoint an arbitrator within thirty days of receipt of 
a request to do so from the other party, or if the two party-
appointed arbitrators fail to agree on the third arbitrator within 
thirty days of their appointment, the appointment shall be made, 
upon request of a party, by the court; and 


iii. the third arbitrator shall serve as chair; 
 


(c) if the number of arbitrators composing the arbitral tribunal is other 
than one or three, then upon request of a party the court shall make all 
appointments and determinations regarding the constitution of the 
tribunal upon which the parties are not able to agree 
 


(2) Where the parties have agreed to an appointment procedure and, 
 


(a) a party fails to act as required under such procedure; or 
 


(b) the parties or arbitrators are unable to reach an agreement expected of 
them under such procedure; or 


 
(c) a third party, including an institution, fails to perform any function 


entrusted to it under such procedure, 
 


any party may request the court to take the necessary step, unless the 
agreement on the appointment procedure provides other means for 
securing the appointment. 







 


25 
 


 
(3) There is no appeal from a court’s decision under this section. 
 
(4) When appointing an arbitral tribunal the court shall have due regard to the 


nature of the dispute, to any qualifications required by the agreement of the 
parties and to such considerations as are likely to secure the appointment of 
an independent and impartial arbitral tribunal. 


 
Commentary: Section 14 deals with two related subjects: first, what is to happen 
if the parties have simply failed to agree on a process for constituting the arbitral 
tribunal and, second, what if there is an agreed process but one or more of the 
participants in the appointment process fails to act. These two important subjects 
are dealt with sparingly in the existing Uniform Arbitration Act. The proposed new 
Section 14 parallels the approach taken in the Model Law. 
 
Proposed Subsection 14(4) is new. It gives direction to the court to have “due 
regard” to specific factors that the Working Group felt should be considered when 
the court is appointing an arbitrator. 
 
Proposed Subsection 14(1)(c) deals with the circumstance where the parties have 
agreed to other than one or three arbitrators, without also agreeing how they are 
to be appointed or how a chair is to be selected. Some members of the Working 
Group felt that such circumstances are so rare that they need not be addressed in 
the Act. 
 
SQ20 Do you think that proposed subsection 14(4) gives sufficient direction to the 


court? 
 
SQ21 Do you think that this section of the Act should address the rare 


circumstance where the number of arbitrators is not one or three? 
 
Independence and Impartiality of Arbitrators  


15(1)   An arbitrator shall be impartial and shall act impartially. 
 
(2)    An arbitrator shall be independent of the parties. 


 







 


26 
 


(3) Before accepting an appointment as arbitrator, a person shall disclose to all 
parties to the arbitration any circumstances of which the person is aware 
that may give rise to justifiable doubts as to the person’s impartiality or 
independence. 


 
(4) An arbitrator who during an arbitration becomes aware of circumstances 


that may give rise to justifiable doubts as to the arbitrator’s impartiality or 
independence shall promptly disclose them to all the parties 
 


Commentary: The standard required under the Model Law, the new Uniform 
International Arbitration Act and most institutional rules, and endorsed by the 
IBA, is expressed by stating that arbitrators must be independent and impartial 
and must disclose any circumstances that may give rise to justifiable doubts as to 
independence or impartiality. The existing Uniform Arbitration Act refers not only 
to that test but also to the “reasonable apprehension of bias” test, which evolved 
in the context of administrative law. Although the two expressions have been 
considered to be co-extensive, the proposed text uses the “independence and 
impartiality” expression to define the applicable standard.  
 
The Working Group considered whether the Act should a requirement that, 
before acceptance, arbitrator candidates should make reasonable inquiries to 
discover circumstances of which they are not actually aware, but which might give 
rise to justifiable doubts or a requirement that the candidate disclose the extent 
of or any limits on any inquiries made. For example: 
 


(a) candidates who are members of law firms normally do not base disclosures 
based solely on personal knowledge, but rather perform conflicts checks to 
discover connections between their firms and the parties that the parties 
might consider relevant; 
 


(b) candidates who recently left a law firm normally disclose their past 
connection to the firm and state whether they can perform and, if so, have 
or have not performed, a conflicts check of their former firm’s records,  


 
These usual practices, and others, may not be caught by the bare requirement for 
disclosure of circumstances of which the candidate is “aware.” Although there 
were diverse views on the subject, on balance the Working Group concluded that 







 


27 
 


the language of the proposed provision should not be expanded. The precise 
steps that parties and arbitrators should take are very fact and case specific. 
Arbitral institutions (e.g. IBA and CIArb.) have published guidelines establishing 
norms and detailed exceptions to meet disclosure obligations. Those evolving 
guidelines provide sufficient guidance to the profession. 
 
The Working Group also considered whether the Act should include an express 
requirement that parties must use due diligence to identify and state all of the 
circumstances and relationships that they wish the arbitrator to consider, and 
concluded that parties should be precluded from challenging arbitrators based on 
circumstances of which the parties ought to have been aware; see proposed 
subsection 18(3). 
 
Survey Questions 
 
SQ22 Do you agree that the “independence and impartiality” language to 


describe the standard is appropriate? 
 
 
SQ23 Do you agree that it is sufficient to require disclosure by arbitrator 


candidates of circumstances of which they are aware? 
 
Immunity of Arbitrators  


16. An arbitrator is not liable for anything done or omitted to be done in good 
faith in the capacity of arbitrator and has the same immunities as a judge of 
the court. 


 
Commentary: This is a new provision, modelled on the provisions of the uniform 
Commercial Arbitration Act 2010 (Australia) and the Arbitration Act, 1996 
(England). A similar provision will appear in the new Quebec Code of Civil 
Procedure. The Working Group considers that this also is a restatement of the 
common law. With increasing frequency claims are made or threatened by 
unhappy arbitration parties against arbitrators for tactical reasons to delay 
enforcement of awards. The potential for such claims puts at risk the integrity of 
the arbitral process.  
 
 







 


28 
 


Survey Questions 
 
SQ24 Do you agree that a provision for arbitrator immunity is appropriate? 
 


Part 6 – REMOVAL AND REPLACEMENT OF ARBITRATORS  
 


No Revocation of Appointment 


 
17. A party may not revoke the appointment of an arbitrator. 
 
Commentary: This section is carried forward from the existing Uniform 
Arbitration Act. 
 
Challenge and Removal of Arbitrator 


 
18(1) A party to an arbitral proceeding may apply to the court for removal of an 


arbitrator only on grounds that: 
 


(a) circumstances exist that give rise to justifiable doubts as to the 
arbitrator’s independence or impartiality;  


 
(b) the arbitrator does not possess the qualifications required by the 


agreement of the parties;  
 


(c) the arbitrator is physically or mentally incapable of conducting the 
proceedings or there are justifiable doubts as to the arbitrator’s  
capacity to do so; 


 


(d) the arbitrator has committed a corrupt or fraudulent act; or 
 


(e) the arbitrator has delayed unduly in conducting the arbitration such 
that substantial injustice has been or will be caused to the applicant. 


 
(2) If the parties have agreed to a process for the removal of an arbitrator, the 


court shall not exercise its power of removal unless satisfied that the 







 


29 
 


applicant has exhausted any available recourse under the agreed process 
and that the parties have not agreed to exclude recourse to the court under 
this section. 


 
(3) If the parties have not agreed to a process for the removal of an arbitrator, a 


party may apply to the court for the removal of an arbitrator on the grounds 
described in Subsections 18(1)(a) or(b) only if: 


 
(a) the intended applicant, within fifteen days after the earlier of   


 
(i) the date on which the intended applicant became aware of the  


circumstance relied upon; and 
(ii)  the date on which the intended applicant ought to have known 


of those circumstances if it had made reasonable inquiries; 
 


delivered to the arbitral tribunal and the other parties a written 
statement requesting the arbitral tribunal to remove the arbitrator  and 
setting out the circumstances and reasons for the request;  
 


(b) the arbitrator did not resign the appointment;  
 


(c) the other parties to the arbitration did not agree to remove the 
arbitrator in response to the removal request;  


 
(d) the arbitral tribunal refused to remove the arbitrator; and 


 
(e) the application to the court is made within fifteen days after the arbitral 


tribunal’s refusal  to remove the arbitrator. 
 


(4) For the purposes of subsections (3)(d) and (e), an arbitral tribunal will be 
deemed to have refused to remove an arbitrator if it fails to decide a request 
for removal within 15 days after receiving the written statement described in 
subsection (3)(a). 
 


(5) An arbitral tribunal that receives a request for the removal of an arbitrator 
must decide the issue expeditiously, and promptly communicate its decision 
to the parties. 







 


30 
 


 
(6) While an application to the court under subsection (1) is pending, the arbitral 


tribunal, including the challenged arbitrator, may continue the arbitration 
and make an award, unless the court orders otherwise. 


 
Commentary: The existing Uniform Act contains two sections dealing with 
removal of arbitrators: first Section 13 dealing with challenges based on lack of 
independence and impartiality or agreed qualifications; second, Section 15 
dealing with removal for incapacity, fraud and corruption or undue delay. The 
proposed new Section 18 combines these two concepts in a single section dealing 
with removal of arbitrators by the court.  
 
The default process under subsection (3) requires that a party initiate any 
challenge within 15 days of the date when the party became aware or ought to 
have become aware of the facts relied upon as the basis for the challenge. For 
example, if an arbitrator delivers a cv to the parties at the time of appointment, 
any challenge based on facts disclosed in the cv would have to be brought within 
15 days of delivery of the cv. Similarly, if the cv referred to a web-site on which 
additional information was available, it could be argued that the party receiving 
the cv ought to have known of facts set out on the web-site if it had made 
reasonable inquiries.  
 
If the parties have agreed on a challenge or removal process, then under 
subsection (2) that process must be exhausted before an application is made to 
the court. If the parties have not agreed on another process, then subsections (4) 
and (5) establish a default process which must be completed by the parties and 
the arbitral tribunal before an application is made to the court based on lack of 
independence and impartiality or agreed qualifications. 
 
As presently constructed, if the default process under subsection (4) is pursued 
and the arbitral tribunal decides to remove the arbitrator, that decision cannot be 
reviewed by the court. However, if the parties agreed to have an institution 
decide the challenge a decision by the institution to remove the arbitrator is 
subject to court reconsideration (unless, of course, the parties have agreed that 
the institution’s decision is final).  
 
 







 


31 
 


Survey Questions 
 
SQ25 Do you agree that a removal decision by an institution should be 


reviewable by the court unless the parties have contracted out of such a 
review? 


 
Termination of Arbitrator’s Mandate  


19(1) An arbitrator’s mandate terminates when, 


(a) the arbitrator resigns the appointment or dies; 
 


(b) all parties agree to terminate the arbitrator’s appointment; 
 


(c) the arbitrator is removed under Section 18 or by another process 
agreed by the parties. 


 
(2)  An arbitrator’s resignation or a party’s agreement to terminate an 


arbitrator’s mandate does not imply acceptance of the validity of any reason 
advanced for challenging or removing the arbitrator. 


 
Commentary: This provision is carried forward in modified form from the existing 
Uniform Arbitration Act.  
 
Appointment of Substitute Arbitrator  


20(1)When an arbitrator’s mandate terminates under Section 19, a substitute 
arbitrator shall be appointed, using the same process as provided for by the 
arbitration agreement and this Act for the appointment of the arbitrator 
being replaced. 


 
(2) The arbitral tribunal, when reconstituted, shall determine whether, and if so 


to what extent, steps taken before the reconstitution of the arbitral tribunal 
should be repeated. 


 
Commentary: Subsection 20(1) is based on the Model Law, but the text has been 
revised for clarity. The existing Uniform Act contains additional provisions for 
court involvement to appoint a substitute arbitrator. This is considered to be 







 


32 
 


unnecessary as it is clear that the court could be involved in a substitute 
appointment to the same extent as it could be involved in an original 
appointment. A provision has been added stating that the decision as to how 
much, if any, of the proceeding to date should be repeated is left to the arbitral 
tribunal. 
 
Survey Questions 
 
SQ26 Do you agree that the arbitral tribunal should make the decision 


whether proceedings need to be repeated after a substitute arbitrator is 
appointed? 


 


Part 7 – JURISDICTION OF THE ARBITRAL TRIBUNAL   
 


Arbitral Tribunal’s Power to Determine its Own Jurisdiction 


 
21(1)An arbitral tribunal may rule on its own jurisdiction to conduct the 


arbitration, including whether: 
 


(a) the arbitral proceeding is in whole or in part in respect of a matter that 
is not the subject of the arbitration agreement; 


 
(b) a party against whom the arbitration agreement is sought to be 


enforced entered into the arbitration agreement while under a legal 
incapacity;  


 
(c) the arbitration agreement does not exist or is null and void or 


unenforceable; or 
 
(d) the dispute is not capable of being the subject of arbitration under 


[enacting jurisdiction] law. 
 
(2) Unless the arbitral tribunal considers that any delay in doing so is justified, a 


party who has an objection to the arbitral tribunal’s jurisdiction must state 
the objection promptly after the matter alleged to be beyond the arbitral 
tribunal’s jurisdiction is raised during the arbitration. 


 







 


33 
 


(3) The arbitral tribunal may decide the merit of an objection to jurisdiction by a 
separate partial award issued before deciding the substance of the dispute 
or as part of an award deciding the substance of the dispute. 


 
(4) If the arbitral tribunal issues a separate partial award concerning jurisdiction 


as provided in Subsection (3), a party may apply to the court within thirty 
(30) days of delivery of the partial award to have the partial award set aside 
on the grounds that the arbitral tribunal’s decision with respect to 
jurisdiction was not correct.  


 


(5) Where the court determines under Subsection (4) that the arbitral tribunal’s 
decision with respect to jurisdiction was not correct, the court’s 
determination may, with leave, be further appealed to [enacting jurisdiction 
to insert name of appellate court].  


 


(6) In relation to any matters concerning which it found that it had jurisdiction, 
while an application under subsection (4) or an appeal under subsection (5) 
is pending the arbitral tribunal may continue the arbitral proceedings. 


 
(7) If a final decision under Subsections (4) and (5) is that: 


 


(a) the arbitral tribunal erred in determining that it did not have 
jurisdiction; or 


(b) the arbitral tribunal did not err in finding that it had jurisdiction; 
  
the arbitral tribunal shall continue the arbitral proceedings. 


 


(8) A final decision under subsections (4) and (5) is, unless it states otherwise, 
final and binding for all purposes, including for the purposes of an 
application for leave to appeal, to enforce or to set aside an award in 
accordance with this Act. .  


 


(9) If no application is made under subsection (4) a party is not precluded from 
later relying on the same objections to jurisdiction on an application for 
leave to appeal, to enforce or to set aside an award in accordance with this 
Act. 
 







 


34 
 


Commentary: Consistent with the existing Uniform Act, the Model Law and 
relevant jurisprudence, proposed Section 21 confirms the authority of the arbitral 
tribunal to rule on its own jurisdiction. Section 1 has been expanded to ensure 
that is clear that the same jurisdictional issues which the court may decline to 
decide on a stay application (see proposed Section 7) can be decided by the 
arbitral tribunal.  
 
There has been debate about whether questions of jurisdiction should be decided 
in the form of an award or in another form. The proposed text requires that 
decisions concerning jurisdiction be decided either by a separate partial award or 
as part of an award deciding other substantive issues. 
 
Where an arbitral tribunal decides an objection to its jurisdiction at an early 
stage, the existing Uniform Act, similar to the Model Law, allows an application to 
a court to “decide the matter” if, but only if, the arbitral tribunal decides that it 
does have jurisdiction; no standard of review is specified; a decision by an arbitral 
tribunal that it does not have jurisdiction is not open to review. Proposed new 
Subsection 21(4) takes a different approach. As does the new Uniform 
International Arbitration Act, it allows applications to the court to review both 
negative and positive jurisdictional decisions by an arbitral tribunal. However, the 
only decision open to the court is to set aside or refuse to set aside the 
jurisdiction award, applying the correctness standard usually used to review 
jurisdictional findings.  
 
Sometimes the question of jurisdiction cannot be decided without making 
findings of fact that also have a bearing on the ultimate questions of liability. In 
such cases, the prudent course is for the arbitral tribunal not to decide the 
jurisdiction question by a separate award, but rather to decide that question as 
part of its award on liability, after having heard all of the evidence and argument. 
The Working Group has considered whether the court should be able to second-
guess an arbitral tribunal’s judgment that the jurisdiction question is suitable for 
separate decision; in other words, in addition to having the power to declare that 
the arbitral tribunal’s ruling was correct or incorrect as a matter of law, should 
the court also be empowered to simply declare the arbitral tribunal’s decision to 
have been made prematurely? The Working Group concluded that it is not 
appropriate to give this additional power to the court, as it invites the Court to 
second-guess the arbitral tribunal’s judgment on a procedural issue. The Working 







 


35 
 


Group believes that arbitral tribunals are not likely to decide issues of jurisdiction 
as a preliminary matter if the underlying facts are the subject of extensive, 
contested evidence. 
 
Finally, there has been some doubt as to whether a party who is unhappy with a 
ruling on jurisdiction as a preliminary matter should get “two kicks at the can;” 
first applying under the present section while the arbitration is ongoing, and then, 
if unsuccessful, raising the jurisdictional issue again when the final merits award is 
sought to be enforced or set aside. Subsection 21(8) makes it clear that, as a 
general rule, there is to be only “one kick at the can.” A party who does not want 
to run the risk of an adverse early ruling on jurisdiction need not apply under 
Subsection 21(4), and if it does not do so, proposed Subsection 21(9) preserves 
the right to raise jurisdiction as a defence to enforcement or as a ground to set 
aside the award. The sole exception to the general rule is that when deciding an 
application or appeal concerning a partial award on jurisdiction, a court may, if 
the result of its finding is that there is jurisdiction, state that the jurisdiction issue 
may be revisited at the enforcement/set-aside stage. The Working Group 
considers that this power would be exercised by the court in very limited 
circumstances; for example, if the court is concerned that additional evidence 
and argument concerning the substance of the dispute might result in a different 
conclusion on the question of jurisdiction.  
 
Survey Questions 
 
SQ27 Do you agree that a preliminary decision on jurisdiction should be in the 


form of an award? 
 
SQ28 Do you agree that the right to seek a review by the court should apply to 


negative as well as positive jurisdictional rulings? 
 
SQ29  Do you agree that, as a general rule, if jurisdiction is decided as a 


preliminary matter, and the court has reviewed that decision, it should 
not be open to any party to later raise the same jurisdictional objection 
to attack the award on the merits or as defence to its enforcement?   


 







 


36 
 


Part 8 – POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE ARBITRAL TRIBUNAL AND  
            THE PARTIES 


 
General Duties of the Arbitral Tribunal 


 
22. Each party to an arbitral proceeding shall be given a reasonable opportunity 


to present its case and to answer the case presented against it by each other 
party.  


 
Commentary: The existing Uniform Act requires that the parties be treated 
equally and fairly, and states that each party shall be given an opportunity to 
present its case and defence.  The Model Law also emphasizes equality of 
treatment. The Working Group does not favour making “equal” treatment 
mandatory as it could justify, for example, a demand that hearing time be divided 
equally or that one party should not be granted an extension of time not needed 
by the other.  
 
Although it is difficult to argue against a fairness requirement, the difficulty with 
embodying “fairness” as a statutory minimum standard is that it invites second-
guessing; what is fair in any situation is matter of subjective judgment. The 
Working Group considers that the appropriate mandatory requirement is that 
each party be given a “reasonable opportunity” to present its case or answer. 
This approach is considered to be consistent with the concept of proportionality 
now invoked by the rules of court in a number of provinces. 
 
Survey Questions 
 
SQ30 Do you agree that it is not appropriate to mandate “equal treatment” of 


the parties? 
 
SQ31 Do you agree that it is appropriate to require that parties be given a 


“reasonable” rather than a “full” opportunity to present their cases? 
 
 


 







 


37 
 


General Duties of the Parties 


23. The parties to an arbitral proceeding shall conduct the proceeding efficiently 
and in good faith, in accordance with the agreement of the parties and the 
orders and directions of the arbitral tribunal.   


 
Commentary: This section is new. Both Australian and English legislation impose a 
duty similar to the duty stated in proposed Section 23. Under proposed new 
Quebec legislation the parties will be directed to “co-operate” in the conduct of 
the proceeding. The benefit of proposed Section 23 is that it provides a statutory 
standard of party behaviour. The difficulty with such provisions is that there is no 
express statutory remedy for non-compliance.  There is also a risk that declaring a 
statutory duty of this kind could create a new ground for seeking to set aside or 
resist enforcement of an award, when the primary intent is to assist the arbitral 
tribunal in restraining parties from abusing the process.  If this is really no more 
than a costs issue, the issue may be sufficiently dealt with by empowering arbitral 
tribunals to impose costs sanctions for party misconduct. 
 
Survey Questions 
 
SQ32 Do you think that there is benefit to including a provision setting out the 


general duty of parties? 
 
SQ33 Do you think that the risk of creating an additional ground to challenge an 


award is such that it would be better to simply empower the arbitral 
tribunal to impose costs sanctions if it concludes that the proceedings have 
not been conducted efficiently or in good faith? 


 
Legal or Other Representation 


24. The parties to an arbitral proceeding may appear or act in person or may be 
represented by another person of their choice. 


 
Commentary: This is a new provision to make it clear that a party need not be 
represented by a lawyer in arbitral proceedings. This is thought to be consistent 
to the objective of facilitating the use of arbitration as an alternative to court 
proceedings. The Commercial Arbitration Act, 2010 (NSW) goes on to state: 
 







 


38 
 


A person who is not admitted to practise as a legal practitioner in New 
South Wales does not commit an offence under or breach the provisions of 
the Legal Profession Act 2004 or any other Act merely by representing a 
party in arbitral proceedings in this State. 
 


The Working Group concluded that the issue of whether persons representing 
parties to arbitral proceedings (a) must be lawyers and (b) if lawyers, must be 
qualified to practice under the laws of the place of arbitration, should be left to 
be addressed by legislation regulating the practice of law.  
 
Survey Questions 
 
SQ34 Do you agree that the Act should not deal with the question of whether 


persons representing parties to arbitral proceedings (a) must be lawyers and 
(b) if lawyers, must be qualified to practice under the laws of the place of 
arbitration. 


 
Law Applicable to the Substance of the Dispute  


25. Except as provided in Section 27, 
 


(a) the law and rules of law applicable to the substance of a dispute are 
those designated by the parties or, if none are designated, the law or 
rules of law the arbitral tribunal considers appropriate in the 
circumstances; 
 


(b) an arbitral tribunal shall decide the substance of a dispute in 
accordance with the applicable law and rules of law, including any part 
of the applicable law that creates equitable rights or defences; 


 


(c) an arbitral tribunal may grant the same relief or remedies as could be 
granted under the applicable law and rules of law by a court of 
competent jurisdiction, including equitable remedies in the nature of 
specific performance, injunctions, declarations or otherwise. 


 
 


 







 


39 
 


Conflict of Laws 


26. A designation by the parties of the law of a jurisdiction refers to the 
jurisdiction’s substantive law and not to its conflict of laws rules, unless the 
parties expressly indicate that the designation includes them. 


 
 


Application of Specific Agreed Standards 


27. An arbitral tribunal may resolve a dispute acting ex aequo et bono or as 
amiable compositeur or by applying some other standard, but only if the 
parties have expressly so agreed. 


 
Commentary: (Sections 25, 26 and 27) None of the basic concepts present in 
Sections 25 or 26 are new, although they are expressed for clarity in different 
language than was used in the existing Uniform Act. The phrase “law or rules of 
law” is used to avoid any argument (sometimes raised by civil law practitioners) 
that “law” is limited to statute law while “rules of law” also embraces non-
statutory law.  
 
The existing Uniform Act appears to have assumed that local law, or at least 
common law (comprised of law and equity), will be the applicable law in a 
domestic arbitration seated in the enacting jurisdiction. This is not correct. The 
applicable substantive law may be, for example, civil law, the national law of a 
foreign state, sharia law or a mix of designated laws.  
 
Subsection 25(1) states how the applicable law or rules of law are to be 
determined. The agreement of the parties to a substantive law must be enforced. 
If the parties have not agreed, the arbitral tribunal is empowered to select an 
applicable law that is appropriate in the circumstances.  
 
The primary obligation of the arbitral tribunal has been re-stated in Subsection 
25(2) as being to apply whatever law is applicable, while making it clear that 
where equitable rights and defences are part of the applicable law, they also must 
be applied. This is done to avoid any misconception that arbitrators cannot grant 
equitable remedies. Similarly, Subsection 25(3) empowers the arbitral tribunal to 
grant whatever remedies are available under the applicable law. Section 26 is 







 


40 
 


carried forward from the existing Uniform Act and the Model Law. Section 27 is 
new, although it replicates the substance of provisions found in the Model Law 
and in the arbitration statutes of several provinces. 
 
Hearing Location 


28(1) Except as provided in this Section, any evidentiary hearing will take place at: 
 


(a) the location agreed by the parties; or 
 


(b) if the parties have not agreed on a location, at a location determined by 
the arbitral tribunal. 
 


(2) Despite Subsection 28(1)(a): 
 


(a)  the arbitral tribunal may meet wherever it considers appropriate for 
consultation among its members; 


 
(b) the arbitral tribunal may receive at any location the evidence of 


witnesses taken by telephone, by video-conference or by other 
electronic means not requiring the participants to be physically present 
in the same location; 


 
(c) the arbitral tribunal may, if it finds that it is necessary to do so, conduct 


an inspection of goods or other property or documents or receive the 
evidence of witnesses at a location other than the location agreed by 
the parties. 


Commentary: Subsection 28(1) establishes a general rule that if the parties have 
agreed on a hearing location, that agreement is to be respected. Subsection 28(2) 
sets out limited exceptions to that general rule.  
 
Evidence  


29. The arbitral tribunal is not required to apply legal rules of evidence and may 
determine the time, manner and form in which evidence should be 
exchanged and presented. 


 







 


41 
 


Commentary: The existing Uniform Arbitration Act states: 
 


21(1) In an arbitration, the arbitrator shall admit all evidence that would be 
admissible in a court and may admit other evidence that he or she 
considers relevant to the issues in dispute. 


 
(2)The arbitrator may determine the manner in which evidence is to be 


admitted. 
 
It is proposed that the language of the existing section be changed as set out in 
Section 29 above, so that arbitrators have maximum flexibility in admitting or not 
admitting evidence. It is considered undesirable that an evidentiary ruling be 
capable of being characterized as an error of law, as might be the case if there 
were a statutory obligation to admit evidence according to a specific legal 
standard. 
 
The proposed Section 29 deletes the aspect of the current section 21(1) that 
requires an arbitrator to admit all evidence that would be admitted in a court.   
 
Survey Questions: 
 
SQ35 Do you agree that arbitrators should not be statutorily obliged to apply 


rules of evidence? 
 
Arbitrators’ Authority to Determine Procedural Matters 


30. Subject to the mandatory provisions of this Act and any agreement of the 
parties, the arbitral tribunal may establish such procedures and make such 
procedural orders for the conduct of the arbitral proceedings as the arbitral 
tribunal considers are appropriate in the circumstances of the case and, 
without limitation, may make procedural orders: 
  


(a) concerning any statements of position or pleadings it considers 
appropriate, including when they should be delivered, their form and 
content, and whether amendments are allowed; 
 


(b) requiring security for the arbitral tribunal’s fees and expenses; 







 


42 
 


 


(c) requiring a party to provide security for costs that may be incurred by 
an adverse party; 


 


(d) concerning the determination of some matters in dispute in the arbitral 
proceedings before other such matters, and when they are to be 
determined; 
 


(e) giving directions for the preservation of evidence; 
 


(f) subject to any proper claim of privilege, requiring a party to produce 
documents or information; 
 


(g) establishing protocols for searching for and producing electronically 
stored evidence, and allocating the costs of implementing any such 
protocols; 
 


(h) giving directions in relation to any property which is the subject of the 
arbitral proceeding or as to which any question arises in the proceeding, 
and which is owned by or is in the possession of a party to the 
proceedings— 


 


(i)  for the inspection, photographing, preservation, custody or 
detention of the property by the arbitral tribunal, an expert 
or a party, or 


(ii) for taking  samples from, or making observation of any test 
or experiment conducted upon, the property. 


 
(i) concerning the form in which evidence and argument is to be presented 


by the parties;  
 


(j) regarding the confidentiality of the arbitral proceedings (including 
pleadings, evidence, transcripts, orders, awards, and the fact of the 
arbitration) and to provide sanctions to be imposed on parties for 
failure to observe confidentiality requirements; 


 







 


43 
 


(k) allowing the use of video or telephone-conferencing or other 
technology permitting the examination of witnesses who are not 
physically present at an evidentiary hearing; 


 


(l) allocating hearing time as between the parties; 
 


(m) excluding witnesses or potential witnesses from attending all or part of 
any oral evidentiary hearing during which the witnesses are not giving 
evidence; 


 


(n) concerning the language or languages to be used in the proceedings, 
whether translations of any documents are to be supplied and 
allocating the costs of interpreting or translating any evidence; and 


 


(o) varying any procedural order, including  shortening or extending any 
time limit established by such an order whether or not the time limit 
has expired. 


 
Commentary: This provision is in part new and in part an amalgam of a number of 
provisions of the existing Uniform Act that describe the powers of the arbitral 
tribunal or establish default procedural steps that must be followed in the event 
that the parties have not agreed on those matters. The arbitral tribunal is given 
wide powers and flexibility to determine the most fair and efficient procedure 
having regard to the circumstances of the dispute.  Default procedures have not 
been specified.   


 


Subsection 20(2) of the existing Uniform Act (which allowed a multi-person 
tribunal to delegate procedural questions to the chair without party consent) has 
not been carried forward.  There are legitimate reasons why a party might want 
the full tribunal involved in all procedural decisions; including the potential value 
of having the whole arbitral tribunal exposed to the issues, and the differing 
backgrounds, strengths, and manner of appointment of each of the members of 
the arbitral tribunal.  
 
Subsection 25(7) of the existing Uniform Act (stating that the court may enforce a 
procedural order) has not been carried forward.  That Subsection states: 
 







 


44 
 


(7)  The court may enforce the direction of an arbitral tribunal as if it were a 
similar direction made by the court in an action. 


 
The Working Group is mindful that merely empowering the arbitral tribunal to 
make orders and impose costs sanctions does not create an independently 
enforceable right or obligation unless it is elevated to the level of a court order for 
which, presumably, contempt remedies might be available. However, the Working 
Group considers that the benefits of having court recourse are outweighed by the 
risk of encouraging undue court intervention into procedural matters that are at 
the heart of arbitral tribunal’s mandate. The moral and practical authority of 
arbitral tribunals is significant. For these reasons the proposed Section only goes 
so far as to give the arbitral tribunal the express power to award or deny costs for 
procedural misconduct or failure to comply with a procedural order.  
 
Survey Questions: 
 
SQ36 Failing party agreement and subject to the mandatory requirements of the 


Act do you agree that it is better to leave decisions concerning procedural 
matters to the arbitral tribunal, rather than specifying default procedures? 


 
Powers of Tribunal in Case of Party Default 


31(1) If a party who commenced arbitral proceedings fails, despite having had a 
reasonable opportunity to do so, to comply with time limits for taking 
procedural steps in accordance with the agreement of the parties or orders 
of the arbitral tribunal, the arbitral tribunal may declare by procedural order 
that the arbitral proceeding: 


 
(a) is terminated; or 


 
(b) is suspended, pending the fulfilment of such conditions as the arbitral 


tribunal considers appropriate in the circumstances. 
 
(2) If a party other than one who commenced the arbitral proceedings brings a 


counterclaim in those proceedings, and then, despite having had a 
reasonable opportunity to do so,  fails to comply with time limits for taking 
procedural steps in accordance with the agreement of the parties or orders 







 


45 
 


of the arbitral tribunal, the arbitral tribunal may declare by procedural order 
that the arbitral proceeding in relation to the counterclaims: 


 
(a) is terminated; or 


 
(b) is suspended, pending the fulfilment of such conditions as the arbitral 


tribunal considers appropriate in the circumstances. 
 


(3) If, despite having had a reasonable opportunity to do so, a party fails to 
comply with time limits for taking procedural steps in accordance with the 
agreement of the parties or orders of the arbitral tribunal, the arbitral 
tribunal may continue the arbitration and may make such orders or take 
such steps as it deems appropriate, including: 
 
(a) ordering that the party is thereafter precluded by virtue of its default 


from taking the relevant procedural step; or 
 


(b) drawing such inferences of fact as it deems appropriate based on the 
party`s failure to comply. 


 
(4) If, despite having had a reasonable opportunity to do so, a party fails to 


produce evidence at the time agreed by the parties or directed by the 
arbitral tribunal or otherwise fails to participate in the proceeding, the 
arbitral tribunal may continue the arbitration and make an award based on 
such evidence as is presented to it. 


 


(5) If an arbitral proceeding is terminated under subsections (1) or (2) the 
arbitral tribunal may, if requested to do so by another party,  concurrently 
with the procedural order for termination make such award or awards as to 
costs as it considers appropriate in the circumstances 


 


(6) If an arbitral proceeding is terminated or suspended under subsections 27(1) 
or 27(2), the termination or suspension does not affect the validity or 
enforceability of any award made in the arbitral proceeding before 
termination or suspension. 


 







 


46 
 


Commentary: Subsections 27(1) and (4) of the existing Uniform Act empower an 
arbitral tribunal to “dismiss” a claim for default. It is not clear whether the 
“dismissal” is to take the form of an award or a procedural order or whether it is 
to have the same res judicata effect as a dismissal on the merits. There is 
asymmetry in the existing legislation, because a failure to defend is expressly 
stated not to be an admission and a claimant still must present at least a prima 
facie case on the merits; there is no equivalent to default judgment. There are no 
mechanisms for reconsidering or setting aside `default awards` in appropriate 
circumstances.  
 
Proposed subsections 31(1) and (2) allow suspension or termination of arbitral 
proceedings, rather than dismissal, while expressly authorizing (see s. 31(5)) a 
costs award contemporaneously with termination. In addition to the risk of an 
adverse costs award, if the arbitration is terminated and the claimant hopes to 
pursue its claim in another forum, the claimant risks the intervening expiry of a 
limitation period and a determination by the other forum that new proceedings 
are in any event vexatious or an abuse of process. If the proceedings are merely 
suspended, and the claimant seeks to pursue the same claim in another forum, 
the respondent can invoke lis alibi pendens and abuse of process concepts to seek 
to force the claimant back to the original tribunal.  
 
Subsection 31(3) states the power of arbitrators to make, in effect, peremptory 
orders concerning procedural matters, and to draw appropriate inferences. The 
English Arbitration Act, 1996 contains a very specific regime for tribunals to make 
and courts to enforce peremptory procedural orders. The Working Group believes 
that it is more consistent with the guiding principles of the Act to simply state that 
the defaulting party must have been given a “reasonable opportunity” to comply 
and not to invite court intervention in matters of procedure and party discipline.  
 
In the alternative to ordering termination or suspension of the proceeding, if a 
party fails to comply with procedural directions or otherwise fails to participate, 
under Subsection 31(4) the arbitral tribunal is authorized to continue the 
proceeding and make an award based on whatever evidence is presented to it. 
For example - if a claimant or counterclaimant fails to present evidence sufficient 
to prove its claim, the arbitral tribunal can make an award dismissing the claim; if 
a claimant produces evidence supporting its claim and a respondent fails to 







 


47 
 


produce evidence to the contrary, the arbitral tribunal can make an award 
allowing the claim.  
 
Subsection 31(6) is new.  
 
SQ37 Do you agree that it is more appropriate to provide for termination, rather 


than dismissal of claims, if a claimant or counter-claimant defaults? 
 
SQ38 Do you agree with empowering arbitrators to make, in effect, a peremptory 


order as contemplated by Subsection 31(3)(a)? 
 
SQ39 Do you agree that any awards already made should remain valid and 


enforceable if an arbitral proceeding is terminated? 
 
Powers of Tribunal to Request Evidence from Non-Parties 


32(1) If an arbitral tribunal determines, in its sole discretion, that a person who is 
not a party to the arbitral proceeding should be required to give evidence in 
the proceeding or to produce documents within that person’s possession or 
control, the arbitral tribunal may:  
 
(a) if the person is within [enacting jurisdiction], authorize the issuance of a 


subpoena requiring the person to attend at the time and place stated in 
the subpoena to give evidence or to produce for inspection and copying 
at the time and place stated in the subpoena the documents described 
in the subpoena; or 


 
(b) whether or not a subpoena has been issued under paragraph (a), issue a 


request asking any court of competent jurisdiction to assist the arbitral 
tribunal by requiring the person named in the request to give evidence 
in the arbitral proceeding or to produce any documents or categories of 
documents specified in the request, or both, at a time and place and in 
a manner described in the request. 


 


(2) A subpoena authorized by an arbitral tribunal under subsection (1)(a): 
 
(a) has the same force and effect as a subpoena issued in proceedings in 


the court; 







 


48 
 


 
(b) may be set aside on application by the person named in the subpoena: 


 


(i) to the arbitral tribunal; or  
 


(ii) whether or not an application is first brought to the arbitral tribunal, 
to the court, 


 
(3) A request issued by an arbitral tribunal under subsection (1)(b) shall describe 


the conditions proposed by the arbitral tribunal for the payment of the 
expenses of the person named in the request. 
 


(4) A party to the arbitral proceeding in which a request has been issued under 
subsection (1)(b) may apply to a court of competent jurisdiction named in 
the request for an order providing the assistance described in the request. 


 


(5) If an application is brought to the court, under subsection (4), the court shall, 
after requiring such notice to the person named in the request as it finds is 
appropriate, and provided that it is satisfied that the conditions proposed in 
accordance with subsection (3) are reasonable, make an order giving effect 
to the arbitral tribunal’s request, by: 
 
(a) If the person named in the request is within [enacting jurisdiction], 


ordering the person to attend to give evidence or to produce 
documents as described in the request; or 


 
(b) If the person named in the request is not within [enacting jurisdiction] 


making a request for assistance to another court of competent 
jurisdiction. 
 


(6) If an application is brought to the court by a party to an arbitration in respect 
of which, 
 
(a) the place of arbitration is within another province or territory of 


Canada, and 
 







 


49 
 


(b) the arbitration is not considered to be international under the laws of 
the place of arbitration, and 


 
(c) the arbitral tribunal has issued a request or other document 


substantially conforming to the requirements of a request under 
subsections (1)(b)  and (2) 


 
the request shall be enforced in the manner and to the extent as provided 
under the [enacting jurisdiction to insert name of its Interprovincial 
Subpoena Act] as if it were a subpoena issued by a court of the province or 
territory in which the place of arbitration is situated. 
 


(7) No person shall be compelled by any process authorized by this section to 
produce information, property or documents or to give evidence in an 
arbitration that the person could not be compelled to produce or give in a 
court proceeding. 


 
Commentary:  The existing Uniform Act allows a party, without notice to or 
permission of the arbitral tribunal, to “serve” a notice on a third party which is 
said to have the “same effect” as a similar notice issued in court proceedings. The 
Working Group believes that to ensure that the mandate of the arbitral tribunal 
to control the proceedings is met and to protect the privacy of the proceedings, 
before purporting to draw third parties into the process the arbitral tribunal 
should be given an opportunity to satisfy itself that the person may have 
information that is relevant, material and not readily obtainable by some other 
means and that the benefit of having the evidence justifies any delay or other 
negative impacts on the arbitral process. Proposed Subsection (1)(a) requires the 
arbitral tribunal to authorize the issuance of a subpoena.  
 
Subsection (1)(b) allows an arbitral tribunal to ask for the assistance of any court 
of competent jurisdiction, including the court in the enacting jurisdiction. If the 
witness is within the enacting jurisdiction, the arbitral tribunal may either 
authorize a subpoena and await its results or, e.g. if there is good reason to 
believe that the witness will not respond to the subpoena, simply ask the court to 
make an order directed to the witness.  
 







 


50 
 


The person in question may not be within the jurisdiction of the court of the 
enacting jurisdiction. Subsections 1(b) and 5(b) authorize a tribunal to either issue 
a request directly to a foreign “court of competent jurisdiction” (in which case its 
effectiveness would depend on the law of the relevant foreign jurisdiction) or 
apply to the local court for the issuance of letters of request or some other 
process that might be recognized and enforced by a foreign court.  
 
Subsection 6 requires courts in the enacting jurisdiction to provide assistance to 
non-international arbitral tribunals seated elsewhere in Canada, with a view to 
avoiding the need for seeking assistance from two Canadian courts.  If this part of 
the proposed new Uniform Act is implemented across Canada, when a witness is 
within the jurisdiction of a Canadian court outside the place of arbitration, an 
application can be made directly to that court.  
 
Survey Questions 
 
SQ40 Do you agree that permission of the arbitral tribunal should be obtained 


before a party can take steps to compel the participation of a third party 
witness? 


 
SQ41 Do you think that third parties should only be compellable to give evidence 


to the arbitral tribunal and not be compellable to provide “discovery” 
evidence? 


 
SQ42 Do you agree that it is appropriate to allow arbitral tribunals to directly 


request the assistance of courts outside the enacting jurisdiction to compel 
evidence? 


 
Power of Tribunal to Appoint an Expert 


33(1) The arbitral tribunal, after consultation with the parties, may: 
 


(a) appoint one or more experts to report to the arbitral tribunal and the 
parties on specific issues in the arbitration, as identified by the arbitral 
tribunal; and 
 







 


51 
 


(b) require a party to give the expert any relevant information or to 
produce, or to provide access to, any relevant documents, goods or 
other property for inspection. 


 
(2) Any such expert shall be and remain impartial and independent of the 


parties and shall sign a written declaration to such effect, delivered to the 
arbitral tribunal and copied to all parties. 


 
(3) If any party so requests or the arbitral tribunal considers it necessary, the 


arbitral tribunal may order the expert, after delivery of the expert’s report, 
to participate in a hearing at which the parties shall have a reasonable 
opportunity to question the expert on the report and to present witnesses in 
order to testify on relevant issues arising from the report. 


 


(4) The costs of any expert appointed by the arbitral tribunal shall be borne by 
the parties in such manner as the arbitral tribunal directs. 


 


Commentary: Section 28 of the existing Uniform Act authorizes an arbitral 
tribunal to appoint an expert, without requiring the consent of or consultation 
with the parties before doing so. The Model Law (Art. 26) allows the parties to 
agree that the arbitral tribunal may not appoint an expert. The same approach is 
taken in the English Arbitration Act, 1996. The recently amended UNCITRAL 
Arbitration Rules and LCIA Arbitration Rules do not require party consent, but do 
require consultation with the parties. The Working Group considers that as a 
minimum the arbitral tribunal should consult with the parties before appointing 
an expert. The parties can contract out of this section if they wish to deny the 
arbitral tribunal this power. 
 
The Existing Uniform Act does not require that a tribunal-appointed expert be 
independent and impartial. Current arbitration practice is to impose such a 
requirement. The requirement is present in the UNCITRAL and LCIA Rules and in 
the Arbitration Act, 1996. 
 
Proposed subsection (3) is similar to subsection 28 (3) of the existing Uniform Act. 
 
 
 







 


52 
 


Survey Questions: 
 
SQ43 Do you agree that the arbitral tribunal should have the power to appoint an 


expert after consultation with, but without the agreement of, the parties? 
 
SQ44 Do you agree with the requirement for a tribunal-appointed expert’s 


declaration of independence and impartiality? 
 
Mediation and Conciliation 


34(1) If all parties and the arbitral tribunal so agree, the arbitral tribunal may on 
such terms and conditions as the parties and the arbitral tribunal agree, use 
mediation, conciliation and similar techniques with a view to assisting the 
parties to settle, in whole or part, the matters in dispute in the arbitration. 


 
(2) If the arbitration continues after or concurrently with a mediation, 


conciliation or similar process in which the arbitral tribunal participates 
pursuant to subsection (1), the arbitral tribunal’s participation will not 
constitute grounds to challenge or remove any member of the arbitral 
tribunal. 


 
Commentary: There is a divergence of opinion as to whether the new Act should 
prohibit, permit or encourage arbitrators to also act as mediators in the course of 
an arbitration. Section 35 of the existing Uniform Act leaves the choice to the 
legislatures, by including two optional provisions. If the parties consent, Option A 
allows arbitrators to be mediators and then resume the role of arbitrator. Option 
B prohibits arbitrators from serving as mediators in the same case. 
 
The view of the Working Group is that, while it is generally preferable for 
commercial arbitrators, at least, not to play a dual role, modern Canadian 
domestic practice is that, provided that suitable precautions are taken, “med-arb” 
is used in some non-commercial cases, and occasionally in commercial 
arbitrations.  
 
Proposed subsection (1) requires the agreement of all parties and the arbitrators. 
This is intended to empower arbitrators to decline accepting a dual role if they 
have concerns. The section also flags, without prescribing, the need for 
agreement on terms and conditions (for example, dealing with the admissibility 







 


53 
 


and evidentiary value, if any, of information exchanged or communications made 
during a mediation, and the appropriateness of separate caucusing during the 
mediation).  
 
Proposed subsection (2) is consistent with Option A in the Existing Uniform Act, 
and is intended to prevent a party from seeking to engage in mediation as a tactic 
to de-rail arbitration proceedings. 
 
The Working Group believes that even if the parties have agreed that the role of 
arbitrator can be resumed after mediation, an arbitrator who no longer considers 
himself or herself to be impartial must withdraw and should be able to do so with 
impunity. Section 34 does not deal with this expressly, because the requirement 
that arbitrators be impartial is a mandatory requirement of the Act from which 
the parties cannot derogate by agreement. It is difficult to envisage a 
circumstance in which an arbitrator could be criticized for withdrawing on the 
grounds that the arbitrator is no longer impartial because of what occurred during 
a mediation. 
 
The Commercial Arbitration Act, 2010 (NSW) takes a different approach than 
proposed Section 34, requiring post-mediation consent before a mediator can 
resume the role of arbitrator.  
 
Survey Questions: 
 
SQ45 Do you think that arbitrators should be statutorily prohibited from acting as 


mediators in the same case? 
 
SQ46 Do you favour expressly authorizing separate caucusing in a mediation by 


an arbitrator? (per NSW) 
 
SQ47 Do you favour requiring party consent to the arbitrator continuing as such 


after a mediation? (per NSW) 
 
SQ48 Do you think that an express right to withdraw on the grounds that they are 


no longer impartial is needed to protect arbitrators who have agreed to act 
as mediators? 


 







 


54 
 


Part 9 – INTERIM MEASURES  
 


Powers of Arbitral Tribunal Concerning Interim Measures 


35(1) An arbitral tribunal may, at the request of a party, grant interim measures. 
 
(2)  An interim measure is any temporary measure, whether in the form of an 


award or in another form, by which, at any time prior to the issuance of the  
award by which the dispute is finally decided, the arbitral tribunal orders a 
party to: 


 
(a) maintain or restore the status quo pending determination of the dispute; 


 
(b) take action that would prevent, or refrain from taking action that is likely 


to cause, current or imminent harm or prejudice to the arbitral process 
itself; 


 
(c) provide a means of preserving assets or property that are subject matter 


of the dispute or out of which a subsequent award may be satisfied; or 
 


(d) preserve evidence that may be relevant and material to the resolution of 
the dispute. 


 
Commentary: The proposed section is taken from the Model Law. Subsection (c) 
has been modified to expressly include preservation of property that is the 
subject matter of the dispute. 
 


Preliminary Orders 


36(1) A party may, without notice to any other party, make a request for an 
interim measure together with an application for a preliminary order 
directing a party not to frustrate the purpose of the interim measure 
requested. 


 
(2) The arbitral tribunal may grant a preliminary order provided it considers that 


prior disclosure of the request for the interim measure to the party against 
whom it is directed risks frustrating the purpose of the measure. 


 







 


55 
 


Commentary: As described in more detail below, there is a view that it is not 
appropriate for arbitrators to hear ex parte applications 
 
Specific Regime for Preliminary Orders 


37(1) Immediately after the arbitral tribunal has made a determination in respect 
of an application for a preliminary order, the arbitral tribunal shall give 
notice to all parties of the request for the interim measure, the application 
for the preliminary order, the preliminary order, if any, and all other 
communications, including by indicating the content of any oral 
communication, between any party and the arbitral tribunal in relation 
thereto. 


 
(2)  At the same time, the arbitral tribunal shall give an opportunity to any party 


against whom a preliminary order is directed to present its case at the 
earliest practicable time. 


 
(3)  The arbitral tribunal shall decide promptly on any objection to the 


preliminary order. 
 
(4)  A preliminary order shall expire after twenty days from the date on which it 


was issued by the arbitral tribunal. However, the arbitral tribunal may issue 
an interim measure adopting or modifying the preliminary order, after the 
party against whom the preliminary order is directed has been given notice 
and an opportunity to present its case. 


 
(5) A preliminary order shall be binding on the parties but shall not be subject to 


enforcement by a court. Such a preliminary order does not constitute an 
award. 


 
Commentary: (Sections 35, 36 and 37). The proposed sections are taken from the 
Model Law. In relation to international commercial arbitration there has been 
controversy concerning whether arbitral tribunals should be empowered to hear 
ex parte applications. In its report to the ULCC concerning the new Uniform 
International Act the Working Group said: 
 







 


56 
 


[63] On balance the Working Group has recommended that articles 17B 
and 17C be included in the New Uniform ICAA, for the following 
reasons: 
 


…. 
 
(d) There is a division of opinion as to whether arbitral tribunals 
seated in Canada already have the power to make ex parte orders, 
so it is useful to clarify the matter. 
 
(e) Generally, the authority of arbitral tribunals to grant relief of 
any kind should be coextensive with the authority of courts, lest 
the utility and attractiveness of arbitration as an alternative to 
litigation be called into question. Courts, as do arbitral tribunals, 
have a duty to give parties an opportunity to be heard, but that 
obligation does not preclude a court from making ex parte orders. 
To suggest that courts are somehow better placed than arbitral 
tribunals to assess the propriety of ex parte relief sends a counter-
productive message. 
 
(f) Articles 17B and 17C are balanced, in the sense that they 
impose desirable limitations on the circumstances in which the 
power can be exercised and provide other procedural protections. 
The parties also are free to exclude or further limit the power to 
grant ex parte relief by agreement. 


 
(g) It is important for the statute to contain a clear direction to the 
courts that ex parte preliminary orders of arbitral tribunals are not 
enforceable by courts in the same manner as other orders or 
awards granting interim measures. 
 
(h) Circumstances do arise from time to time in which it is 
important that the arbitral tribunal have the power to make ex 
parte orders to preserve the subject matter of the dispute and 
maintain the integrity of the process. 
 
…. 







 


57 
 


 
[64] Because of the importance of this issue, the Conference should be 
aware of the arguments raised by those who strongly oppose or who 
are concerned about including articles 17B and 17C: 
 


(a) Arbitration is a consensual process in which the procedural 
rules and the authority of arbitrators are and should be derived 
primarily from the agreement of the parties, including any 
procedural rules agreed by the parties. The question of whether ex 
parte orders can be made should be left to the agreement of the 
parties. It is not necessary or appropriate to intrude upon party 
autonomy by granting this specific power by statute. 
 
(b) A fundamental principle of arbitral law and practice is that both 
parties must be heard and must be given a fair opportunity to 
present their cases. Ex parte communications between arbitrators 
and parties (for example at the time of arbitrator appointment) are 
strictly limited by widely accepted protocols to exclude 
communications concerning the merits of the dispute, lest such 
communications give rise to doubts as to independence or 
impartiality. It is antithetical to give statutory authority for ex parte 
communications on matters of substance. 


 
(c) Parties who can demonstrate good grounds for requiring ex 
parte interim measures may seek such measures from a court of 
competent jurisdiction. …. 


 
Survey Questions: 
 
SQ49 Do you favour including a power to make ex parte Preliminary Orders in the 


proposed New Act? 
 
Modification, Suspension, Termination  


37. The arbitral tribunal may modify, suspend or terminate an interim measure 
or a preliminary order it has granted, upon application of any party or, in 
exceptional circumstances and upon prior notice to the parties, on the 
arbitral tribunal’s own initiative. 







 


58 
 


 
Commentary: The proposed section is taken from the Model Law. 
 
Provision of security 


38(1) The arbitral tribunal may require the party requesting an interim measure 
to provide appropriate security in connection with the measure. 


 
(2)  The arbitral tribunal shall require the party applying for a preliminary order 


to provide security in connection with the order unless the arbitral tribunal 
considers it inappropriate or unnecessary to do so. 


 
Commentary: The proposed section is taken from the Model Law.   
 
Disclosure 


39.   Until the party against whom the order has been requested has had an 
opportunity to present its case: 


 
(a) the arbitral tribunal may require any party promptly to disclose any 


material change in the circumstances on the basis of which the measure 
was requested or granted; and 
 


(b) the party applying for a preliminary order shall disclose to the arbitral 
tribunal all circumstances that are likely to be relevant to the arbitral 
tribunal’s determination whether to grant or maintain the order, and 
such obligation shall continue.  


 
Commentary: Although re-worded for clarity, the proposed section is taken from 
the Model Law.   
 
Costs and Damages 


40(1)The party requesting an interim measure or applying for a preliminary order 
shall be liable for any costs and damages caused by the measure or the order 
to any party if the arbitral tribunal later determines that, in the 
circumstances, the measure or the order should not have been granted.  


 







 


59 
 


(2) The arbitral tribunal may award such costs and damages at any point during 
the proceedings. 


 
Commentary: The proposed section is taken from the Model Law.   
 
Enforcement of Interim Measures 


41(1) An interim measure issued by an arbitral tribunal shall, unless otherwise 
provided by the arbitral tribunal, enforced upon application to the court, 
subject to the provisions of Section 42. 


 
(2)  The party who is seeking or has obtained enforcement of an interim measure 


shall promptly inform the court of any termination, suspension or 
modification of that interim measure. 


 
(3)  The court may, if it considers it proper, order the requesting party to provide 


appropriate security if the arbitral tribunal has not already made a 
determination with respect to security or where such a decision is necessary 
to protect the rights of third parties. 


 
Commentary: The proposed Section substantially mirrors the equivalent 
stipulation in the Model Law. 
 
Grounds for Refusing Enforcement of Interim Measures 


42(1) Enforcement of an interim measure may be refused only if the court is 
satisfied that: 


 
(a) such refusal is warranted on the grounds set forth in section 57(1); or 
 
(b) the arbitral tribunal’s decision with respect to the provision of security in 


connection with the interim measure issued by the arbitral tribunal has 
not been complied with; or 


 
(c) the interim measure has been terminated or suspended by the arbitral 


tribunal. 
 







 


60 
 


Commentary: The proposed Section is based on the Model Law. The language “or, 
where so empowered, by the court of the State in which the arbitration takes 
place or under the law of which that interim measure was granted” which is 
found in the equivalent provision of the Model Law has been removed from 
paragraph iii. 
 
Powers of Court Concerning Interim Measures 


43(1) The court’s powers with respect to the detention, preservation and 
inspection of property, interim injunctions, the appointment of receivers and 
other interim measures are the same in arbitrations as in court actions. 


 
(2) An application by a party to the court for interim measures, whether made 


before or during arbitral proceedings, shall not be deemed to be a waiver of 
the arbitration agreement.  


 
(3) A party affected by an order of the court under section 41 or 43(1) may apply 


to the court to vary or set aside the order due to changes in circumstance 
after the order was made. 


 
Commentary: The prevailing approach in most arbitral rules, and that provided for 
in the Model Law, is that there should be concurrent jurisdiction between the 
court and arbitral tribunal to issue interim measures. This is the approach taken in 
the existing Uniform Act, and it has been continued in the proposed text set out 
above.  Subsection 43(3) is new. 
 


Part 10 – AWARDS AND TERMINATION OF ARBITRAL 
PROCEEDINGS 


 
Majority Decision 


44. If an arbitral tribunal is composed of more than one arbitrator, any decision 
of the arbitral tribunal shall be made by a majority of all its members. 


Commentary: A provision similar to this appears in the existing Uniform Act, the 
Model Law and most other legislation. 


The existing Uniform Arbitration Act also contains the phrase “however, if there is 
no majority decision or unanimous decision, the chair’s decision governs.” This 







 


61 
 


provision has not been carried forward because the Working Group considers that 
this is an issue to be addressed by agreement of the parties rather than by way of 
a default statutory provision. 
 
Survey Questions: 
 
SQ50 Do you think that the new Act should carry forward the provision that 


absent a majority the Chair’s decision governs? 
 


Form of Award  


45(1) An award shall be made in writing and, except in the case of an award made 
by consent, shall state the reasons on which it is based. 


 
(2) An award shall state the place of arbitration and the date on which it is 


made. 


(3) An award shall be signed by all the members of the arbitral tribunal, or by a 
majority of them if an explanation of the omission of any signatures is given 
in the award. 


Commentary: This provision is substantially the same as that in the existing 
Uniform Arbitration Act. The parties can contract out of the requirement for a 
reasoned award. 
 


Delivery of Award to Parties 
 


46(1)An originally signed or certified true copy of an award shall be delivered to 
each party to the arbitral proceeding promptly after the award is made. 


 
(2) If it has not received full payment of its fees and expenses the arbitral 


tribunal may withhold delivery of an award to the parties, and any time limit 
for the delivery of the award shall be extended until security is provided for 
the amount claimed or a court orders delivery of the award on an application 
under subsection (3).  


 
(3) If the arbitral tribunal refuses or fails to deliver an award under subsection 


(2), then, unless there is another agreed process for fixing or reviewing the 
amount of the arbitral tribunal’s fees or expenses, a party to the arbitral 







 


62 
 


proceeding may, upon notice to the other parties and the arbitral tribunal, 
apply to the court, which may order that: 


 
(a) the arbitral tribunal deliver the award on the payment into court of the 


fees and expenses demanded, or such part thereof as the court may 
specify; 


 


(b) the amount of the fees and expenses properly payable to the arbitral 
tribunal shall be summarily determined by the court pursuant to section 
52(3); 


 


(c) out of the money paid into court there shall be paid to the arbitral 
tribunal such fees and expenses as are determined to be properly 
payable; and  


 


(d) the balance of the money paid into court after payment of the arbitral 
tribunal’s fees and expenses be paid out of court as the court directs. 
 


(4) A decision of a court under subsection (3) is not subject to appeal. 
 


Commentary: This is a new provision modelled on one found in the Arbitration 
Act, 1996 (England). It is intended to balance the ability of the parties to dispute 
arbitrators’ fees in domestic cases while also obtaining the award with the 
interest of arbitrators in ensuring that payment of fees is properly secured before 
the award is issued. 


 
Survey Questions: 
 
SQ51 Do you agree that a provision allowing arbitrators to refuse delivery of an 


award until paid is appropriate? 
 
SQ52 Do you agree that a provision allowing for payment into court when there is 


a fee dispute is appropriate? 
 
 


 







 


63 
 


Extension of Time Limit for Award 


47(1) The court may, upon application by an arbitral tribunal or a party to the 
arbitral proceeding, extend the time within which the arbitral tribunal is 
required to make an award, even if the time has expired, if the court is 
satisfied that a substantial injustice would otherwise be done. 


 
(2) A decision of a court under subsection (1) is not subject to appeal. 
 
Commentary: This provision is based on one in the existing Uniform Act, but has 
been expanded to make it clear that an arbitral tribunal, as well as a party, may 
apply to the court and to add the “substantial injustice” requirement. 
 
Survey Questions: 
 
SQ53 Do you agree that a provision allowing a court to extend the time for 


delivery of the award in cases of substantial injustice is appropriate? 
 
SQ54 Do you think that there should be added to the Act a default statutory time 


limit for the delivery of an award? 
 
Corrections, Clarifications and Additional Awards 


48(1)The arbitral tribunal may, 
 


(a) on its own initiative, within 30 days after the delivery of the award, or 
 


(b) on the application of a party made within 30 days after the delivery of 
the award,  
 


correct an award to remove any typographical error, clerical mistake, error 
of calculation or error arising from an accidental slip or omission. 


 
(2) A party may, within 30 days after the delivery of the award, request the 


arbitral tribunal to clarify or interpret a specific passage, statement or part 
of the award.  


 







 


64 
 


(3) If the arbitral tribunal considers that an application or request made under 
subsection (1)(b) or (2) is justified, it shall make the correction or give the 
clarification or interpretation within 30 days after the application or request, 
and the correction, clarification or interpretation shall thereafter be 
considered to be part of the award.  
 


(4) Within 30 days after the delivery of an award, a party may apply to the 
arbitral tribunal to make an additional award in respect of any claim 
(including a claim for interest or costs) which was presented to the arbitral 
tribunal for decision but which was not dealt with in the award and 
concerning which the arbitral tribunal did not expressly reserve its 
jurisdiction. 


 


(5) If the arbitral tribunal considers an application under subsection (4) to be 
justified, it shall make the additional award within 60 days after the 
application. 


 
Commentary: This section deals with three distinct situations which often arise 
after the issuance of an award – (i) corrections (ii) clarifications and (iii) 
additional awards to address matters that should have been but were not 
decided by the award. Such provisions appear in the Model Law and are typical 
in other arbitration statutes, although the way in which they are expressed 
varies. The existing Uniform Act dealt only with corrections and clarifications. 
The concept of an additional award has been added, based on ideas taken from 
the Model Law and the Arbitration Act, 1996. 
 
Survey Questions: 
 
SQ55: Do you agree with the addition of an express power to make an additional 


award? 
 
Partial Awards 


 


49.  The arbitral tribunal may make one or more awards finally deciding a part or 
parts of the dispute which is the subject of the arbitral proceeding, while 
retaining jurisdiction to decide other parts of the dispute that have not been 
finally decided.  







 


65 
 


Commentary: The concept of more than one final award is present in the existing 
Uniform Act. The Working Group determined that it was not necessary to include 
Section 41 of the existing Uniform Act empowering the arbitral tribunal to make 
“one or more interim awards.” A final decision concerning a matter in dispute 
should be decided by a final award. If appropriate, individual issues or claims can 
be finally decided by a partial award. The powers of an arbitral tribunal to grant 
interim measures of protection, and provisions concerning the enforcement of 
such measures are set out exhaustively in another part of the Act. The authority 
of the arbitral tribunal to decide procedural issues by procedural orders (which 
are not awards) is also described elsewhere. The Working Group is not able to 
identify what matters in addition to those already dealt with elsewhere in the Act 
would be decided by an “Interim Award” and sees no need to create (or 
perpetuate) another sub-species of award of uncertain nature. 


 
Survey Questions: 
 
SQ56: Do you agree that there is no need for a separate provision authorizing 
“interim awards”? 
 


Binding Nature of Award 


50. An award binds the parties, unless it is set aside or varied in accordance with 
this Act. 


Commentary: This provision is carried forward, with a slight change in wording, 
from the existing Uniform Act. 


 
Awards Concerning Costs 


51(1) The arbitral tribunal may make an award requiring a party to pay to another 
party all or part of the other party’s costs of the arbitration. 


(2) A party’s costs of the arbitration include all amounts that the party has paid 
or has become liable to pay for: 


(a) actual reasonable legal fees, including disbursements and any 
applicable taxes, in connection with the arbitration; 







 


66 
 


(b) reasonable expert witness fees, including disbursements and any 
applicable taxes, for services rendered by expert witnesses in 
connection with the arbitration; 


(c) the fees and expenses of the arbitral tribunal, including any applicable 
taxes; and 


(d) expenses incurred for hearing facilities, translation or transcription of 
evidence or other similar expenses reasonably incurred in connection 
with the arbitration. 


(3) If the arbitral tribunal makes an award under subsection (1), the arbitral 
tribunal shall by the same award or a separate award, summarily determine 
the amount of the costs payable 


 


(4) At any time during the arbitral proceeding, if the arbitral tribunal finds that 
any conduct of a party unnecessarily increased another party’s costs of the 
arbitration, the arbitral tribunal may make such award of costs as it finds is 
appropriate, including an award requiring one party to pay to another, at 
such time as the arbitral tribunal considers appropriate, an amount the 
arbitral tribunal considers to be a reasonable estimate of such increased 
costs. 
 


(5) If a party makes an offer to another party to settle the dispute or part of the 
dispute and the offer is not accepted the arbitral tribunal may take that fact 
into account when awarding the costs of the arbitration, but the fact that an 
offer to settle was made shall not be communicated to the arbitral tribunal 
until it has issued a final award determining all aspects of the dispute other 
than costs. 


 


 
Commentary: It is generally accepted that arbitrators have discretion when 
awarding costs. There is a divergence of practice and legislation across Canada 
concerning the quantification of costs in domestic arbitrations. In B.C., for 
example, the legislation expressly authorizes awards based on actual, reasonable 
legal fees and expenses. Other legislation (e.g. Alberta) refers to schedules of 
court costs, which typically result in recovery of less than the full amount of actual 
legal fees and expenses.   
 







 


67 
 


The parties are free to agree on whether costs should be recoverable at all and, if 
so, on what basis. The Working Group concluded that there is no proper basis for 
imposing a cap on cost recovery akin to that typically imposed by rules of court, 
and that, subject to any agreement to the contrary, the new Act should allow 
recovery of up to the full amount of a parties’ actual, reasonable legal fees and 
expenses in connection with the arbitration. There was no consensus among the 
members of the Working Group as to whether there should be presumption in 
favour of payment of actual, reasonable legal fees.  
 
Subsection 51(3) requires arbitrators to fix the amount of costs payable. The 
provision in the existing Uniform Act allowing arbitrators to refer quantification to 
an appropriate court officer has not been carried forward. Court taxing officers 
are not familiar with arbitral proceedings and may be unduly influenced by court 
practice. Arbitrators are in a very good position to make a summary assessment 
of whether costs were reasonably incurred – they have carriage of the case 
throughout, observe the work done by all counsel and will be alive to any 
inefficiencies. 
 
Subsection 51(4) is new. It gives arbitrators the express power to make costs 
awards during the proceeding to sanction conduct that has unnecessarily 
increased another party’s costs. 
 
Subsection 51(5) carries forward from the existing Uniform Act the concept of 
offers to settle being factored into costs awards.  
 
Survey Questions 
 
SQ57 Do you agree that the new Act should allow arbitrators to award costs 


based on actual reasonable legal fees and expenses? 
 
SQ58 Do you agree that arbitrators should be empowered to make awards of 


costs during the course of the proceeding to sanction conduct that has 
unnecessarily increased another party’s costs? 


 
SQ59 Do you agree that the arbitral tribunal should be required to quantify costs, 


and should not have the option of referring the quantification to a court 
taxing officer? 







 


68 
 


 
Arbitral Tribunal’s Fees and Expenses 


52(1) The fees and expenses payable to one or more members of the arbitral 
tribunal  


 
(a) shall be calculated in accordance with any agreement between the 


parties and the member or members of the arbitral tribunal; or 
 


(b) absent such an agreement, shall not exceed the fair value of the services 
performed and the necessary and reasonable expenses actually incurred 
by the member or members of the arbitral tribunal. 


 
(2) If a party to an arbitration alleges that the fees and expenses paid to or 


demanded by a member or members of the arbitral tribunal exceed the 
amount described in subsection (1), or fails to pay the fees and expenses of a 
member or members of the arbitral tribunal when demanded, then unless 
there is another agreed process for fixing or reviewing the amount of the 
fees or expenses, the party or the member or members of the arbitral 
tribunal may apply to the court for a summary determination of the amount 
of fees and expenses properly payable. 


 
(3) An application under subsection 52(2) shall be made no later than 60 days 


after the earlier of, 
(i) the date on which the payment in question was demanded;  or  
(ii) the date on which the payment in question was made. 
 


(4) If the court is to make a summary determination under either of subsections 
46(3) or 52(2), the court may give such directions as it deems appropriate to 
establish the procedure for making the summary determination, including 
referring the determination to [enacting jurisdiction to identify appropriate 
court officer]. 


 
(5) Upon a determination having been made under subsection 52(2), if a party 


fails to pay any balance found to be due and owing to a member or members 
of the arbitral tribunal or if a member or members of the arbitral tribunal fail 
to reimburse any part of the fees and expenses paid in excess of the amount 
found to be properly payable, in either case within 14 days of the court’s 







 


69 
 


determination, the court may enter judgment for any unpaid portion of the 
amount due and owing. 


 
(6) A decision of a court under subsections (2) and (5) is not subject to appeal. 
 


Commentary:  The Working Group considered whether the new Act should 
include a provision dealing with the determination of arbitrators’ fees and 
expenses, as does the existing Uniform Act. The Working Group concluded that 
some provision for review of arbitrator fees is appropriate, but that it should 
recognize that parties who engage arbitrators and agree on the basis of their 
compensation should be bound by the terms of their engagement. The best check 
on excessive fees is to deal with them by agreement in advance and to select 
arbitrators with appropriate experience and billing practices. 
 
In many cases, parties and arbitrators enter into an agreement setting out how 
the arbitrators are to be compensated, typically based on an agreed hourly rate. 
In the case of institutional arbitrations, the institution may play a role in fixing or 
reviewing the arbitrators’ fees. The existing Uniform Act provides that arbitrators’ 
fees cannot exceed the fair value of the services provided, and provides that 
arbitrators’ fees may be “taxed.” The Working Group considers that: 
 
(a) If the parties have agreed, by adopting institutional rules or otherwise, that 


an institution shall fix or review an arbitrator’s fees and expenses, then there 
should be no basis for court involvement; 
 


(b) If the parties have agreed on the basis of the arbitrator’s remuneration, then 
that agreement should prevail and the fees should not be open to challenge 
on the basis that they do not represent fair value – “fair value” should be a 
default measure for compensation; 


 
(c) Absent some other agreed procedure, either a party or an arbitrator should 


be able to obtain a summary determination from a court of whether the 
remuneration paid or payable complies with the agreed compensation or, 
absent agreement, with the “fair value” standard; 


 







 


70 
 


(d) “taxation” of arbitrator’s accounts in the same manner as lawyers accounts 
may not always be appropriate, as there are significant differences in the 
duties of arbitrators to the parties and the duties of lawyers to a client. 
 


Survey Questions:  
 
SQ60 Do you agree that a “fair value” standard should not be able to be used to 


trump an express agreement between the parties and an arbitrator 
concerning compensation? 


 
SQ61 Do you agree that, unless the parties have agreed that fees are to be fixed 


or reviewed by an institution, the new Act should provide for a summary 
court determination of arbitrator compensation? 


 


Termination of proceedings 


53(1) Arbitral proceedings are terminated when, 


 
(a)  the arbitral tribunal makes an award or awards in accordance with this 


Act, determining all matters in dispute that were referred to arbitration 
and, 
 
(i) the time for any proceedings under Sections 48, 56 and 57 has 


expired without any such proceedings having been taken, or 
(ii) any proceedings under Sections 48, 56 and 57 have been 


completed and the court has not referred any matter to the 
arbitral tribunal for decision; 


  
(b) in accordance with this Act, the arbitral tribunal issues an order 


declaring the arbitral proceedings to be terminated; or 
 


(c) the parties agree that the arbitral proceeding is terminated. 


 


(2) The arbitral tribunal may issue an order declaring the arbitral proceedings to 
be terminated if, 


 







 


71 
 


(a) all claims in the arbitral proceeding are withdrawn or abandoned, 
unless a party objects to the proposed order for termination and the 
arbitral tribunal is satisfied that the objecting party has a legitimate 
interest in continuing the proceedings; or 


 
(b) the arbitral tribunal finds that the continuation of the proceedings has 


for any reason become unnecessary or impossible. 
 


(3) If an arbitral proceeding is terminated under subsection (2): 
 


(a) the arbitral tribunal may, if requested to do so by a party, 
concurrently with the order for termination make such award or 
awards as to costs as it considers appropriate in the circumstances; 
and 


(b) the termination does not affect the validity or enforceability of any 
award or partial award made in the arbitral proceeding before 
termination. 
 


(4) The mandate of the arbitral tribunal terminates with the termination of the 
arbitral proceedings. 
 


Commentary: The proposed provision is consistent with that of the existing 
Uniform Act and the Model Law. 
  
SQ62 Do you think that there is any benefit to including a provision in the new Act 
setting out when an arbitral proceeding is “terminated.” 
 
SQ63 Do you think that the Act should define “termination” or explain its legal 


consequences, in terms of such matters as res judicata etc? 
 
Interest 


54. [Each enacting jurisdiction should give arbitral tribunals the power to order the 
payment of “pre-award” interest in the same manner as courts may order 
pre-judgment interest, and should provide that awards bear interest in the 
same manner as judgments.] 


 







 


72 
 


Commentary: This section is identical to Section 57 of the existing Uniform 
Arbitration Act. 
 


Part 11 – RECOURSE AGAINST AND ENFORCEMENT OF AWARDS 
 


55.  No decision, order or award of an arbitral tribunal may be appealed to 


or be reviewed or set aside by a court, except as provided in this Act.  


 


Appeals on Questions of Law 


56(1) Subject to Subsection (2), a party to an arbitral proceeding may, [Opt-out: 
unless the arbitration agreement provides that no such appeal may be 
brought; or Opt-in: if the arbitration agreement provides that such an appeal 
may be brought], appeal to the Court of Appeal from an award on a question 
of law arising out of the award.  


 
(2) No appeal may be brought under subsection (1) without first obtaining the 


leave of the Court of Appeal, which may decide any dispute concerning 
whether the arbitration agreement provides that no appeal may be brought 
on a question of law. 
 


(3) [Except as provided by section Transitional] an arbitration agreement 
purporting to allow an appeal to the court or the Court of Appeal on a 
question of fact or mixed fact and law is not enforceable, but this does not 
affect the enforceability of the rest of the arbitration agreement. 


 


(4) On an application for leave under subsection (2) the Court of Appeal may 
grant leave if it determines that the question of law significantly affects the 
rights of the parties, and 


 
(a) granting leave to appeal may prevent a miscarriage of justice, 


 


(b) the question of law is of importance to some class or body of persons of 
which the applicant is a member, or 


 


(c) the question of law is of general or public importance. 







 


73 
 


 
(5) If the Court of Appeal grants leave to appeal it may attach such conditions to 


the order granting leave as it considers just. 
 


(6) On an appeal the Court of Appeal may 
 


(a) confirm, vary or set aside the award to reflect the Court of Appeal’s 
opinion on the question of law that was the subject of the appeal, or 
 


(b) remit the award to the arbitral tribunal together with the Court of 
Appeal's opinion on the question of law that was the subject of the 
appeal. 


 
Commentary: The existing Uniform Act allows parties to appeal to a court of first 
instance on questions of law, with leave of that court, or without leave if the 
arbitration agreement expressly authorizes such appeals or all parties consent. 
The existing Uniform Act also permits parties to appeal to a court of first instance 
on questions of fact or mixed questions of law and fact, without leave, if such 
appeals are authorized by the arbitration agreement. A party may not appeal to 
the court, however, on a question of law “which the parties expressly referred to 
the arbitral tribunal for decision.” The decision of the court of first instance can 
then be further appealed to the court of appeal, with leave of that court.  
 
There is a consensus among members of the Working Group that appeals on 
questions of fact or mixed fact and law should not be allowed. Proposed Section 
56 (subject to a transitional provision) prohibits appeals on questions of fact or on 
questions of mixed fact and law, even if the parties have agreed to allow such 
appeals. This is a policy decision concerning which the Working Group invites 
comment.  
 
There is not yet a clear consensus as to whether there should be any right to 
appeal questions of law and, if so, whether such appeal rights should be available 
on an “opt-in” or an “opt out” basis. If the “No Appeal Alternative” were to be 
implemented, Section 56 likely would be deleted in its entirety.  
 







 


74 
 


Subsection 56(1), above, assumes that appeals on questions of law will be 
permitted, but identifies two alternative approaches; an “Opt-in Alternative” and 
an “Opt-out Alternative.”  
 
If appeals on questions of law are to be permitted, the Working Group sees 
benefit to a more streamlined appeal process, to the Court of Appeal rather than 
a court of first instance. Proposed subsections 56(1) and (2) requires appeals on 
questions of law to go to the Court of Appeal, but also requires that leave be 
obtained in all cases, so that the Court of Appeal can screen out cases involving 
questions of fact or mixed fact and law, or cases where the alleged error of law is 
not material.  
 
Considerations in Favour of the “No- Appeal Alternative” 
 
A distinctive feature of arbitration is that it provides an alternative to resolution 
of a dispute by the courts.  Arguably, arbitration is most effective when it provides 
a process that yields a final result without court involvement. This view of 
arbitration exists in both civil law and common law contexts. Article 2638 of the 
Civil Code of Quebec, defines an arbitration agreement as "a contract by which 
the parties undertake to submit a present or future dispute to the decision of one 
or more arbitrators, to the exclusion of the courts." 


Lord Mustill in the Privy Council in 1995 said:  


Arbitration is a contractual method of resolving disputes. By their 
contract the parties agree to entrust the differences between them 
to the decision of an arbitrator or panel of arbitrators, to the 
exclusion of the Courts, and they bind themselves to accept that 
decision, once made, whether or not they think it right. 


An appeal substitutes the decision of a judge or judges assigned by the 
court for that of the parties’ chosen decision maker. There is no assurance 
that the substituted decision of the court will be qualitatively “better” than 
the arbitrators’ award. An appeal publicizes the existence of the dispute 
and the outcome. An appeal extends the time before which a decision is 
final. An appeal adds to the cost of the dispute resolution process. (In 
Sattva Capital [2014] S.C.J. No 53, the process lasted 5 ½ years and 
advanced the resolution of the dispute no further than to have the highest 
court in the province pronounce the award to be “absurd” and the highest 







 


75 
 


court in the country pronounce it to be “not unreasonable.”) Parties who 
wish to choose arbitration but preserve rights of appeal can do so by 
providing an appeal process within the arbitration, or by adopting 
institutional rules that have an appeal process. 


Currently, there is no right of appeal from a domestic arbitration award 
made in Quebec. In Ontario, and some other provinces, an agreement that 
an award is “final and binding” has been interpreted as an agreement to 
opt-out of appeal rights.  
 
Considerations Against the “No-Appeal Alternative” 
 
Arbitrators have been, and under the proposed Act will continue to be, 
required to decide disputes according to law. Parties to domestic 
arbitrations in Canada generally expect arbitrators to correctly apply the 
law in their awards, although the relative priority assigned by the parties to 
having a legally correct result versus achieving the procedural advantages 
of arbitration may differ from party to party or from agreement to 
agreement. It is arguable that if there is no prospect of a review for errors 
of law for domestic arbitrations, an important factor imposing discipline on 
arbitrators to properly apply the law is missing. Arbitrators are not required 
to have legal training. The arbitration regime should be flexible enough to 
reflect user expectations, and, in particular, should have a mechanism to 
allow appeals on errors of law if parties believe that the advantages of an 
appeal to the courts outweigh the disadvantages. 
 
The main factor that supports the “no-appeal” approach in international 
arbitration is the desire to avoid an adjudication of the merits of the 
dispute by a foreign court, either in the first instance or at the enforcement 
stage.  It can be argued that domestic Canadian users are not concerned 
about unfair or unpredictable treatment by Canadian courts in the same 
way that parties may be concerned about treatment by foreign courtsand 
that they choose arbitration for other reasons.  
 
Some members of the Working Group are concerned that i new legislation 
is adopted that precludes any right of appeal, even by agreement, some 
domestic commercial users will prefer court litigation to arbitration for that 
reason. 







 


76 
 


 
The “Opt-In Alternative” and the “Opt-Out Alternative” 
 


The opt-in and opt-out alternatives operate equally effectively if the parties 
are in agreement as to whether there should or should not be an appeal 
right. The issue is what should be the “default” position, if the parties do 
not agree or fail to consider and address the question of whether appeals 
should be allowed when making their arbitration agreement.  


Proponents of the Opt-In alternative suggest that, for all the same reasons 
that some favour an absolute bar to appeals, if any appeal right is to be 
preserved it should only be available where all parties agree. If a party 
wishes to preserve court recourse, and the counterparty does not, the 
remedy is to refuse to agree to arbitrate, as the exclusion of court 
involvement is a fundamental attribute of arbitration. 


Those who favour an opt-out approach suggest that in cases where parties 
or their advisors fail to consider the matter of appeals when making the 
arbitration agreement, less harm is likely to be done by having a default 
position that allows an appeal than would be done by denying any right to 
appeal. Put another way, Canadian domestic users – clients and counsel – 
are more likely to assume that errors of law can be appealed than to 
assume that there is no appeal.  


Survey Questions 


SQ64 Do you think that there should be no right to appeal an arbitration 
award?  


 
SQ65 Do you think that parties should be precluded from appealing 


arbitration awards on questions of fact or mixed fact and law? 
 
SQ66 If there is to be a right to appeal on questions of law, should it be 


available only if the parties so agree (i.e. opt-in)? 
 
SQ67 If there is to be a right to appeal on questions of law, should the 


parties be able to opt-out of the right of appeal? 
 







 


77 
 


SQ68 Do you favour the idea that appeals on questions of law should go 
directly to the court of appeal, subject to a leave requirement? 


 
Setting Aside Awards 


57(1) On a party’s application, the court may set aside an award on any of the 
following grounds: 


 
(a) a party entered into the arbitration agreement while under a legal 


incapacity; 
 
(b) the arbitration agreement does not exist or is null and void or 


unenforceable;  
 
(c) the award deals with a dispute not falling within the terms of the 


arbitration agreement or contains a decision on a matter that is beyond 
the scope of the arbitration agreement;  


 
(d) the composition of the arbitral tribunal was not in accordance with the 


arbitration agreement or, to the extent that the arbitration agreement 
did not deal with the composition of the arbitral tribunal, was not in 
accordance with this Act; 


 
(e) the dispute is not capable of being the subject of arbitration under 


[enacting jurisdiction] law; 
 
(f) the applicant was not given a reasonable opportunity to present its case 


or to answer the case  presented against it by other parties or was not 
given proper notice of the arbitration or of the appointment of an 
arbitrator; 


 
(g)  there is a justifiable doubt as to the independence or impartiality of the 


arbitral tribunal; 
 


(h) the award was the result of fraud or corruption by a member of the 
arbitral tribunal or was obtained by fraudulent behaviour by a party or 
its representatives in connection with the conduct of the arbitral 
proceeding. 







 


78 
 


(2) If the court finds on an application under subsection (1) that the grounds 
described in subsections (1)(c) or (e) apply in respect of only part of the 
subject-matter of the dispute decided by the award, the court may, if it finds 
that it would not create an injustice to do so, set aside the award in part and 
allow the balance of the award to stand. 


 
(3)   The court shall not set aside an award on grounds referred to in subsections 


(1)(c) or (d) if it finds that the applicant waived the right to object on those 
grounds. 


 
(4) The court shall not set aside an award on grounds referred to in clause (1)(g) 


if, before the award was made,  
 
(a) the applicant failed to follow the applicable procedure required by the 


arbitration agreement or this Act for seeking the removal of the 
arbitrator based on the circumstances it relies upon to seek to set aside 
the award; or 


 
(b) the court has previously determined that substantially the same 


circumstances as are relied upon to set aside the award were not 
sufficient to justify the removal of the  arbitrator. 


 


(5) The court shall not set aside an award on a ground to which the applicant is 
deemed under section 5 to have waived the right to object. 


 


Commentary: The statutory jurisdiction of a court to set aside all or part of an 
award is discretionary.  
 
The Working Group concluded that parties should not be able, by contract, to 
exclude the set-aside remedy, although they may be precluded by their conduct 
from asserting certain of the grounds for setting aside. This is consistent with the 
Model Law and with most domestic arbitration statutes.  
 
Proposed Section 21 allows the arbitral tribunal to decide jurisdictional issues as a 
preliminary matter or as part of a final award. If decided as a preliminary matter, 
the parties have the option, but not the obligation, to seek an immediate judicial 







 


79 
 


review of the correctness of the arbitral tribunal’s findings. If such a review is 
sought and the court confirms the tribunal’s jurisdiction, then Subsection 21(8) 
provides  that the court’s findings are final, and that the same jurisdictional issue 
cannot then be raised at the setting aside stage. If, however, the court has not 
reviewed a preliminary finding of jurisdiction, it should still be open to challenge 
that finding later on a set aside application.  
 
Legal Incapacity of Party When Arbitration Agreement Made 
 
Proposed Subsection 57(1)(a) is carried forward from the existing Uniform 
Arbitration Act. Drawn from the Model Law, it has been enacted in Ontario, 
Alberta, Manitoba, New Brunswick, Nova Scotia and Saskatchewan, as well as in 
the Commercial Arbitration Code. Quebec has a similar provision. It has been 
suggested that this power be limited where an arbitral tribunal has already 
considered and rules on the issue. The Working Group concluded, however, that 
whether there was a legally binding arbitration agreement is ultimately a question 
going to the jurisdiction of the arbitral tribunal, so that if a decision about the 
capacity to contract is made by an arbitral tribunal, and if it has not already been 
subject to review by a court as part of an earlier jurisdictional challenge, it should 
be reviewable on a set aside application. 
 
Arbitration Agreement Invalid or No Longer in Existence 
 
Proposed Subsection 57(1)(b) is carried forward, with slight modification, from 
the existing Uniform Arbitration Act. The Working Group concluded that these 
grounds for setting aside should be expressed in the same language as contained 
in proposed Section 7, defining the findings which a court could make to justify 
refusing a stay of court proceedings. There is no need in the context of a domestic 
arbitration legislation to use  the more generic, but uncertain expression ”invalid” 
which is used in the Model Law, which was designed for use in multiple legal 
systems. The Working Group believes that under Canadian law the relevant 
concepts are captured by the phrase “the arbitration agreement does not exist or 
is null and void or unenforceable.”  
 
 
 
 







 


80 
 


Excess of Jurisdiction 
 
Proposed Subsection 57(1)(c) is carried forward from the existing Uniform 
Arbitration Act. This power to set aside is conditioned by timeliness and waiver 
provisions (discussed below). The competence-competence principle, as 
articulated by the Supreme Court of Canada, authorizes the arbitral tribunal to 
make findings as to its own jurisdiction and requires courts to refer such issues to 
the tribunal except in the very clearest of cases. The Working Group is not aware, 
however, of any statute that shields from review the findings of an arbitral 
concerning its own jurisdiction.  
 
Composition of the Tribunal Not as Provided for Under Agreements or Statutes 
 
Proposed Subsection 46(1)(d) is carried forward from the existing Uniform Act. 
The proposed language is changed slightly, to reflect the fact that the provisions 
of the Act relating to the composition of the tribunal are relevant only if the 
arbitration agreement does not adequately address the matter. 
 
Subject-Matter Not Arbitrable Under Relevant Substantive Law 
 
Proposed Subsection 57(1)(e) is carried forward from the existing Uniform Act.  
 
No Reasonable Opportunity to Present One’s Case/Lack of Notice 
 
Proposed Subsection 57(1)(f) is a modified version of a provision that appears in 
the existing Uniform Act.  
 
The Model Law ground is “the party making the application was not given proper 
notice of the appointment of an arbitrator or of the arbitral proceedings or was 
otherwise unable to present his case.” The existing Uniform Act phrase is “the 
applicant was not treated equally and fairly, was not given an opportunity to 
present a case or to respond to another party’s case, or was not given proper 
notice of the arbitration or of the appointment of an arbitrator.” 
 
For reasons described earlier, proposed Section 22 of the Act describes the 
mandatory minimum standard of treatment in the following terms: 
 







 


81 
 


22.    Each party to an arbitral proceeding shall be given a 
reasonable opportunity to present its case and to answer the case 
presented against it by each other party.  


 
The Working Group concluded that the description of the grounds for setting 
aside should use the same language as Section 22.  
 
Non-Compliance With Procedures Under Agreements or Statutes 
 
Section 46(1)(g) of the existing Uniform Act states, includes the following ground 
for setting aside an award: 
 


“the procedures followed in the arbitration did not comply with this 
Act.” 


The Model Law ground is: 


“the arbitral procedure was not in accordance with the agreement of 
the parties, unless such agreement was in conflict with a provision of 
this Law from which the parties cannot derogate, or, failing such 
agreement, was not in accordance with this Law.”.  


 
The proposed new Act has few mandatory procedural requirements. It has been 
suggested that non-compliance with procedure may set the bar too low for 
setting aside an award, if the failure does not attain the significance of 
jurisdictional error or a failure to meet the minimum standard of a reasonable 
opportunity to present one’s case. This possible ground also is particularly 
susceptible to waiver by the parties, whether by conduct or implication. During 
the course of an arbitration, parties often deviate from the strict terms of their 
agreements or procedural rules, and default statutory provisions. Whether 
intentional or inadvertent, these deviations usually have no substantial prejudicial 
effect, so long as they do not result in a breach of the minimum standard of 
treatment. On balance, the Working Group considers that the risk that an award 
might be set aside or of wasteful applications to set aside due to inconsequential 
failures to follow procedural steps, outweighs the benefit of preserving this 
separate ground for setting aside.  
 
 







 


82 
 


Partiality and Lack of Independence 
 
Section 46(1)(h) of the existing Uniform Act is as follows: 
 


“an arbitrator has committed a corrupt or fraudulent act or there is a 
reasonable apprehension of bias” 


 
This ground is not drawn from the Model Law. The proposed new Act deals with 
“fraud” and “bias” as separate grounds. Fraud is discussed below. 
 
Proposed Subsection 57(1)(g) provides for the following ground to set aside an 
award: 
 


“the applicant has justifiable doubts as to the independence or 
impartiality of a member of the arbitral tribunal.” 


 
Although this ground does not appear in the Model Law, the Working Group 
concluded that it should be carried forward from the existing Uniform Act, 
changing the wording from “apprehension of bias” to “justifiable doubts etc.” to 
be consistent with earlier provisions of the proposed Act. Proposed Subsection 
57(4) limits the circumstances in which this ground may be invoked to prevent 
parties from sitting on their challenge rights and raising them only after they are 
not satisfied with the outcome of the case. 
 
Arbitrator Has Committed a Corrupt or Fraudulent Act 
 
The first phrase of Subsection 46(1)(h) of the existing Uniform Act, refers to the 
corruption or fraud of the arbitrator. Subsection 46(1)(i) simply refers to the 
award being “obtained by fraud.” Although the language is not precise, 
presumably this is intended to refer to fraud by a party relating to the 
procurement of the award – not some prior fraudulent conduct that was the 
subject of a claim made in the arbitration.  Neither of these concepts appears in 
the Model Law as a ground to set aside an award.  Through the adoption of the 
existing Uniform Act both grounds have been enacted in Ontario, Alberta, 
Manitoba, New Brunswick, Nova Scotia and Saskatchewan, as well as in the 
Commercial Arbitration Code. Quebec has a very similar provision. This type of 
conduct has been included in the definition of “arbitral error” in the British 







 


83 
 


Columbia statute. It is likely that the Model Law does not include an express 
reference to fraud and corruption because such conduct is likely to be caught by 
the Model Law provision authorizing courts to set aside awards that are “in 
conflict with public policy.”  
 
Proposed Subsection 57(1)(h) combines the two grounds appearing in the existing 
Uniform Act, but expresses them in different language, to remove the uncertainty 
described above.   
 
Public Policy 
 
Article 34(2)(b)(ii) of the Model Law provides that an award may be set aside 
where it contravenes the public policy of the relevant state. This is a safeguard in 
the context of international arbitration to preserve a state’s right to maintain 
policies that are of fundamental importance under its own laws. The existing 
Uniform Act does not include such a provision. The Commercial Arbitration Code 
does have such a provision, and Quebec’s legislation provides that an award may 
be set aside if the award is contrary to “public order.” “Public order” is likely a 
more comprehensive concept than “public policy.”  
 
The Working Group concluded that, rather than including a general public policy 
exception in the domestic legislation, the approach taken under the existing 
Uniform Act should continue. The matters which are of fundamental concern to 
Canadians are protected by the expanded list of enumerated grounds for setting 
aside.  
 
Ancillary Provisions 
 
Proposed Subsections (3), (4) and (5) limit the circumstances in which certain of 
the grounds for setting aside may be invoked. Although there are changes in the 
language for purposes of clarity, the concepts are carried forward from the 
existing Uniform Act.  
    


Survey Questions: 


SQ69 Do you agree that Subsection 57(1)(g) (there is a justifiable doubt as to the 
independence or impartiality of the arbitral tribunal) should be included as 
a ground to set aside an award? 







 


84 
 


SQ70 Do you agree that Subsection 57(1)(h) (the award was the result of fraud or 
corruption by a member of the arbitral tribunal or was obtained by 
fraudulent behaviour by a party or its representatives in connection with 
the conduct of the arbitral proceeding) should be included as a ground to 
set aside an award? 


 


Time Limit for Appeals and Applications to Set Aside 


58(1)Except as provided in subsection (2), an appeal under section 56 or an 
application to set aside an award under section 57 must be commenced 
within thirty days after the appellant or applicant receives the award, 
correction, clarification or additional award on which the appeal or 
application is based. 


 
(2) If the applicant alleges corruption or fraud an application to set aside the 


award under section 57 must be commenced within thirty days after the 
date on which the applicant first knew or reasonably ought to have known of 
the circumstances relied upon to set aside the award. 


 
Commentary:  The proposed 30 day time limit is carried forward from the existing 
Uniform Act. The Uniform International Arbitration Act provides for a 90-day time 
limit for applications to set aside, as that is the period specified in the Model Law. 
The Working Group did not think it appropriate to extend the time limit for set-
aside applications under the proposed new domestic Arbitration Act. It is 
preferable to have the same time limit for both applications to set aside and for 
appeals. 
 
Further Appeal 


59. An appeal from the court’s decision on an application to set aside an award 
under section 57 may be made to the Court of Appeal, with leave of that 
court. 


 
Commentary: This provision is carried forward from the existing Uniform 
Arbitration Act.  
 
 







 


85 
 


Enforcement of Awards 


60(1)Subject to subsection (2), a party granted relief or a remedy by an award in 
an arbitral proceeding with a place of arbitration in Canada may apply to the 
court for judgment enforcing the award. 


 
(2) Subsection (1) does not apply if the arbitral proceeding in which the award 


was made is considered to be international under the laws of the place of 
arbitration, unless, in accordance with those laws, the parties have agreed 
that the laws of the place of arbitration applicable to non-international 
arbitrations apply to the arbitral proceeding.  


 
(3) An application under subsection (1) shall be made on notice to the person 


against whom enforcement is sought, and shall be accompanied by an 
original or a certified copy of the award and evidence as to whether or not: 


 
(a) the time limited for commencing an appeal or an application to set 


aside the award at the place of arbitration has elapsed;  
 
(b) there is a pending appeal or application to set aside the award, or 


a stay of enforcement of the award has been issued, at the place of 
arbitration; or  


 


(c) the award has been set aside by a court of competent jurisdiction. 
 


(4) Except as provided in subsection (5), unless the award has been set aside by 
a court of competent jurisdiction in Canada, on an application under 
subsection (1) the court shall give judgment enforcing the award. 


 
(5) If the court determines that 
 


(a) the time limited for commencing an appeal or an application to set 
aside the award under the laws of the place of arbitration has not 
yet elapsed; or 


  
(b) there is a pending appeal or application to set aside the award, or a 


stay of enforcement of the award has been issued, at the place of 
arbitration; 







 


86 
 


 
the court may order that enforcement of the award is stayed for such time 
and on such conditions as to the deposit of security or otherwise as it finds 
just. 


 
(6) A court shall not enter judgment under subsection (4): 


 
(a) if the award has been set aside by a court at the place of 


arbitration; 
 


(b) to the extent that the dispute is, in whole or in part, not capable of 
being the subject of arbitration under [enacting jurisdiction] law; 
or 


 
(c) in respect of any relief or remedy that the court does not have 


jurisdiction to grant. 
 
(7) Unless the court otherwise orders, a judgment enforcing an award shall be 


construed and enforced in the same manner as a judgment of the court 


granting the relief or remedy described in the award. 


Commentary: Proposed Section 60 is carried forward, with modification, from the 
existing Uniform Act. It requires a court to enforce awards made in non-
international arbitrations where the place of arbitration is in Canada. If the award 
has been set aside by a court of competent jurisdiction at the place of arbitration 
it cannot be enforced. If proceedings to appeal or set aside the award at the place 
of arbitration are pending, or if the time limit for their commencement has not 
yet expired,  the court may stay the enforcement proceeding or, if it determines 
that there has been undue delay in commencing or continuing an appeal or 
application to set aside, enforce the award. If a stay is granted, the court may 
require the posting of security. Otherwise, the only substantive defences to an 
application for enforcement are that the dispute is, in whole or in part, not 
capable of being the subject of arbitration under the enforcing jurisdiction’s law; 
or the court does not have jurisdiction to grant the relief or remedy granted by 
the award.  


 







 


87 
 


The structure of the proposed new Act therefore requires a party who intends to 
resist enforcement to timely initiate an appeal or set aside proceeding at the 
place of arbitration, rather than simply waiting for steps being taken to enforce 
the award. If timely steps to appeal or set aside the award are not taken, 
enforcement can be resisted only on more narrow grounds than might have been 
raised to set the award aside. This approach was present in the existing Uniform 
Act. It is different from the approach taken in the Model Law with respect to 
international awards. (A party to an international award can choose not to initiate 
set aside proceedings and then raise as defences to enforcement proceedings the 
same grounds as it could have raised on an application to set aside the award.) 
 
The existing Uniform Act contains the following provision (S. 50(7)) which is not 
carried forward into the proposed new Act:  
 


(7) If the award gives a remedy that the court does not have 
jurisdiction to grant or would not grant in a proceeding based on 
similar circumstances, the court may, 


 
(a) grant a different remedy requested by the applicant; or 
(b) in the case of an award made in (enacting jurisdiction), remit it 


to the arbitral tribunal with the court’s opinion, in which case 
the arbitral tribunal may award a different remedy. 


 
The Working Group concluded that in Canada there are no material 
differences in the subject-matter jurisdiction of the superior courts of first 
instance. The Working Group also was particularly concerned about 
leaving it open to a court to find that the court “would not have granted [a 
remedy granted by the award] in similar circumstances” and allowing the 
court to remit matters back to the arbitral tribunal on that basis.  
 
Proposed new subsection (7) is intended to give more guidance as to the 
meaning and effect of an award being “enforced” by a court, and the form 
in which judgments granting enforcements may be made. Generally, if a 
court pronounces a judgment declaring that the award is enforced, that 
judgment is to be construed and enforced as if it granted the relief or 
remedy described in the award. Because there is a risk that an award may 
not have been written in a way that facilitates enforcement (e.g. without a 







 


88 
 


concise statement of the disposition of the claims), the court has a 
discretion to re-state the relief or remedy granted by the award in a way 
that will facilitate enforcement proceedings. 
 
Survey Questions: 
 
SQ71 Do you agree that the grounds for resisting enforcement should be 


narrower than the grounds for setting aside, so that unsuccessful 
parties must pro-actively bring any challenge to the award at the 
place of arbitration? 


 
Limitation Period for Enforcement Proceedings 


61(1) No application for enforcement of an arbitral award shall be made after the 
tenth anniversary of 


 
(a) the date on which the time limit expired for the commencement of 


proceedings at the place of arbitration to appeal or set aside the 
award, if no such proceedings were commenced; or 


 
(b)  the date on which proceedings at the place of arbitration to appeal 


or set aside the award concluded, if such proceedings were 
commenced. 


 
(2) Despite subsection (1), if an arbitral award was made before the coming into 


force of this Act but an application for enforcement of that award was not 
made before that day, no application shall be made after the earlier of the 
following 


 
(a) the date determined under subsection (1); or 
 
(b) the date on which the limitation period that applied in respect of 


the recognition or enforcement of the arbitral award before the 
coming into force of this Act expired or would have expired. 


 
(3)  Where there is a conflict between this Act and any other Act on the 


limitation period for recognition or enforcement of arbitral awards, this Act 
prevails. 







 


89 
 


 
Commentary: Proposed subsection 10(4) establishes a ten year limitation period 
for applications seeking recognition and enforcement of awards. This is longer 
than the time limit under existing legislation of some provinces, and longer than 
the two year limitation period under the existing Uniform Arbitration Act. It is, 
however, consistent with the limitation period under the ULCC’s new Uniform 
International Arbitration Act. It is important to ensure that the limitation periods 
for recognition and enforcement of domestic arbitral awards are no shorter than 
those for international w, to avoid any argument that that Canada is in breach of 
its obligations under the New York Convention.  


 


SQ72 Do you agree that a 10 year limitation period should apply to the 
commencement of proceedings to enforce an award? 


 
Part 12 – ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS 


 
Confidentiality of Arbitral Proceedings 


 
62. Except to the extent that any disclosure is: 
 


(a) required by law, 
  
(b) authorized by agreement of the parties to the arbitral proceeding, or 
 
(c) necessary for the purposes of preparing and presenting a claim or 


defence in the arbitral proceeding or enforcing a right under this Act 
and not prohibited by an agreement of the parties, 


 
all proceedings, evidence and information in connection with an arbitral 
proceeding are confidential. 


 
Commentary: Parties often assume that arbitral proceedings are confidential. 
Confidentiality is perceived as a benefit of arbitration. However, there is some 
uncertainty in the law in Canada as to the extent that arbitral proceedings are 
confidential, absent an express agreement of the parties. The Working Group 







 


90 
 


concluded that it would be consistent with widely held user expectations to 
establish a general rule that arbitral proceedings are confidential, while also 
providing exceptions.  
 
Under the proposed provision the parties can contract out of the proposed 
statutory confidentiality obligations, in whole or in part. The parties could also 
create a more restrictive disclosure regime. 
 
Survey Questions: 
 
SQ73 Do you agree that the new Act should declare arbitral proceedings to be 
confidential, subject to stated exceptions? 
 
SQ74 Do you agree that the arbitral tribunal should not be authorized to over-ride 
a confidentiality agreement between the parties? 
 
Delivery   


63(1) If the parties have agreed on a method for delivery or service of a document    
or for giving written notice, then any document may be delivered or served 
and any written notice may be given in accordance with that agreement. 


 
(2) If the parties have agreed on a date by which any document or written 


notice is deemed to have been received, served or given then any such 
document or written notice is deemed to have been received, served or 
given in accordance with that agreement. 


 
(3) If the parties have not agreed on a method for delivery of a document or 


giving written notice, a document may be delivered or a written notice may 
be given to an individual: 


 
(a) by leaving it with the individual; 
 
(b) by leaving it at the individual’s last-known place of business, habitual 


residence or mailing address;  
 







 


91 
 


(c) by sending it by facsimile or electronic transmission to the phone 
number or other electronically accessible address that the addressee 
specified for the purpose;  


 


(d) by sending it to the individual’s last-known place of business, habitual 
residence or mailing address by registered letter or another means 
which provides a record of the delivery; or 


 


(e) after the arbitral tribunal has been constituted, in such other manner as 
the arbitral tribunal directs. 


 
(4) If the parties have not agreed on a method for delivery of a document or 


giving written notice, a document may be delivered or a written notice may 
be given to a corporation, : 


 
(a) by leaving it with an officer, director or agent of the corporation; 
 
(b) by leaving it at a place of business of the corporation with a person who 


appears to be in control or management of the place; or 
 


(c) by sending it by facsimile or electronic transmission to the phone 
number or other electronically accessible address that the addressee 
specified for the purpose;  


 
(d) by any other means provided by applicable law; or 
 


(e) after the arbitral tribunal has been constituted, in such other manner as 


the arbitral tribunal directs. 


 


(5) If the parties have not agreed on a date on which delivery of a document is 
deemed to have occurred or written notice shall be deemed to have 
occurred, the, unless the addressee establishes that the addressee, acting in 
good faith, did not actually receive it until a later date, 
 







 


92 
 


(a) a document delivered or a written notice given under any of 
Subsections (3)(a),(b) and (c) or (4) is deemed to have been 
received and given on the date it is delivered; 


 
(b) a document delivered or a written notice given under Subsection 


(3)(d) is deemed to have been received on the fifth day after it is 
sent. 


 
(6) If it is satisfied that it is impractical or impossible to deliver a document 


required to be delivered or a written notice required to be given for the 
purposes of commencing an arbitral proceeding or constituting the arbitral 
tribunal in the manner described in Subsections (1) or (2), on application of 
the party seeking to effect delivery or give written notice the court may 
make an order authorizing an alternative method of delivery or giving notice 
and declaring the date by which receipt of the document or giving of notice 
will be deemed to have occurred.  


 
(7) This section does not apply to the service or delivery of documents in respect 


of court proceedings. 
 


Commentary: It is important to have certainty concerning how notice is to be 
given and when it is deemed to have occurred. Lack of notice concerning the 
commencement of the arbitration or the appointment of an arbitrator can lead to 
an award being set aside. For the purposes of limitation periods it is important to 
know when the arbitral proceeding has been commenced. If the parties have a 
detailed arbitration agreement or have adopted institutional rules they will 
probably detail how notice is to be given and when it is deemed to have been 
received. If there is no such provision, default mechanisms are required. Although 
there are substantial changes in the language and organization of the section, 
proposed Section 63 carries forward concepts that are present in the existing 
Uniform Act. 


 
Crown Bound 
 
64. This Act binds the Crown. 
 
 







 


93 
 


Transitional 


65.  [Enacting jurisdictions should consider whether section 56, which limits 
rights of appeal from arbitral awards, is more restrictive than their current 
arbitration legislation. If so, enacting jurisdictions should ensure that the 
regime for appeals under the current legislation continues to apply in 
respect of arbitration agreements made before the coming into force of the 
new act, and to any awards made in arbitrations under such arbitration 
agreements.]  


 
  







 


94 
 


LIST OF SURVEY QUESTIONS 


A link to the survey is provided in the introductory email. 


PART 1 – INTRODUCTORY MATTERS  


SQ1 Is it appropriate to include a statement of the purposes and objectives of 
the Act? 


SQ2 Do you agree that the definition of award should not refer expressly to 
“interim award”? 


SQ3 Do you agree that the definition of “arbitrator” should include an umpire? 


SQ4 Do you agree that parties to an international arbitration agreement should 
have the ability to “opt-in” to this Act by agreement in writing? 


SQ5 Do you agree that the applicability of the Act to family arbitrations is best 
left to be dealt with by family law legislation? 


SQ6 Do you agree that parties should be able to contract out of the requirement 
for arbitrators to be independent? 


SQ7 Do you agree that parties should be able to contract out of the requirement 
that arbitrators be impartial?  


PART 2 – COURT INTERVENTION 


SQ8 Do you agree with the proposed new formulation of the circumstances in 
which the court may grant a stay as set out in Section 7(1)? 


SQ9 Do you agree that former subsections 7(5) and (6) should not be carried 
forward into the new Act? 


SQ10 Do you think that the court should have the power to over-ride a 
commitment to arbitrate and to require that all claims be litigated in court 
where not doing so would result in a multiplicity of proceedings concerning 
related matters and potentially inconsistent results? 


PART 3 – ARBITRATION AGREEMENTS  


SQ11 Do you think it would be useful to include a provision describing how the 
law applicable to the arbitration agreement should be identified? 







 


95 
 


SQ12 Do you agree that consolidation of arbitrations should only occur where the 
parties have agreed to consolidate? 


SQ13 Do you agree that it is helpful to have a provision in the new Uniform Act 
allowing a court to enforce consolidation agreements? 


SQ14 Do you agree that proposed subsections (3) – (5) provide useful  direction to 
a court as to when and when not to make an order for consolidation? 


PART 4 – COMMENCEMENT OF ARBITRAL PROCEEDINGS  


SQ15 Do you agree that the running of time for limitation period purposes should 
be tolled as provided by proposed subsections 10(2) and (3)? 


SQ16 Do you agree that the failure to give a concise description of the matter in 
dispute should not render an originating notice ineffective to commence 
arbitral proceedings? 


 SQ17 Do you agree that the arbitral tribunal, once constituted should have the 
power to stay or suspend proceedings until a concise description of the 
matter in dispute is provided? 


SQ18 Do you agree that it is useful to include a provision to make it clear that the 
arbitral tribunal, rather than the court, is to decide defences based on 
limitation periods? 


SQ19 Do you believe that, in addition to giving effect to legal defences to the 
strict of enforcement contractual limitation periods, there should be a 
general discretionary power in the court or the arbitral tribunal to extend a 
contractual time limit for the commencement of arbitral proceedings? 


PART 5 – CONSTITUTING THE ARBITRAL TRIBUNAL  


SQ20 Do you think that proposed subsection 14(4) gives sufficient direction to the 
court? 


SQ21 Do you think that this section of the Act should address the rare 
circumstance where the number of arbitrators is not one or three? 


SQ22 Do you agree that the “independence and impartiality” language to 
describe the standard is appropriate? 







 


96 
 


SQ23 Do you agree that it is sufficient to require disclosure by arbitrator 
candidates of circumstances of which they are aware? 


SQ24 Do you agree that a provision for arbitrator immunity is appropriate? 


PART 6 – REMOVAL AND REPLACEMENT OF ARBITRATORS  


SQ25 Do you agree that a removal decision by an institution should be reviewable 
by the court unless the parties have contracted out of such a review? 


SQ26 Do you agree that the arbitral tribunal should make the decision whether 
proceedings need to be repeated after a substitute arbitrator is appointed? 


PART 7 – JURISDICTION OF THE ARBITRAL TRIBUNAL  


SQ27 Do you agree that a preliminary decision on jurisdiction should be in the 
form of an award? 


SQ28 Do you agree that the right to seek a review by the court should apply to 
negative as well as positive jurisdictional rulings? 


SQ29  Do you agree that, as a general rule, if jurisdiction is decided as a 
preliminary matter, and the court has reviewed that decision, it should not 
be open to any party to later raise the same jurisdictional objection to 
attack the award on the merits or as defence to its enforcement?  


PART 8 – POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE ARBITRAL TRIBUNAL AND THE PARTIES   


SQ30 Do you agree that it is not appropriate to mandate “equal treatment” of the 
parties? 


SQ31 Do you agree that it is appropriate to require that parties be given a 
“reasonable” rather than a “full” opportunity to present their cases? 


SQ32 Do you think that there is benefit to including a provision setting out the 
general duty of parties? 


SQ33 Do you think that the risk of creating an additional ground to challenge an 
award is such that it would be better to simply empower the arbitral 
tribunal to impose costs sanctions if it concludes that the proceedings have 
not been conducted efficiently or in good faith? 







 


97 
 


SQ34 Do you agree that the Act should not deal with the question of whether 
persons representing parties to arbitral proceedings (a) must be lawyers 
and (b) if lawyers, must be qualified to practice under the laws of the place 
of arbitration. 


SQ35 Do you agree that arbitrators should not be statutorily obliged to apply 
rules of evidence? 


SQ36 Failing party agreement and subject to the mandatory requirements of the 
Act do you agree that it is better to leave decisions concerning procedural 
matters to the arbitral tribunal, rather than specifying default procedures? 


SQ37 Do you agree that it is more appropriate to provide for termination, rather 
than dismissal of claims, if a claimant or counter-claimant defaults? 


SQ38 Do you agree with empowering arbitrators to make, in effect, a peremptory 
order as contemplated by Subsection 31(3)(a)? 


SQ39 Do you agree that any awards already made should remain valid and 
enforceable if an arbitral proceeding is terminated? 


SQ40 Do you agree that permission of the arbitral tribunal should be obtained 
before a party can take steps to compel the participation of a third party 
witness? 


SQ41 Do you think that third parties should only be compellable to give evidence 
to the arbitral tribunal and not be compellable to provide “discovery” 
evidence? 


SQ42 Do you agree that it is appropriate to allow arbitral tribunals to directly 
request the assistance of courts outside the enacting jurisdiction to compel 
evidence? 


SQ43 Do you agree that the arbitral tribunal should have the power to appoint an 
expert after consultation with, but without the agreement of, the parties? 


SQ44 Do you agree with the requirement for a tribunal-appointed expert’s 
declaration of independence and impartiality? 


SQ45 Do you think that arbitrators should be statutorily prohibited from acting as 
mediators in the same case? 







 


98 
 


SQ46 Do you favour expressly authorizing separate caucusing in a mediation by 
an arbitrator? (per NSW) 


SQ47 Do you favour requiring party consent to the arbitrator continuing as such 
after a mediation? (per NSW) 


SQ48 Do you think that an express right to withdraw on the grounds that they are 
no longer impartial is needed to protect arbitrators who have agreed to act 
as mediators? 


PART 9 – INTERIM MEASURES  


SQ49 Do you favour including a power to make ex parte Preliminary Orders in the 
proposed New Act? 


PART 10 – AWARDS AND TERMINATION OF ARBITRAL PROCEEDINGS  


SQ50 Do you think that the new Act should carry forward the provision that 
absent a majority the Chair’s decision governs? 


SQ51 Do you agree that a provision allowing arbitrators to refuse delivery of an 
award until paid is appropriate? 


SQ52 Do you agree that a provision allowing for payment into court when there is 
a fee dispute is appropriate? 


SQ53 Do you agree that a provision allowing a court to extend the time for 
delivery of the award in cases of substantial injustice is appropriate? 


SQ54 Do you think that there should be added to the Act a default statutory time 
limit for the delivery of an award? 


SQ55: Do you agree with the addition of an express power to make an additional 
award? 


SQ56: Do you agree that there is no need for a separate provision authorizing 
“interim awards”? 


SQ57 Do you agree that the new Act should allow arbitrators to award costs 
based on actual reasonable legal fees and expenses? 







 


99 
 


SQ58 Do you agree that arbitrators should be empowered to make awards of 
costs during the course of the proceeding to sanction conduct that has 
unnecessarily increased another party’s costs? 


SQ59 Do you agree that the arbitral tribunal should be required to quantify costs, 
and should not have the option of referring the quantification to a court 
taxing officer? 


SQ60 Do you agree that a “fair value” standard should not be able to be used to 
trump an express agreement between the parties and an arbitrator 
concerning compensation? 


SQ61 Do you agree that, unless the parties have agreed that fees are to be fixed 
or reviewed by an institution, the new Act should provide for a summary 
court determination of arbitrator compensation? 


SQ62 Do you think that there is any benefit to including a provision in the new Act 
setting out when an arbitral proceeding is “terminated.” 


SQ63 Do you think that the Act should define “termination” or explain its legal 
consequences, in terms of such matters as res judicata etc? 


PART 11 – RECOURSE AGAINST AND ENFORCEMENT OF AWARDS 


SQ64 Do you think that there should be no right to appeal an arbitration award?  


SQ65 Do you think that parties should be precluded from appealing 
arbitration awards on questions of fact or mixed fact and law? 


SQ66 If there is to be a right to appeal on questions of law, should it be available 
only if the parties so agree (i.e. opt-in)? 


SQ67 If there is to be a right to appeal on questions of law, should the parties be 
able to opt-out of the right of appeal? 


SQ68 Do you favour the idea that appeals on questions of law should go directly 
to the court of appeal, subject to a leave requirement? 


SQ69 Do you agree that Subsection 57(1)(g) (there is a justifiable doubt as to the 
independence or impartiality of the arbitral tribunal) should be included as a 
ground to set aside an award? 







 


100 
 


SQ70 Do you agree that Subsection 57(1)(h) (the award was the result of fraud or 
corruption by a member of the arbitral tribunal or was obtained by 
fraudulent behaviour by a party or its representatives in connection with the 
conduct of the arbitral proceeding) should be included as a ground to set 
aside an award? 


SQ71 Do you agree that the grounds for resisting enforcement should be 
narrower than the grounds for setting aside, so that unsuccessful parties 
must pro-actively bring any challenge to the award at the place of 
arbitration? 


SQ72 Do you agree that a 10 year limitation period should apply to the 
commencement of proceedings to enforce an award? 


PART 12 – ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS  


SQ73 Do you agree that the new Act should declare arbitral proceedings to be 
confidential, subject to stated exceptions? 


SQ74 Do you agree that the arbitral tribunal should not be authorized to over-ride 
a confidentiality agreement between the parties? 


 








Galbraith Law  


6.1 


ADRIA President’s Report 


September 2015 


 


The past three months have been a time of success and growth for ADRIA. We are 


poised for a very successful year ahead. Our Executive Director Paul Conway and 


all other staff members continue to perform in a stellar fashion. In this report I will 


mention a few initiatives that are not covered by other sections of our agenda. 


1. Meeting with Speaker of the Legislative Assembly 


When the new government was elected earlier this year, one of our members, 


Robert Wanner, was elected as the member for Medicine Hat. Robert has been a 


member of ADRIA for many years and he is a QMed. On June 11 the 


Honourable Robert Wanner was elected as Speaker. Soon after his election 


ADRIA reached out to him. As a result of our contact, Paul Conway and I were 


fortunate to have a personal meeting with our new Speaker on July, 2015. 


It was indeed a productive meeting and the Speaker went overtime in sharing 


his experiences with us. He showed a keen interest in promoting the use of ADR 


and ADR practices within the government of Alberta. We updated him on some 


of the initiatives the government is currently taking and subsequent to our 


meeting Paul sent a lengthy email with a comprehensive review of ADR status 


in various provincial government departments and the relationship between 


ADRIA and the government. We expressed our strong desire to have the 


Government of Alberta institute province wide standards for ADR in all 


departments. The Speaker supported this idea and provided us names and 


information on the best route to take.  


We also expressed our thanks for his willingness to speak at the upcoming 


Calgary ADRIC conference. A discussion of his possible presentation topics was 


helpful.  


The meeting was so engaging and fruitful that a promised tour of his reception 


area was deferred to another meeting. 


2. Meeting with ADRIC Canada President 


The President of ADRIC, Scott Siemens, was in Edmonton for unrelated 


matters and was gracious enough to find time in his schedule to attend at our 


office and meet with Paul and all the staff. I was able to join the meeting and 


spent some time discussing areas of mutual interest.   


Scott was suitably impressed by our offices and the enthusiasm and 


engagement of our staff.  







Galbraith Law  


Discussions took place around the national training program and the need for 


standardized evaluation standards. We also discussed the upcoming ADRIC 


conference in Calgary.  


3. ADRIC President’s Roundtable 


3.1. I participated in my first teleconference in June and the one hour was 


filled with discussion. This is certainly a dedicated group. Thanks to 


Wendy for your continuing role on the MOU committee. And thanks to all 


other board members and Paul and staff for participation in various roles 


and committees with ADRIC.  


3.2. On September 16, just in time for our board meeting, I will participate in 


another Roundtable and will provide a verbal report at the board meeting.  








Executive Director’s Report – September 2015 
 


Welcome back after a great summer, and welcome to our newest Board members as we kick off the 


planning cycle for 2015/16 with our Strategic Planning Session (SPS).    


 
Potential elements of this report that have been adequately addressed elsewhere in the Board’s agenda are, for the most part, 


not included herein.  Dashboard display elements continue be incorporated slowly into Board presentation materials, and will 


progressively linked to ADRIA’s strategic plan and success indications.  Dashboard metrics are intended to provide Board 


members with clear, succinct and meaningful data, charts and indicators upon which they may base their decisions, establish 


new initiatives, and provide strategic direction.  It is important that all Board members provide feedback and suggestions 


regarding the materials and metrics presented – what’s useful, what’s not, and what might be needed in the future. 


 


Designations  
Tammy Borowiecki, Director Professional Development 


Truus Souman, Executive & Membership Coordinator 


Jon Souman, Chair MDC 


John Welbourn, Chair ADC 


 


 


 


 


                                                                                                                                           


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 September is a designation application month, so we expect a few more files in 


the week ahead.  To date we have 1x C.Arb, 5x Q.Arb and 3x Q.Med for a total 


of 9 files.  September is traditionally lighter than March (which had 25 files). 


 Both the MDS and ADS are currently short one member, although we have two 


previous applications on file for the ADC.  We have solicited for both 


committees in our most recent Newsletter, and have already received one 


highly qualified candidate for the MDC.  We may request Board secretarial 


approval in early October in order to engage new committee members in the 


September applications.   


 The ADC has yet to finalize its succession plan.  The MDC succession plan 


included the recent departure of Sharon Wilson after approx 12 years of 


service. 


 ADRIA leads the country is designations, holding proportionally more 


designations than any other region of the country.  While other affiliates are 


reporting a decline, ADRIA designation numbers are increasing. 


 As part of our Strategic Plan, a marketing campaign will be launched for both C 


and Q designations, targeting both internal and external audiences, and ADRIA 


is playing a leadership role on ADRIC’s Designations Marketing subcommittee.  


  Designations continue to represent an important strategic opportunity to 


build and retain membership. 


 


 







Membership  


Paul Conway, Executive Director 


Truus Souman, Executive & Membership Coordinator 


 


374 Full members - a new all time high!  We continue to enjoy a high Full member 


retention rate (last assessed at 90%), and healthy roster of Student/Associate 


members which ultimately generates new Full members and designation 


applications.  Strategically, as a membership organization first and foremost, our 


focus remains on attracting and retaining new FULL members and, given the number 


of non-member ADR Practitioners in the Province, we continue to set our sights high 


and we strive to build a Full membership list that exceeds 400. 


 


Reporting date Full Members, 
which includes 
ADRIC 
memberships 


Associate Members 
(non-ADRIC) 
 + Student Affiliates 
(see note) 


Total 
Members, 
including non-
ADRIC 
learners 


    


BoD Meeting Sep 2015 374 145+2 521 


AGM June 2015 369 150+2     521 


BoD Meeting Apr 2015 368 146+3     517 


BoD Meeting Jan 2015 365 149+4     518 


BoD Meeting Dec 2014 363 148 511 


BoD Meeting Sep 2014 352 157 509 


BoD Meeting June 2014 341 143 484 


AGM May 2014 338 145 483 


End-2013 328 151 479 


End-2012 329 102 431 


ADRIA start (Sep 2012) 311 92 403 


AAMS (May 2012) 354 113 467 


AAMS (May 2011) 333 104 437 


    


    


ADRIA High (Sep 2015) 374 145+2     521 


Previous recorded high 
(AAMS Apr 2010) 


355 151 506 


Previous recorded low 
(ADRIA Sep 2012) 


311 92 403 


    


    


NOTE:  The category of Student Affiliate Member is new for 2015 (it is similar to an 
Associate Member/Student  – typically corporate or out-of-province members) 


 


 







   
 


Professional Development & Education 
Tammy Borowiecki, Director Professional Development 


Jocelyn Christian, Education Assistant 


 


 Jocelyn Christian started as the new Education Assistant in mid June (replacing Tasha Innes). Jocelyn 


has proven to be a great addition to the team and is getting up to speed at a break-neck pace. 


 June – September Courses 


o Oil and Gas Fundamentals for Conflict Management Practitioners, had 7 students 


o Restorative Practices had 8 students  


o Edmonton’s summer (July) classes were successful.   With Communications in ADR filling up to 


14 students and National Introductory Mediation training with 13 students.  


o  Separation and Divorce Mediation: Module 2 ran with 9 students. The students gave rave 


reviews and are looking forward to Module 3.   


 Upcoming Courses (Fall) 


o Our core classes (Communications, Mediation, Arbitration and Separation & Divorce) are posted 


on our website up until Summer of 2016 with the exception of the Spring 2016 Arbitration class.  


o Communications in ADR course (Edmonton) has 17 registered.   


o Calgary Communications in ADR was rescheduled due to low enrollment and now has 5 students 


confirmed on the new dates.  


o Fort McMurray will have a Communications in ADR course at the end of September, there are 


currently 10 students registered (9 are with the Municipality of Wood Buffalo). This is the first 


time in many years that we have been successful in running a class outside Edmonton or Calgary. 


This is in part due to 9 students from the same organization committing to the class. 


o ADRIC’s National Introductory Arbitration course (Calgary) has 5 students registered.  We 


canceled the Edmonton course due to low enrollment.  However we are working to find dates in 


late fall or winter as some interest in an Edmonton course remains.  


o Interest in the fall National Introductory Mediation training remains low in Calgary.     


o There are currently 8 students registered in the Edmonton fall National Introductory Mediation 


training. 


o For fall 2015 we have the following Specialty Training: Multi-Party Mediation (Calgary – 3 


registered), SDM M1 (Edmonton – 3 registered), LAB Profile (Edmonton – 3 registered), SDM M3 


(Edmonton – 1 registered) – A minimum of 6 students are required for a class to proceed. 


 We continue to have greater success with courses in Edmonton compared to Calgary and exploring 


ways to promote our courses outside our current membership.  







 Several students have participated in the Canada-Alberta Job Grant program to take our courses. This 


program reimburses up to 2/3 of an organizations training costs (up to $10,000 per individual). We 


are including that information on our website in the hopes that it may lead to increased student 


registrations.  


 The Communications/Negotiation course that we developed for the Professional Home Builders 


Institute ran for a second time in Calgary in September. 


 We have found new classroom space in Calgary at the office of the Commissionaires beginning in 


January 2016. We will be giving up our space at the North Calgary Business Centre (NCBC) at the end 


of the year. The space at NCBC was not an ideal class space which necessitated us finding alternate 


arrangements for  when our contract expired.  


 We are looking for new Arbitration Instructors for Edmonton. For the past couple of years, the 


Calgary instructors have made the trip to Edmonton; however we would like to develop some local 


instructors. 


 We plan to do a marketing blitz to law firms in both Edmonton and Calgary to promote Arbitration 


and other courses.  


 We have launched online Mediation Skills Practice Sessions. Members wishing to enhance their 


mediation skills can sign up for a mediation skills practice session online.  Members from across the 


province can participate from the comfort of their home.  The practice sessions are facilitated by a 


trained ADRIA coach to provide feedback to participants at all levels.  


 We continue to add even more content to our website. Check out our blog and forums! 


 Tammy and Paul continue to participate in the ADRIC conference Planning Committee which has 


taken up a considerable amount of time.  


 
Professional Development & Education notes from the ED: 
 
Finally, in June, ADRIA's Professional Development & Education team and ADDRIC signed off on the 
National Introductory Courses.  National pricing issues have been resolved, and instructor licensing and 
pre-requisite mediation training remain the only unresolved issues.  ADRIC is exploring options to create 
a new Arbitration Exam video and, ultimately, ways to enhance and evergreen both programs.  Progress 
on establishing a National Committee to achieve this, however, have been slow.    
 


Online ADR Directory 


 


 


 


 Launched mid-summer, thanks to stellar efforts from Jennifer & Tammy.  


Registrations are slowly growing, and currently total about 40. We expect to have 


75-100 entries within a year, and the response has been very positive.  Jennifer will 


continue to optimize the website to ensure it is available for those seeking ADR 


assistance in Alberta.  As a vetted directory, reviewing each applicants credentials 


takes some time (especially when the forms are incomplete).  Fortunately, this is 


only a challenge when a member first applies to be in the directory. Renewals will 


be automated, and will provide a long-term source of new revenue for ADRIA.   


 ADR Connect will be used as our "Membership list" for public information. 


 At a future date, the ADRIA Board will be asked to consider making it mandatory by 


2017 to hold a designation to be featured in our online ADR Directory - a measure 


that would be consistent with our Strategic Plan, and best protect the public. 


 


 







Human Resources     
With the departure of Tasha Innes, a hiring process was initiated with several expressions of interest from 
members and non-members.  Ultimately Jocelyn Christian was hired, and she's rapidly coming up to 
speed. 
 
Note that ADRIA has hired Jocelyn as a part time employee, and not as an independent contractor, 
bringing us into greater compliance with CRA guidelines.  Truus Souman's contract still poses a risk to 
ADRIA in this regard, but to date, she has indicated a preference for contract status. 
 
When practical, we would like to engage a part-time Business Development Officer to actively market 
organizational memberships and client support. 
 
As ED, commencing in August and with our President's approval, I adopted a 4-day workweek, taking 
Thursdays off to home parent.  My contract remains at 28 hours per week, as an average over the year.  I 
continue to monitor my email on Thursdays, and participate in non-ADRIA conference calls if required. 
 


  Job Board 
 


As ADRIA gets more calls and job notifications, this service continues to grow and be well known.  With 


the introduction of our new website, the Job Board is now only available to ADRIA members, and not to 


those simply visiting our website. 


 


 


 
 


Not meant to be alarmist, but we are carefully monitoring our Q3 & Q4 expenditures, and actively 


marketing our Fall courses.  Board assistance in this regard would be helpful.  The Treasurer’s report is 


included in your Board materials, and I have added some financial summaries.  Monthly summaries and 


Business Unit reports all indicate excellent YTD performance.  The real picture, however, is found in our 


mid-year and Q3 forecasting documents, and suggests a significant decline in December.  I have 


introduced accounting practices that will reduce this effect next December, and anticipate that new 


revenue streams will begin to take effect early in the new year.  Our deferred revenue for 2016 will 


protect us from experiencing any cash flow problems in Dec/Jan, but we are all working have to achieve a 


balanced year-end outcome for 2015.   


 


Financial 
footnotes 







Our website and database development projects remain our largest strategic investments for 2015, 


including the online Directory.  Along with Governance, Conference expenditures in 2015 will also have 


no counterbalancing revenue, as ADRIA continues to fully support the ADRIC National Conference.  


Discontinuing our lease in Calgary will also save over $10K annually. 


 


Accounts Payable: 


 


 
 
 


Cash+Reserves: 


 
 


0


5000


10000


15000


20000


25000


30000


Se
p


-1
3


O
ct


-1
3


N
o


v-
1


3


D
e


c-
1


3


Ja
n


-1
4


Fe
b


-1
4


M
ar


-1
4


A
p


r-
1


4


M
ay


-1
4


Ju
n


-1
4


Ju
l-


1
4


A
u


g-
1


4


Se
p


-1
4


O
ct


-1
4


N
o


v-
1


4


D
e


c-
1


4


Ja
n


-1
5


Fe
b


-1
5


M
ar


-1
5


A
p


r-
1


5


M
ay


-1
5


Ju
n


-1
5


Ju
l-


1
5


A
u


g-
1


5


0


20000


40000


60000


80000


100000


120000


140000


We’ve been paying our bills! 







Cash+Reserves vs Deferred Revenue: 


 


 
 


Total Member Equity: 


 


 
 


 


 


-40000


-20000


0


20000


40000


60000


80000


0


10000


20000


30000


40000


50000


60000


70000


80000


Se
p


-1
3


O
ct


-1
3


N
o


v-
1


3


D
e


c-
1


3


Ja
n


-1
4


Fe
b


-1
4


M
ar


-1
4


A
p


r-
1


4


M
ay


-1
4


Ju
n


-1
4


Ju
l-


1
4


A
u


g-
1


4


Se
p


-1
4


O
ct


-1
4


N
o


v-
1


4


D
e


c-
1


4


Ja
n


-1
5


Fe
b


-1
5


M
ar


-1
5


A
p


r-
1


5


M
ay


-1
5


Ju
n


-1
5


Ju
l-


1
5


A
u


g-
1


5







 Networking 
Sopport for collaborative networking events remains strong, although it has been decided to host only 2 


events per year in each of the two urban centres.  Controlling our year end-budget for 2015 has placed 


the Edmonton Fall Mixer in question, although we still hope to host a Wednesday evening Mixer in 


concert with the Calgary Conference.  We are now actively seeking sponsorships for both the Calgary 


Conference Mixer and an Edmonton Fall Mixer - in the range of $500-1000 per event.   Board support 


would be appreciated in this regard. 


 


The Calgary luncheon series continues to draw 25-30 members per month, now under the"new 


management" of a local organizing committee.  Collaborative opportunities are also being sought with 


other ADR organizations. 


 
 


  Newsletters 
 


Newsletters continue on a monthly format, and are well received.   Board feedback is appreciated.  


 


ADRIC Conference                       2015 


 
I will provide a verbal report. 


 


There is no funding available for Board attendance at the Conference, aside from  the usual Board 


attendance for the Friday/Saturday Board meeting we have scheduled, and which will take place at the 


Westin. 


 


We will canvass to see which Board members will be attending all or some of the Conference.  One 


potential problem is that ADRIC has scheduled a joint Board dinner with ADRIA on the Thursday evening 


(without consultation), and did not seek to confirm with us that all ADRIA Board members would be able 


to participate. 


 







      Outreach & Leadership 


As a departure from my usual format, and at our President's request, I will share with the Board my note 


to Speaker Robert Wanner, MLA and an ADRIA/ADRIC member, after our recent invitation to visit his 


offices.  Obviously this note deals primarily with our outreach to Government. 


Note - Robert will be the morning keynote speaker at the ADRIC Conference in Calgary, Friday Oct 30th. 


 


Hi Robert - I hope you're still enjoying these last few days of our official summer, despite all the 


preparations underway in the Legislature and your office..   


I'm writing to thank you again for your generous gift of time and wise counsel when we met in August, 


and for your willingness to present a morning keynote address at the ADR Canada Conference in Calgary, 


October 30th.  I'll include some administrative details regarding the conference towards the end of this 


email.  Stan & I very much enjoyed the opportunity to meet with you, and appreciated the insights and 


advice you provided.  There are a few elements of our conversation that I thought I'd follow up on. 


ADRIA's interactions with the Ministry of Justice and Solicitor General are continuous, constructive and 


very positive.  We too have been impressed by the early engagement of Minister Ganley, and we look 


forward to future opportunities to engage with her.   We have enjoyed our dealings with the restructured 


Court Dispute Resolution & Mediation Programs, now consolidated into one branch under ADM Lynn 


Varty and Faye Morrison, Executive Director Resolution Services, and they will be presenting at the ADR 


Canada Conference (alongside representatives from the other 3 western provinces).  As you are aware, 


there are six (6) Court Dispute Resolution & Mediation programs, including the Civil Claims Mediation 


program, and Family Mediation Services.  These are explored in an upcoming ADRIA White Paper which I 


will mention later.    


We have a similarly positive relationship with the Ministry of Municipal Affairs (Minister Bilous), and 


Municipal Dispute Resolution Services (MDRS), led as you know by Michael Scheidl.   Michael also 


currently chairs the Dispute Resolution Network (DRN) which is comprised of representation from all 


Government offices that offer some form of ADR resolution services (internally, or to the public).  The DRN 


website is hosted by Justice and might be of interest to you:  


https://www.justice.alberta.ca/programs_services/mediation/drn/Pages/default.aspx  I'm sure they 


would enjoy meeting with you or hosting you at some future opportunity, as your perspectives and 


support regarding ADR services within government would be very relevant to their work.  The DRN also 


hosts an annual Conference - only weeks away on September 21/22, in fact, and I've attached their draft 


agenda.  They have approached both the Premier and Minister Ganley for opening and/or closing 


remarks, and I believe that they may approach you as well.  Don't hesitate to contact Michael at 


michael.scheidl@gov.ab.ca if you have any questions regarding this upcoming government conference.  


ADRIA is administering the DRN's conference registrations, sponsorships and expenditures on their behalf 


- just one area in which we are trying to demonstrate leadership in Alberta's broader ADR community.  



https://www.justice.alberta.ca/programs_services/mediation/drn/Pages/default.aspx

mailto:michael.scheidl@gov.ab.ca





You'll see from the draft schedule that ADRIA is also assisting the DRN by providing introductory-level ADR 


sessions for conference attendees who are not practitioners, but who have an interest in ADR or offering 


ADR services within their departments. 


The DRN also co-chairs the Alberta Conflict Resolution Day committee alongside representation from 


Alberta's non-profit ADR community - this year the non-profit co-chair is from the Alberta Restorative 


Justice Association (ARJA).  CR Day 2015 is Thursday, October 15th, and there will be a number of 


government and public activities to mark the occasion.  CR Day activities and draft municipal 


proclamations were hosted for many years on a website page provided by Justice, but this has proved 


difficult to update in a timely fashion and was subject to a multitude of restrictions.  As a consequence, 


one of ADRIA's primary contributions to CR Day 2015 has been the creation of an independent website 


www.conflictresolutionday.ca which will be expanded over time in terms content and public education.  I 


hope you get a chance to visit the website and support this annual event.    


I should also draw your attention to another out-of-government initiative and website that is, in fact, 


largely funded by Justice and extremely relevant to Alberta's ADR Practitioners - the Reforming the 


Family Justice System (RFJS) initiative has been led by Justice Andrea Moen and ADM Lynn Varty for 


several years now, and is progressing steadily in its work.  They have established a non-government 


website at  http://www.rfjs.ca/ and are advancing three (3) task-oriented working groups (Triage, 


Education for Young People re Conflict Resolution, and Educating the Public).  ADRIA has staff, Board and 


member representation on all three working groups, and also Co-leads the ADR Sector Group.  The RFJS 


will also be presenting at the ADR Canada Conference, and they have expressed great interest in meeting 


with you, formally or informally, at an appropriate opportunity. 


In discussing Justice, Municipal Affairs, and the myriad of other government ADR services that are only 


coordinated informally by the DRN, I would be remiss if I didn't mention a point that Stan Galbraith 


mentioned in our meeting:  the lack of government-wide ADR standards and functional authority.  While 


ADRIA has excellent relations with a number of GOA Ministries and agencies, there are no overall 


standards in regard to ADR programs and Practitioner qualifications.  Most accept ADR Canada's national 


designations as proof of competency, training and experience, but others do not.  Some require their 


roster mediators to have degrees (any degree), while others have no such requirement.  Membership in a 


professional association with a complaint process is recognized by some Ministries as a means of 


protecting the public, but not all.  In my years with the Department of National Defence (DND), we 


recognized this requirement when the Director General ADR (DGADR) was established as the functional 


authority for all ADR programs and hiring within DND.  That said, there is still a lack of consistency 


between Federal Ministries, controlled partially by Office of the Chief Human Resources Office (OCHRO) 


within Treasury Board, and a degree of self-regulation provided by the informal Federal ICMS Network 


(similar in function to the GOA's DRN).  In due course, ADRIA would like to encourage the Government of 


Alberta to adopt common standards, or perhaps appoint a single Ministry to serve as the functional 


authority for ADR. 


It would be worth mentioning that ADRIA is currently working with the Alberta Law Reform Institute 


(ALRI) to finalize its recommendations for changes to the Societies Act.  Alberta has several thousand 



http://www.conflictresolutionday.ca/

http://www.rfjs.ca/





registered societies, most of which lack conflict resolution mechanisms in their bylaws.  Service Alberta is 


bombarded with calls from dysfunctional societies seeking enforcement (which the GOA does not provide) 


or resolution (which is often elusive).  Many of the calls to Service Alberta are referred to ADRIA, and we 


too are usually unable to assist.  The ALRI recommendations for mediation and/or arbitration as the 


default dispute resolution mechanisms for Alberta's registered societies will go a long way to resolving 


these disputes if formally adopted by government.  In a related discussion, ADRIA will be meeting with 


officials from Alberta Culture's Board Development Program (BDP), to determine how to better prepare 


Boards of Directors for the conflicts that so often arise in the conduct of any society.  


I mentioned the ADRIA Task Force and the White Paper they are preparing for the Board of Directors on 


Mediator Compensation and Advocacy.  While it is too early to disclose their draft recommendations, it 


will suffice to say that there are very real concerns regarding the viability of mediation as a recognized 


and viable profession in the province.  Government, the Courts, other professions, the business 


community, and misunderstandings by the general public all contribute to this concern, and the White 


Paper hopes to both identify the issues and propose meaningful measures to address the problem.  We 


look forward to sharing the results of this White Paper, and engaging with you in the years ahead to 


advance the acceptance of ADR & mediation as preferred practices in the resolution of conflict.  


Another item that was mentioned during our meeting that bears repeating is the sizable influx of new, 


inexperienced, often single, and often very young MLAs in the Legislature.  We were all struck recently by 


the lack of internal resolution processes for complaints of harassment (sexual or otherwise) between MPs 


in Ottawa, and wondered what might be in place provincially.  As this may fall, in part, to the Speaker to 


resolve, please let us know if we can provide assistance of any fashion - policy development or resolution 


services.  In fact, as mentioned, ADRIA would be pleased to provide ADR expertise for any policy or 


resolution challenges that you might face during your term as Speaker.  Please don't hesitate to contact 


us. 


Finally, returning to the ADR Canada Conference in Calgary, the schedule currently has you delivering a 


10-15 minutes breakfast plenary keynote address commencing at 8:20 am on Friday October 30th, just 


before the morning breakout sessions start at 8:40.  Without limiting you, reflections on the role ADR has 


played in your professional and political career, and your hopes for creating an environment of 


constructive dialogue within the Legislature, might form the basis of your remarks.  Your personal 


knowledge of Alberta's Court Mediation programs and Municipal Dispute Resolution makes you a highly 


credible speaker within the ADR community.  I'll be in touch with Bev and Danielle in the next week or so 


to determine your travel plans, and to coordinate your reception.  Assuming that you are travelling to 


Calgary on the Thursday, ADRIA is hosting a reception for conference attendees and Calgary practitioners 


commencing at 6pm at the Westin.  ADR Canada, in fact, will extend to you a complimentary pass for the 


entirety of this two-day conference.  Chief Justice Wittmann is our lunchtime keynote speaker on 


Thursday, and Dennis Edney QC will speak over lunch on Friday.  Our thanks again for accepting this 


invitation.  


Yours in ADR,     Paul Conway | Executive Director   ADR Institute of Alberta (ADRIA) 








7.2 
From: Paul Conway  
Sent: September-16-15 4:27 PM 


To: 'Alasdair MacKinnon'; 'Barrie Marshall'; Chuck Smith; 'Dolores Herman'; Don Goodfellow; Jeff 
Jessamine; 'Joanne Munro'; Michael Hokanson; 'Michelle Simpson'; Stan Galbraith; Wendy Hassen 


Cc: Tammy Borowiecki; Truus Souman 


Subject: Draft discussion paper for ALRI 


 
My thanks to Wendy & Michelle for providing written comments, and for Barrie who participated in the 
teleconference discussion. 
 
DRAFT basis of a discussion paper to be prepared and finalized for the ARLI - circulated to the Board of 
Directors for early feedback: 
 
Proposed ALRI reforms to Alberta's non-profit law, notably the Societies Act 
 
Background:  The ALRI released Report for Discussion #26 Non-Profit Corporations in February 2015 
along with an accompanying Discussion Paper, detailing proposed law reforms to non-profit law in 
Alberta.  The ALRI has extended its consultation period with non-profit groups until November 1st, 2015, 
and will meet with ADRIA representation on Thursday, September 17th at 3pm.  ADRIA offers a number 
of perspectives on the issue of the ALRI's proposed reforms: 
 
1.            As a Non-Profit organization itself, impacted by any reforms to Alberta's Societies Act; 
2.            As a source of information regarding the nature, barriers to resolution, and underlying causes of 
disputes referred to ADRIA from the non-profit sector. 
3.            As an advocate and service provider for effective and accessible ADR options to resolve disputes 
arising within the non-profit sector;  
4.            As a resource to Service Alberta and Alberta Culture in their ongoing educational efforts to 
minimize the potential for conflict and see disputes resolved effectively within the non-profit sector; and 
 5.           As a resource to the ALRI and Legislators in their efforts to reform non-profit law, specifically as 
it pertains to dispute resolution. 
      
As a strawman for discussion, the ADRIA Board of Directors may wish to consider the following 
measures in its formal feedback to the ALRI: 
 
1.            ADRIA endorses efforts by the ALRI to suggest reforms to Alberta's non-profit law, noting that 
many aspects of the existing Societies Act would benefit from added clarity, especially in terms of 
Director, Officer and Member roles, responsibilities and rights, and that such clarity would serve to 
reduce the overall amount of conflict experienced within Alberta's non-profit sector. 
2.            ADRIA further endorses the ALRI's assertions  that Alberta's non-profit sector would benefit 
from legislation that (A) provides proven tools to assist organizations, especially in regard to internal 
dispute resolution, (B) is sufficiently flexible to accommodate both the diversity of this sector and their 
evolving circumstances over time, and (C) favours internal remedies over external  remedies. 
3.            ADRIA endorses the ALRI's proposal that ADR processes, notably mediation and arbitration, be 
entrenched in the Act as mandatory default dispute resolution mechanisms (with some added 
provisions, including an allocation of costs), unless anther dispute resolution process is prescribed and 
detailed within an organization's bylaws. 







4.            ADRIA further suggests that when a non-profit organization adopts bylaws that detail its dispute 
resolution process, the Act require that these meet the basic requirements of natural justice, 
administrative law and procedural fairness, and should further address the allocation of costs. 
5.            ADRIA suggests that the ALRI proposals, and ideally any resultant legislation, more clearly 
recognize the importance of effective dispute resolution mechanisms by not grouping these measures 
under the generic heading of "Corporate Remedies", and instead using terminology more commonly 
understood.  
6.            ADRIA recommends that the ARLI's proposals, and ultimately any resultant legislation, more 
clearly define a progression of mandatory ADR processes, from negotiation to mediation to binding 
arbitration, for adoption as the default dispute resolution mechanism within the Act. 
7.            ADRIA suggests that the ARLI's proposals, and ultimately any resultant legislation, specifically 
identify community mediation resources and the ADR Institute of Alberta within the Act as resources 
that can be called upon to assist non-profit organizations in preventing, mitigating and/or resolving 
disputes. 
 
With regard to #6, Board members will recall that our ADRIA bylaws were recently amended to read as 
follows: 
 
Any dispute subject to Subsection 1 and 2 will be resolved by:  
a.            Direct negotiation between the parties, with or without assistance and/or facilitation. If 
resolution is not achieved, then by:  
b.            Mediation pursuant to the National Mediation Rules of ADRIC, or to mediation practices agreed 
upon by the parties. The language of the mediation will be English. If resolution is not achieved, then by:  
c.             Arbitration pursuant to the National Arbitration Rules of ADRIC, or to arbitration practices 
agreed upon by the parties. The language of the arbitration will be English, and the decision will bind all 
parties. 
 
Additional discussion: 
 
It has been suggested that a reformed Act could provide for mandatory referrals to ADRIA for ADR 
services and selection processes.   This is not likely to be supported by the GOA or ARLI, unless 
ADR/Mediation becomes a regulated profession.  Mandatory referrals to ADRIA would also raise the 
complex issue our organizational costs and/or the fees charged by individual ADR practitioners (unless 
regulated and administered by roster).  ADRIA already receives dozens of referrals every year, which we 
suspect is only the tip of the iceberg.  Unless there is a  fee-for-service provision, noting that many non-
profits have very limited resources, ADRIA is not resourced to select and appoint practitioners for every 
non-profit facing a conflict  situation.  It is for precisely this reason that Service Alberta currently 
provides no enforcement resources in regard to the existing Societies Act, and instead refers such calls 
to ADRIA and community mediation resources.   The current Societies Act does not require bylaws to 
include any provisions for dispute resolution, nor does it prescribe a default dispute resolution 
mechanism.  Instead the Act includes a suggestion that internal disputes be resolved through 
arbitration.  The Service Alberta/Corporate Registry website expands on these points, with the added 
suggestion of mediation: 


How can our society handle internal disputes? 


 Societies must be prepared to resolve their own internal disputes. 







 Corporate Registry does not supervise the conduct of societies, nor does it provide a counseling 


service on matters other than forms and the documents filed with them. 


 To ensure that internal disputes are handled fairly, Corporate Registry recommends adoption of a 


bylaw that outlines an mediation or arbitration procedure. 


 


At this week's meetings and in the days ahead, ADRIA will: 


 assess the ARLI's position or perspectives regarding ADR; 


 determine the ARLI's timelines and process requirements for this report; 


 solicit additional ADRIA Board feedback; 


 complete an ADRIA discussion paper, and submit to the ARLI in early October; and 


 monitor this file over time, especially if and when the GOA commences a review of the Act. 
 
Feedback appreciated, before or after the ARLI consultation.  This item is on the Board agenda for 
Saturday. 
 
Paul Conway | Executive Director  


ADR Institute of Alberta (ADRIA) 
The Professional Association for Mediators,  
 Arbitrators & ADR Practitioners in Alberta. 


   Over 500 members and still growing! 
 


          


 


Alberta Conflict Resolution Day 


    October 15th, 2015  


    


www.conflictresolutionday.ca 
 


Room CE 223A - Ralph King Athletic Centre 
Concordia University of Edmonton 
Corner of 112th Ave & 73rd Street 
 
Mailing address: 
7128 Ada Boulevard, Edmonton AB T5B 4E4 
ph. (780) 433-4881 or 1-800-232-7214 ext. 111 
fax. (780) 433-9024   Visit: www.adralberta.com 
 
ADRIA has engaged a dedicated team of part-time staff, so 
calls and e-mails are usually returned within 2 business days. 
Calls & visits are best accomodated weekdays from 10am-2pm. 



http://www.conflictresolutionday.ca/

http://www.adralberta.com/

http://www.adrcanada.ca/resources/event_details.cfm?announcementId=2256






 


From: ADR Institute - Janet McKay [mailto:janetmckay@adrcanada.ca]      6.2.1 


Sent: September-14-15 12:23 PM 
To: Paul Conway 


Subject: logo 


 
Sorry for the delay, Paul.  We hadn't expected any affiliates to adopt it so soon and we wanted to provide a proposal! 
 
It will be very similar to ADRIC's but the text will be in the green except for "Affiliate - ADR Institute of Canada"  which 
will be in blue. 
 


 
 
We found this necessary as most people we consulted found the logo too similar to ADRIC's and confusing.  This change 
makes each instantly recognisable. 
 
Designer will be finalising - ok with you/ADRIA? 
 
Janet McKay 
Executive Director / Directrice générale 
 


 
 
 
405-234 Eglinton Avenue East  
Toronto, Ontario, Canada, M4P 1K5 
416-487-4733 • 1-877-475-4353  x/poste 105 
fax/télécopieur: 416-487-4429 
janetmckay@adrcanada.ca 
www.adrcanada.ca 


          @ADRCanada  #ADRIC 


 


 
unsubscribe/désabonner 
 
 
 



mailto:janetmckay@adrcanada.ca

janet@adrcanada.ca

http://www.adrcanada.ca/

mailto:janetmckay@adrcanada.ca?subject=Unsubscribe/%20Désabonner

http://www.adrcanada.ca/

http://www.facebook.com/home.php#!/group.php?gid=149752171707351

http://www.linkedin.com/groups?gid=3303518&trk=hb_side_g

http://www.adrcanada.ca/resources/event_details.cfm?announcementId=2256






ALTERNATIVE DISPUTE RESOLUTION SPECTRUM


DOES THE ADRI EMBRACE ALL ADR* OPTIONS ?
NON-EVALUATIVE EVALUATIVE


IB Mediation
Facilitation
Coaching


Conferences
Appreciative Inquiry


Circles,
Restorative-


Justice & Practices
Consensus Bldg


Negotiation


Med/Arb
Ombudsman


Evaluative Mediation
Non-binding Arb.
Grievance process


Binding Arbitration
Investigation


JDR
Tribunal


Adjudication


Exploring the Question of Evaluative vs Non-Evaluative 
Alternative Dispute Resolution (ADR) Processes


LOWEST                   COST OF CONFLICT HIGHEST


HIGHER      CONTROL OVER OUTCOME LOWER


* The “A” in ADR 


traditionally refers to any 


Alternative to Courts, 


Litigation, the use of 


force, or the blind 


exercise of one’s rights 


*  The ADRI fully 


embraces Interest-


based (IB) Mediation, 


Arbitration, as well as 


many other non-


evaluative ADR 


processes.


CONFLICT RESOLUTION SPECTRUM


SEEKING WIN-WIN           FAIR & IMPARTIAL


AGREE    COLLABORATE    COOPERATE   ASSERT  
PARTICIPATE
ACCEPT OUTCOME


ENGAGE
GUIDE OUTCOME


THIRD
PARTY








c e c e c e c e c e c e c e c e c e c e c e c e c e


ADR 110 9 15 6 19 7 5 22 39


COM 150 9 15 7 11 11 16 27 42


NEG 250 10 9 8 13 5 20 23 42


MED 350 8 19 8 11 14 19 41


SPECIALTY 7 9 0 16


ARB 6 5 5 4 5 4 16 13


TOTAL REGISTRATIONS 9 23 34 20 15 13 11 31 7 11 8 13 18 26 11 16 9 5 20 107 193


PRIVATE CONTRACTS $97,110$12,320 $0$4,400 $0 $0 $12,320 $27,920$0 $15,750 $20,000 $4,400 $0


Total
Courses


2013 PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT REPORT
July August DecemberSeptember October NovemberJanuary February March April May June


0


50


100


150


200


22
69


0 16


107


39


125


16 13


193


2013 COURSE REGISTRATIONS


Calgary Edmonton


0
200
400
600
800


1000


22


414


0 80


516


39


750


59 48


896


2013 STUDENT DAYS


Calgary Edmonton
$0


$20,000


$40,000


$60,000


$80,000


$100,000


Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4 Total


$35,750


$8,800 $12,320


$40,240


$97,110


PRIVATE CONTRACT REVENUE








 


ADRIA BOARD MEETING AGENDA  


Tuesday, October 13, 2015  7 – 8  pm  


Video/Teleconference 


--- 


Benchmark 
Timings  


# Topic\Title Action Role Ref  
Materials 


 1 
Welcome & Agenda review 
 


Stan   


 2 Minutes of previous meetings   2 


 


 
3 Declarations of Conflicts of Interest    


 


 
4 Board Business    


 


 
4.1 


MDC/ADC  Committee member selection 
3 resumes 


Paul  


4.1.1 


4.1.2 


(4.1.3) 


 


 
4.2 ADRIA Logo Confirmation Paul  


4.2.1 


4.2.2 


 


 
4.3 CR Day update (October 15) Paul   


 


 
4.4 ADRIC Conference update Paul   


 


 
4.5 Draft Strategies Paul  4.5 


 


 
5 New Business    


 


 
6 Next meeting    


 


 
7 Adjournment    


 


 
     


 








ADR Institute of Alberta
BALANCE SHEET


August 31, 2015


September 08, 2015 6:25PM 1 Report 1


ASSETS


CURRENT ASSETS
Cash 5,309 $
Reserve Funds 74,518 
Accounts Receivable 17,209 
Prepaid Expenses 5,606 


Total Current Assets 102,642 $


PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Office Furniture & Fixtures 3,706 $
Computer Equipment 7,953 
Classroom Furniture & Equipment 2,120 


Total Property and Equipment 13,779 $


OTHER ASSETS


Total Other Assets 0 $


TOTAL ASSETS 116,421 $


LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' EQUITY


CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable 543 $
Accrued Liabilities 20,800 
Deferred Revenue 61,044 
GST/HST Payable 759 
Due to ADRIC 4,048 
DRN Conference 7,442 


Total Current Liabilities 94,636 $


LONG TERM LIABILITIES


Total Long Term Liabilities 0 $


TOTAL LIABILITIES 94,636 $


MEMBERS' EQUITY
General Surplus 27,241 $
Net Income (Loss) (5,456)


Total Members' Equity 21,785 


TOTAL LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' EQUITY 116,421 $








ADRIA Minutes 6 June 2015 - for approval  1 | P a g e  


 


ADRIA BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES 


HELD AT THE SANDMAN INN IN CALGARY ON SATURDAY, JUNE 6, 2015 


 


Attending: Stan Galbraith; Wendy Hassen, C. Med.; Joanne Munro, C. Med.; Alasdair 


MacKinnon, C. Med.; Paul Conway (Executive Director); Jeffery Jessamine, Q. Arb.; Chuck  


Smith, Q. Med.; Michelle Simpson, C. Med., C.Arb.; W. Donald Goodfellow, C. Arb.; Barrie 


Marshall, (Secretary); and Dolores Herman, Q. Med. 


 


Regrets:  Mike Hokanson, Q. Med., Q.Arb. (Treasurer) 


 


MEETING COMMENCES: 12:30 p.m. 


 


1.0 Welcome and Agenda Review 


1.1 Welcome/Call to Order 


The new President, Stan Galbraith, opened the meeting and welcomed the two new Board 


members, Alasdair MacKinnon and Michelle Simpson.  He further advised the Board that 


“BoardSuite”, ADRIA’s internet reporting platform, had experienced technical difficulties and 


had, therefore, been unable to provide timely information to Board members in preparation for 


the meeting. 


 


1.2 Review of Agenda Items and Addition of Any Items 


The President canvassed the Board for any comments regarding the existing agenda or additional 


agenda items.  The President advised, in this regard, that because BoardSuite was unavailable, 


the latest revision of the Board policies had not been distributed.  Accordingly, agenda item 4.1 


would be put over to the next meeting.  There were no other submissions by any Board members 


in this regard. 


 


2.0 Minutes of Previous Meeting(s)  


2.1 Minutes of Meeting of April 11, 2015 


 


 







ADRIA Minutes 6 June 2015 - for approval  2 | P a g e  


 


BOARD MOTION: 


It is moved by Chuck Smith, and seconded by Wendy Hassen, that the minutes of the meeting of 


April 11, 2015 be approved.  Approved unanimously. 


 


3.0 Business Arising 


3.1 Strategic and Operational Plan 


3.1.1 Visioning 


Past President, Wendy Hassen, stated, for the benefit of the new Board members, that the Board 


had conducted a visioning “brainstorming” session at the last Board meeting.  This exercise was 


driven by the fact that it was felt that the existing Vision of ADRIA was very inward looking and 


not sufficiently aspirational.  She stated that a Vision needed to be unifying and focussed.  Each 


Board member then provided his/her comments respecting the need for modifying or further 


illustrative language respecting the consensual favorite Vision statement arising from the last 


Board meeting, namely “No Albertan fears conflict”.   


 


ACTION ITEM: 


At the end of these discussions, it was agreed that the statements, “No Albertan Fears Conflict” 


and “Albertans Fearlessly Resolve Conflict” will be submitted to ADRIA’s communications 


director, Jennifer Warren, for her to review, evaluate, and then make a recommendation to the 


Board together with possible recommendations regarding revisions to the Mission Statement 


arising from the new Vision. 


 


 3.1.2 Prioritization of Strategies 


The ED indicated that he has heard from a number of Board members respecting the strategies 


spreadsheet which had been circulated.  He indicated that he would reach out to the Board 


members who had not yet responded for their input and then prepare a report for discussion at 


the September Board meeting.  Stan Galbraith indicated that he would work with the ED 


regarding planning for that meeting including whether or not to engage a third party to assist the 


Board in its deliberations. 


 


Wendy Hassen indicated that the strategic plan, and its success indicators, needs to be finalized 


at the September meeting and, at that time, adopted as a three-year plan.  Once adopted, the 







ADRIA Minutes 6 June 2015 - for approval  3 | P a g e  


 


strategic plan will be re-examined each year, both in terms of its effectiveness and whether or not 


minor revisions are necessary.  At the September meeting the strategic directions and strategies 


should not require much review. 


 


 3.2.1 Board Evaluation 


Dolores Herman summarized the responses received from the Board members, which she 


addressed in her written summary.  She advised that the responses were similar to those received 


during last year’s Board evaluation process. 


 


It was agreed that there needs to be more consistent and timely access to Board information and 


that the problems experienced recently with BoardSuite highlights this need. 


 


The concern was also expressed about the fact that the agendas for Board meetings were, 


invariably, quite extensive and that it was a challenge, at each Board meeting, to address all of 


the agenda items. 


 


Barrie Marshall suggested that there should be greater use made of conference calls between 


Board meetings to address one or more agenda items to, thereby, reduce the number of agenda 


items at Board meetings. 


 


Stan Galbraith suggested having a standing time for a telephone conference meeting to, thereby, 


maximize the availability of Board members for such calls and to minimize the organizational 


effort associated with the scheduling of such calls. 


 


ACTION ITEM: 


The ED will investigate and report to the Board respecting electronic communication facilities 


alternative to BoardSuite. 


 


ACTION ITEM: 


Stan Galbraith and the ED will propose a number of dates for standing conference calls to deal 


with Board business. 


 







ADRIA Minutes 6 June 2015 - for approval  4 | P a g e  


 


 


BOARD MOTION: 


It is moved by Joanne Munro, and seconded by Alasdair MacKinnon, that the Board Evaluation 


summary, as presented, is accepted for information and the recommendations set out in that 


summary be accepted as action items.  Approved unanimously. 


 


3.2.2 ED Performance Review 


Wendy Hassen reminded the Board that it had, at its April meeting, approved the ED review 


process and that Ms. Hassen and Jeff Jessamine had been delegated the task of preparing a 


template for that review.  The template was then distributed to the Board members via “Survey 


Monkey” and ten members of the Board responded to the questions set out in the template.  Ms. 


Hassen and Mr. Jessamine met with the ED on June 4 to discuss the results of the evaluation.  A 


summary report, setting out the results of the evaluation and the discussions with the ED, was 


then presented by Ms. Hassen to the Board for its ratification. 


 


Michelle Simpson expressed her concern about being asked to ratify a process that she, as a new 


Board member, had not participated in.  Ms. Hassen acknowledged that, in the future, the 


evaluation process would be complete before the new Board would be in place and that, 


accordingly, this problem should not arise in the future. 


 


Don Goodfellow indicated that the results of the survey should be presented to the Board before 


those results were taken to the ED for the ED’s comment and input. 


 


Michelle Simpson and Alasdair MacKinnon agreed, as new Board members, to abstain from the 


vote to ratify the ED evaluation. 


 


BOARD MOTION: 


It is moved by Joanne Munro, and seconded by Chuck Smith, to ratify the ADRIA Executive 


Director Appraisal.  Approved (Alasdair MacKinnon and Michelle Simpson abstaining). 


 


The President advised that the new directors would be at liberty to review the summary report, if 


they so desired. 







ADRIA Minutes 6 June 2015 - for approval  5 | P a g e  


 


 


 3.3 2015 ADRIC Conference 


Dolores Herman reported on the status of the preparations for the 2015 ADRIC Conference in 


Calgary.  She advised, in this regard, that there were certain issues which she and the ED were 


dealing with and on which they would report back to the Board by way of action plans.  Joanne 


Munro expressed the Board’s desire that the conference be successful and not overly 


burdensome to ADRIA’s staff. 


 


Wendy Hassen expressed the need for clear direction being provided to ADRIA staff to ensure 


that their roles and responsibilities for the conference were well defined by ADRIC. 


 


The President expressed the need to seek clarity from ADRIC on ADRIA’s role and where 


ADRIA assistance would be required. 


 


Joanne Munro expressed, on behalf of the Board, the need to convey to the volunteers how much 


their work was appreciated by ADRIA. 


 


 4.1. Board Policy Review 


The President indicated that all of the amendments agreed to at the April meeting had been 


incorporated but that, because of the breakdown of BoardSuite, they were unavailable for the 


Board’s review at this time.   Tabled to the next meeting. 


 


ACTION ITEM: 


The latest draft, namely, “Board Policy 2015 – 06-Draft” to be circulated to the Board members, 


in whatever manner deemed appropriate, prior to the next meeting. 


 


 4.2. C. Med and MDC TOR policy recommendations 


The ED reported that he had had a meeting with the Mediation Designation Committee (“MDC”) 


respecting the problems with the wording in ADRIA’s information booklet and application form 


for C. Meds and Q. Meds and the need to develop a communication strategy for members to 


advise them that ADRIA would be aligning its practices with the criteria outlined in the 


information booklet. 







ADRIA Minutes 6 June 2015 - for approval  6 | P a g e  


 


 


BOARD MOTION: 


It is moved by Chuck Smith, and seconded by Don Goodfellow, that the ED’s report entitled 


“Chartered Mediator Designations” be accepted for informational purposes.  Approved 


unanimously. 


 


 5.0 Reports 


 5.1 President 


The President advised that, as he had been president for less than 24 hours, he did not have a 


President’s report. 


 


 5.2 Executive Director 


The ED provided an oral report and advised that his written report would follow.  Some 


highlights of his report were as follows: 


 - membership is at an all-time high 


 - the building of the website has gone well 


 - a member of ADRIA, Robert Wanner, has been elected as an MLA 


- ADRIA is continuing to stress engagement of its membership through the services it 


provides. 


- there has been a healthy number of new applications for designations with 23 being 


approved and 2 rejected 


- Tasha Innes has been replaced by Jocelyn Christian. 


- regarding professional development and education, the new separation and divorce 


course was being rolled out. 


- the dispute resolution network has asked ADRIA to administer its conference on 


September 21 and 22 


- the Directory of ADR Professionals is now ready to be launched through the facility of 


ADRIA’s new membership database, Wild Apricot. 


 


BOARD MOTION: 


It is moved by Wendy Hassen, and seconded by Barrie Marshall, that the Board approve the 


administration of the DRN conference by ADRIA staff.  Approved unanimously. 







ADRIA Minutes 6 June 2015 - for approval  7 | P a g e  


 


 


 


BOARD MOTION 


It is moved by Michelle Simpson, and seconded by Joanne Munro, that the ED’s report be 


accepted.  Approved unanimously. 


 


 5.3 Treasurer 


The Treasurer’s report, circulated to the Board prior to the meeting, was reviewed by the Board.  


 


BOARD MOTION: 


It is moved by Dolores Herman, and seconded by Alasdair MacKinnon, that the Treasurer’s 


Report be accepted.  Approved unanimously. 


 


 5.4 Governance Committee 


Tabled until next meeting 


 


 5.5 Board Committees/Task Forces – Mediation Advocacy Task Force/Evaluative 


ADR 


Joanne Munro reported that the Task Forces’ work in this regard was nearing completion. 


 


ACTION ITEM: 


The ED to prepare a spectrum of ADR services provided by ADRIA members setting out which 


services were evaluative and which were non-evaluative. 


 


 5.6 ADRIC Representative 


Chuck Smith reported that Janet McKay would be back at ADRIC before the end of June. 


 


 6.0 New Business 


 6.1 ADRIC and ADRIA logos 


Chuck Smith reported that option “B”, circulated to the Board membership, had been adopted by 


ADRIC as its new logo. 


 







ADRIA Minutes 6 June 2015 - for approval  8 | P a g e  


 


Discussion then ensued amongst the Board members regarding the adoption by ADRIA of the 


same logo.  Chuck Smith advised that ADRIC would be making funds available to its affiliates 


to assist in their adoption of the logo. 


 


BOARD MOTION: 


It is moved by Chuck Smith, and seconded by Joanne Munro, that ADRIA adopt the new 


ADRIC logo with the timing of that adoption, and the colours to be used, as well as the 


associated wording and costs, to be left as an operational matter.  Approved unanimously. 


 


ACTION ITEM: 


The President to communicate ADRIA’s adoption of the new logo to ADRIC. 


 


 6.2 2015 On line Directory 


Dealt with as part of ED’s report. 


 


 7.0 Learning Opportunities 


During the September meeting, there will be an agenda item respecting the use and application of 


social media to ADR matters. 


 


 8.0 Link to Membership, Events & Opportunities 


 8.1 Content of next ‘On Board’ 


The next ‘On Board’ will include the following matters: 


- welcome of Alasdair MacKinnon and Michelle Simpson as the new directors to the 


Board 


 - message from the President to the membership. 


- a statement respecting the completion of the new Complaint’s Policy with a link to that 


policy 


- a comment celebrating the successful virtual AGM with thanks to the ED, ADRIA staff, 


Self Connection Books, and Concordia University. 


 


 8.2 Invitations to Board Dinner September 2015 







ADRIA Minutes 6 June 2015 - for approval  9 | P a g e  


 


After some discussion of possible invitations to the Friday Board dinner, it was agreed that the 


Friday evening meeting would be a working session and therefore, there would be no invitations 


extended. 


 


 9.0  Calendar Review 


As reflected in the Agenda, the ED pointed out that the Dispute Resolution Network (DRN) 


conference would be held in Edmonton on September 21/22; the ADRIC conference would be 


held in Calgary on October 28-30; and the Alberta Restorative Justice Association (ARJA)  


conference would be held in Calgary on November 19/20. 


 


10.0 Board of Directors Calendar 


The next Board meetings are scheduled as follows: 


 - September 18/19 – Edmonton 


 - October 31 – Calgary 


 - January 15/16 (tentative) – Edmonton 


 - next meeting (as yet unscheduled) – Calgary 


 


 11.0 In- Camera Session (3:50 to 3:58) 


 


MEETING ADJOURNED: 3:58 PM 








September 08, 2015 6:36PM ADR Institute of Alberta
BUSINESS UNIT REPORT


Eight Months Ended August 31, 2015


2015 2015 8 Months Ended YTD Variance 2014 2013
Budget YTD Budget August 31, 2015 Better (Worse) Audited Audited


than Budget


Governance
Less: Direct Costs 45,027 $ 31,096 $ 31,444 $ (348)$ 47,375 $ 41,163 $
Less: Indirect Costs Allocated at 5% 6,804 4,251 3,612 639 6,520 7,898 


Total Governance (51,831)$ (35,347)$ (35,056)$ 291 $ (53,895)$ (49,061)$


Membership 124,900 $ 86,291 $ 74,231 $ (12,060)$ 93,375 $ 101,780 $
Less: Direct Costs 64,139 43,043 30,539 12,504 43,485 56,199 
Less: Indirect Costs Allocated at 25% 34,018 21,255 18,062 3,193 32,604 39,491 


Net Profit (Loss) Membership 26,743 $ 21,993 $ 25,631 $ 3,637 $ 17,286 $ 6,090 $


ADR Business Services 96,705 $ 63,870 $ 56,245 $ (7,625)$ 80,810 $ 66,491 $
Less: Direct Cost 84,736 57,177 55,313 1,864 68,882 63,933 
Less: Indirect Costs Allocated at 10% 13,607 8,502 7,225 1,277 13,042 15,796 


Net Profit (Loss) ADR Business Services (1,638)$ (1,809)$ (6,293)$ (4,484)$ (1,114)$ (13,238)$


PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT


Certificate Programs 361,555 $ 184,535 $ 213,184 $ 28,649 $ 336,868 $ 393,982 $
Less: Direct Costs 246,173 146,406 139,301 7,105 205,318 225,590 
Less: Indirect Costs Allocated at 25% 34,018 21,255 18,062 3,193 32,604 39,491 


Net Profit (Loss) Certificate Programs 81,364 $ 16,874 $ 55,822 $ 38,947 $ 98,946 $ 128,901 $


Specialty & Professional  Dev 45,000 $ 23,400 $ 21,410 $ (1,990)$ 67,721 $ 13,500 $
Less: Direct Costs 52,034 32,006 27,317 4,689 48,319 25,379 
Less: Indirect Costs Allocated at 10% 13,607 8,502 7,225 1,277 13,042 15,796 


Net Profit (Loss) Specialty & Professional Dev (20,641)$ (17,108)$ (13,132)$ 3,976 $ 6,360 $ (27,675)$


Contract Training 67,600 $ 45,600 $ 22,100 $ (23,500)$ 27,295 $ 132,032 $
Less: Direct Costs 41,046 28,734 20,981 7,753 40,935 94,038 
Less: Indirect Costs Allocated at 10% 13,607 8,502 7,225 1,277 13,042 15,796 


Net Profit (Loss) Contract Training 12,947 $ 8,364 $ (6,106)$ (14,470)$ (26,682)$ 22,198 $


Conference 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 23,693 $ 26,865 $
Less: Direct Costs 17,700 11,800 11,639 161 32,811 29,836 
Less: Indirect Costs Allocated at 10% 13,607 8,502 7,225 1,277 13,042 15,796 


Net Profit (Loss) Conference (31,307)$ (20,302)$ (18,864)$ 1,438 $ (22,160)$ (18,767)$


Designation & Accreditation 6,950 $ 4,475 $ 5,675 $ 1,200 $ 9,700 $ 15,145 $
Less: Direct Costs 13,192 8,528 9,817 (1,289) 11,949 13,093 
Less: Indirect Costs Allocated at 5% 6,804 4,251 3,612 639 6,521 7,898 


Net Profit (Loss) Designation & Accreditation (13,046)$ (8,304)$ (7,754)$ 550 $ (8,770)$ (5,846)$


Revenue Other Income 180 $ 120 $ 296 $ 176 $ 1,907 $ 1,826 $


Total Revenue 702,890 $ 408,291 $ 393,141 $ (15,150)$ 641,369 $ 751,621 $
Total Expense 700,119 443,809 398,597 45,212 629,491 707,193 
Net Profit (Loss) 2,771 $ (35,518)$ (5,456)$ 30,062 $ 11,878 $ 44,428 $








ADR Institute of Alberta


ACTUAL


Revenue and Expenses


August 2015


ACTUAL REVENUES


Member Services 74,231.00$   


ADR Business Services 56,245.00$   


Professional Development & Education 262,370.00$ 


Other Income 295.00$        


393,141.00$ 


ACTUAL EXPENSES


Member Services 30,539.00$   


ADR Business Services 55,312.00$   


Professional Development & Education 209,054.00$ 


Operations 72,247.00$   


Governance 31,444.00$   


398,596.00$ 


Member 
Services


19%


ADR Business 
Services


14%


Professional 
Development & 


Education
67%


Other Income
0%


REVENUES


Member 
Services


8%


ADR Business 
Services


14%


Professional 
Development & 


Education
52%


Operations
18%


Governance
8%


EXPENSES


Report 3








ADR Institute of Alberta


BUDGET


Revenues and Expenses


August 2015


BUDGET REVENUES


Member Services 86,291.00$   


ADR Business Services 63,870.00$   


Professional Development & Education 258,010.00$ 


Other Income 120.00$         


408,291.00$ 


EXPENSES


Member  Services 43,043.00$   


ADR Business Services 57,176.00$   


Professional Development & Education 227,474.00$ 


Operations 85,019.00$   


Governance 31,096.00$   


443,808.00$ 


Member 
Services


21%


ADR Business 
Services


16%


Professional 
Development & 


Education
63%


Other Income
0%


REVENUES


Member  
Services


10%


ADR Business 
Services


13%


Professional 
Development & 


Education
51%


Operations
19%


Governance
7%


EXPENSES


Report 3








 


C0230951.v1 


TREASURER’S REPORT 


 My apologies for the lateness of the report.  There were some items that Paul and I needed to 


speak about before the report was finalized and due to my schedule we were unable to do so 


until Thursday of this week. 


 Effective as of August 31, 2015   


 Special thanks to Paul and Karen for finishing the Month end records so quickly so we could 


have more up to date information for the meeting 


 Attachments 


o Balance Sheet August 31, 2015   


o Budget v. Actual Summary  August 31, 2015   


o Pie charts Actual revenues and expenses 


o Pie chart budgeted revenues and expenses   


 All financial documents are available to board members who want copies of them. 


GENERAL COMMENTS  


 We need to be somewhat cautious as we close out Q3 and into Q4.  There may be some gloomy 


skies ahead, as some of the projected revenues have not been realized and may not be fully 


realized by the end of the year.  Our “thin” budget showing a profit of $2,000 may be somewhat 


thinner than anticipated.  This pessimism might be unwarranted if the revenues from education 


proceed as planned or are better than expected (both of which may well happen) but we 


wanted to ensure that the board was apprised of the status of everything for information 


purposes 


 There are a number of reasons and explanations for this.  It isn’t quite time to panic, but I 


wanted to ensure that the board was aware of the issues that have arisen. 


o Some revenue streams that were expected to continue or actually increase have 


unexpectedly dried up. 


 “Select and Appoint” 


 In 2014, we realized approximately $10K of revenue from external 


parties using ADRIA’s neutral “select and appoint” process for ADR 


professionals.  This revenue was realized without any marketing at all, 


and the expectation was that it would be an area for modest growth.  


Instead it has been much lower than anticipated. 


 Corporate Memberships 


 Part of the revenue plan was to create more sources of revenue through 


the marketing and sale of corporate memberships.  This hasn’t 


happened as early as had been anticipated (the thought was we would 


have some Q3 and Q4 revenue from it). 


 Paul is chairing the ADRIC committee for corporate memberships.  THis 


was intended to move ADRIC along to its decision so ADRIA could try 







 


C0230951.v1 


and model its own system after ADRIC’s.  Although recommendations 


were put in to ADRIC in February of this year, ADRIC has yet to adopt or 


accept those recommendations and as a result we have not been able 


to take many steps. 


 Theoretically ADRIA could go it alone with this type of marketing, but it 


makes sense to dovetail on what ADRIC is doing rather than try to move 


something forward that might be at cross-purposes with what national 


is doing. 


 ADRIC still hasn’t decided on a new logo.  On this basis, spending money 


on marketing materials doesn’t make good sense. 


 Private Training 


 Many of the “leads for private training opportunities in the latter half of 


2015 dried up, in particular the government leads.  I suspect that this 


was related to the general economic downturn. 


 We still have reserve funds as of the end of August, however if we take out the deferred 


revenue from these amounts the margins are quite a bit slimmer.  Our modest profit numbers 


are now looking like they may be projected to somewhat of a loss.   


 Not all of the courses we are offering in the fall and winter are fully subscribed yet and they may 


need to be cancelled.  If this happens then the losses could be larger.  By the same token, if 


more people sign up then we might turn it around to mitigate against any projected losses 


because every student above minimum course funding represents pure profit to ADRIA.  


Because of the unrealized revenues Paul and his team will focus on marketing the remaining 


year courses to try and increase our numbers.  Board members are encouraged to do the same. 


 NOTE THAT SOME OF THE PESSIMISM ABOVE IS BASED ON PROJECTED AND FORCASTED 


INFORMATION.  Please keep in mind that we had very little in the way of forecasting 


information supplied under the prior regime.  This foreshadowing is a testament to the fact that 


the ED team has  its “eye on the ball”. 


 Based on the budget to actual reporting thus far in the year, our numbers look quite good.  


o Revenues are down slightly over budgeted amounts 96% (at YTD) 


o Expenses are also down over budgeted amounts 90% (at YTD) 


o Overall “member” type services (fees, membership services and ADR business services) 


are lacking a little bit as a whole but most of the percentage variances are on small line 


items in the budget. 


o Education and Professional Development is slightly ahead of budget 


o The splits of where the revenue and expense are coming from are very nearly identical 


to the budgeted amounts (refer to pie charts) 


  







 


C0230951.v1 


FINANCIAL COMMENTS 


 Reserve Funds along with Cash together, both of which comprise very liquid assets, we are 


sitting at just under $80,000.00.  This is tempered to some extent by the fact that there is a 


substantial amount of deferred revenue. 


 The previous general comment that our budget is fairly “thin” remains  valid although we are 


certainly on a much stronger footing than we have been in years past. 


 








 


 


      


 
  







 


 2 


Table of Contents 
 


1. Executive Summary        
 Summary of Key Findings 
 Recommendations 


2. Background 
3. Research Methodology 
4. History of Mediation in Alberta 
5. Government Mediation Services Analysis 
6. Analysis of Private Organizations Survey 
7. Volunteerism and Pro Bono Activities 


 Community Mediation Programs 
8. The Value of Mediation 
9. Mediator Work and Compensation 
10. Education, Training and Designations 
11. Public Awareness and Attitudes 
12. Advocacy 


 
 
 
 


Appendices 
 
Appendix A: ADRIA Mediation Profession Advocacy Task Force Members 
Appendix B: A Brief Overview of the Development of Mediation in Alberta 
 (focusing primarily on Edmonton) 
Appendix C: Government Mediation Services Analysis  
Appendix D: The Value of Mediation 
Appendix E: Mediator Compensation 
Appendix F: Resolution Services Roster Mediator and Practitioner Information 
and Engagement Sessions held in August 2014 in Grande Prairie, Edmonton, 
Red Deer, Medicine Hat, Lethbridge, and Calgary 
Appendix G: Alberta Mediator Survey Results 
Appendix H: Canada Mediator Survey Results 
Appendix J:  Professional Associations - Analysis of Survey Results 
  







 


 3 


1. Executive Summary 
 
Introduction 
 
In April 2014 the ADR Institute of Alberta (ADRIA) established a task force to 
address the complex questions around compensation practices for mediators and to 
produce a white paper to document and discuss its findings. A key component of the 
Terms of Reference for the task force was to “explore and research mediator 
compensation, how it relates to pro bono activities, and its impact on the mediation 
profession and practices.” 
 
The task force identified key areas it wished to research – governmental and 
regulatory bodies, community programs, mediation rosters, and private 
organizations offering mediation services. A literature search, while not exhaustive, 
provided the task force with relevant studies and valuable information about the 
quantifiable and non-quantifiable value of mediation services. The task force 
surveyed ADRIA members, and surveyed – with the help of the ADR Institute of 
Canada (ADRIC) - mediators from across the country. As part of its plan to address 
how ADRIA might advocate on behalf of its membership the task force also surveyed 
professional organizations to see how they respond to members in areas of 
advocacy, influencing compensation, pro bono work, and managing complaints 
about breaches of ethics. 
 
The purpose of this White Paper is not to debate a theory or undertake an 
exhaustive review. It is instead intended to learn from the work and perspectives of 
others as we explore and suggest questions and ideas for ADRIA Board 
consideration. It is intended to provide a reasonable basis to explore possible policy 
and approaches to help ADRIA leaders fulfill the organization’s vision and mission. 
 
Summary of Findings 
 


1. The bulk of empirical evidence and researched reviewed supports mediation 
as a cost-effective way of resolving legal disputes and workplace conflict. It 
produces better psychosocial outcomes for families and can save private 
companies and the public sector from significant monetary losses associated 
with workplace conflict. Without exception, every organization or roster 
providing mediation services that was surveyed for this White Paper was 
enthusiastic about the benefits of mediation. Considering all the benefits to 
be gained from mediation, the question remains: why is mediation not a 
more obvious choice in Alberta? 


 
2. Mediators want more opportunities to work and want to be compensated 


commensurate with their training, skills and experience. 86 per cent of 
ADRIA survey respondents would accept more paid mediation work. 
Literature from the United States noted similar trends and poses the 
question: “Is there an over supply of mediators?”  







 


 4 


In its annual report on “Best Jobs” 
on December 19, 2007, U.S. News 
and World Reports included for the 
first (and so far, only) time, 
“Mediator,” stating: mediators love 
their work, helping people beat 
their swords into plowshares. The 
problem is that there are more 
mediators than jobs. In part, this is 
because the barriers are so low—
most mediators are required only 
to complete a 30-to-40 hour 
training course. 
Engaging Conflict for Fun and Profit: 
Current and Emerging Career Trends 
in Conflict Resolution Robert J. Rhudy 
– March 2014  
 


 
3. Relatively few mediators are able to earn a 


living from the practice of mediation alone. 
More than 70 per cent of Alberta survey 
respondents reported earning less than 
$50K from their mediation practice. This 
aligns with some of the U.S. research. Urska 
Velikonja, in an analysis of the financial 
viability of the mediation profession in the 
United States, says: “…of those who decide 
to become mediators, 80 per cent cannot 
make a living solely as mediators. Aspiring 
mediators are constantly scrambling for 
work, but often must return to their old 
careers. Fifteen per cent keep busy, make a 
decent living, but never quite break 
through. The top five per cent, however, are 
booked months in advance and can gross upwards of one million dollars per 
year.”1  


 
4. Those earning higher incomes from their mediation practice are primarily 


those who complement their primary occupation with mediation skills, 
notably in the practice of law. Velikonja’s research concurs with Alberta’s 
survey finding and concludes that income distribution in the market for 
private mediations is uneven, with a “winner take all” market where a few 
mediators at the top of the pyramid are busy and well paid, while the vast 
majority of aspiring mediators are constantly looking for work yet make little 
or no money.2 


 
5. There are fears the use of pro bono (volunteer) mediation may have 


devalued the financial viability of the profession and led to the expectation 
that such services should be free of charge. 51 per cent of Alberta survey 
respondents indicated pro bono work either undermines the profession of 
mediation or the financial viability of the profession. This opinion is shared 
in some articles found in the research.  


 
6. Mediation has been standard practice in dispute resolution in Alberta for 


many years in areas such as collective bargaining. At a more organic, grass 
roots level, the rise of mediation in Alberta was largely because of the efforts 
of dedicated volunteers whose pro bono activities allowed for the creation of 
community, parent-teen and the civil claims mediation programs. In Alberta, 
78 per cent of those responding to the survey question about pro bono work 


                                                        
1 Velikonja Urska. Making Peace and Making Money: Economic Analysis of the Market for Mediators in Private Practice. Albany 


Law Review, Vol. 72, pp. 257-291 (2009). 
2 ibid 







 


 5 


either provide or would like to provide some pro bono service – 50 per cent 
to contribute to society and 19 per cent to gain experience. 


 
7. Compensation for civil claims mediators is inconsistent across four 


provinces, with Alberta’s compensation being the lowest at $75.00 per 
mediator per mediation. In the comment section of the Alberta mediator 
survey, many expressed frustration at the civil claims mediation 
compensation. There was also resentment that judges, lawyers and court 
staff are paid market value for their work in resolving lawsuits while civil 
claims mediators are not. This sentiment is echoed in a report following the 
Alberta government’s Resolution Services Roster Mediator and Practitioner 
Information and Engagement Sessions held in August 2014 in Grande Prairie, 
Edmonton, Red Deer, Medicine Hat, Lethbridge, and Calgary. (See Appendix 
F) In focus group sessions at which questions about compensation were 
asked, mediators across the province criticized as inadequate the 
honorarium provided. This again raises questions about the supply of 
mediators for the work available. 


 
8. As mediation is an unregulated profession, expectations around education, 


training, experience, membership in a professional organization and 
credentialing (designations) remains all over the map. It is to be noted as 
well that anyone can call himself or herself a mediator and there is little 
protection or quality assurance for the public. To address this, associations 
like ADRIC and the Alberta Family Mediation Society have introduced 
credentialing programs to implement standards for practice in an effort to 
protect the public. An undercurrent in the information collected reflects 
membership interest in exploring regulation of the profession. 


 
9. There are few educational institutions in Alberta that offer ADR and 


mediation training. None in Alberta offer an undergraduate degree or post-
graduate credit programs in ADR. The programs are costly and upon 
successfully completing their training and evaluations, new mediators are 
frustrated at the lack of meaningful paid work. 


 
10. Alberta members hold proportionally more designations than their peers in 


other jurisdictions. (About 19 per cent of ADRIC members are from Alberta, 
yet Alberta’s mediators hold 35 per cent of the Q.Med and C.Med 
designations offered by ADRIC. 45 per cent of ADRIA’s Full Members hold a 
mediation designation, compared to 29 per cent in Ontario) Clearly, ADRIA 
members see the value of having a designation.  


 
11. There is little recognition of the value of designations by the public and 


hiring organizations. (Few of the organizations surveyed (private, 
government or community) require their mediators to hold a designation. 


 







 


 6 


For virtually all successful private mediators, mediation is a second or third 
career; most are in their fifties or older.6 MAKING PEACE AND MAKING MONEY: ECONOMIC 


ANALYSIS OF THE MARKET FOR MEDIATORS IN PRIVATE PRACTICE Urška Velikonja* 


 


12. There are a number of areas member survey respondents feel ADRIA could 
advocate on their behalf: PR and education; compensation for mediators; 
roster development; pursuing regulation of the profession; providing 
mentoring to new mediators and pursuing alliances with other mediation 
associations. This mirrors similar findings in the United States.  


 
13. The percentage of mediators that are seeking and would accept more paid 


work is higher in Alberta than in the other provinces surveyed (86 per cent 
versus 80 per cent). This is consistent with the finding that a smaller 
percentage of mediators in Alberta expressed confidence in the viability of 
mediation as a stand alone profession (25 per cent versus 31 per cent) 


 
14. There is no common market rate or industry standard regarding mediation 


compensation. Compensation ranges from nothing to several hundred dollars 
per hour or more. This may reflect the varying education, experience and 
specialization of mediators, the different sectors they work in as well as the 
style of mediation practiced. 


 
15. Mediation largely seems to be a secondary career and in Alberta 90 per cent 


of mediators are 40 years or older. This mirrors similar findings from recent 
research in the United States.  


 
 
 
 
 
Recommendations (In Development)  
 
 


2.  Background   


In Spring 2014, a number of ADRIA members raised concerns with the Board about 
the approach to compensation of mediators and the challenges of many mediators 
to develop a viable practice.  To address the complex questions around 
compensation practices for mediators, ADRIA’s Board in April 2014 established a 
task force to examine these matters, and to produce a white paper to document and 
discuss its findings.  


A key component of the Terms of Reference for the task force was to “explore and 
research mediator compensation, how it relates to pro bono activities, and its 
impact on the mediation profession and practices.” The task force was also to look at 
ways in which ADRIA might advocate for its members and the mediation profession. 


The Board appointed Joanne Munro and Wendy Hassen from the Board to Co-Chair 
the Task Force.  ADRIA put a request to its membership for volunteers and a small 







 


 7 


group was formed along with the assistance of the ADRIA Executive Director Paul 
Conway to undertake the work.  Task force members are outlined in Appendix A. 


 


3. Research Methodology   


 
With the selection, formation, scope and mandate of the task force complete, targets 
to survey were identified and surveys were drafted. The surveys included both 
qualitative and quantitative information. Quantitative data collection involves 
numbers, graphs and charts, whereas qualitative data collection deals with feelings, 
perceptions and other non-quantifiable elements. In addition, other information was 
gathered through web searches and from members who work in the field and have 
participated on various mediation rosters. 


Mediator Survey:  Understanding mediation practitioners was important to the 
task force and a survey consisting of more than 50 questions was distributed to 
ADRIA members and other mediators in Alberta. With the assistance of the ADR 
Institute of Canada, the survey went out to mediators across Canada. In Alberta 
there were 111 respondents (75 per cent were members of ADRIA) and there were 
an additional 82 respondents from Ontario, British Columbia, Saskatchewan and 
Manitoba (95 per cent were members of ADRIC). A summary of results is found in 
Appendix G (Alberta results) and Appendix H (other jurisdictions in Canada). 


Mediation Services Survey: The task force surveyed mediation services providers 
from three areas - government, community and private. The survey examined: 
services provided; target mediation clients; if mediators were employed, contracted, 
volunteer; whether there were rosters, and if so the size of the roster; mediator 
qualifications (training, education, skills, experience, whether the mediator 
belonged to a professional organization, whether the mediator held a Chartered or 
Qualified mediator designation); compensation; and processes used. More than 35 
service providers were identified to survey with 29 participating.  


Several federal and provincial laws mandate or provide for use of dispute resolution 
mechanisms to resolve disputes both within the government sector and between 
the government and public. As the government sector provides mediators with 
opportunities to practice, information was gathered from a number of government 
agencies across Canada and abroad. This research is intended to determine trends 
and correlations between mediator compensation and the impact of compensation 
on the mediation profession. 


Professional Organization Survey: The task force created a survey to see how 
professional organizations respond to members in areas of advocacy, influencing 
compensation, pro bono work, managing complaints about breaches of ethics, 
membership fees, membership regulation, and use of ADR (internally/externally).  







 


 8 


Eight professional organizations responded to the survey and the results are 
summarized in Appendix J.  


Literature Search 


ADRIA undertook an on-line search of related literature and individual task force 
members gathered information from various sources.  While this research was not 
exhaustive, it has provided the Task Force with valuable information. Relevant 
studies and views reflected by others have been shared in this paper.  A 
bibliography is provided  
 
White Paper: This paper is a summary of the research and analysis conducted by 
task force members over the past 12 months. Readers interested in the detailed 
reports are encouraged to read the appendices associated with various sections. 


 


















































































































ADRIA Board of Directors MEETING AGENDA September 18, 19 2015                            Page 1 of 3 
 


 


ADRIA BOARD MEETING AGENDA  


Friday, September 18, 2015  5 – 7  pm session Room HA206 Hole Academic Centre, second floor 


Concordia University of Edmonton 


--- 


Dinner 7-9 pm at La Boheme, 6427-112 Ave NW, Edmonton, 780-474-5693 


--- 


Saturday, September 19, 2015  8:00 am – 3:30 pm  Room HA206 Hole Academic Centre, second floor 


Concordia University of Edmonton 


Benchmark 
Timings  


# Topic\Title Action Role 
Ref  
Material
s 


FRIDAY   Room HA206 (Concordia)    


5 pm 1 WELCOME  & AGENDA REVIEW     


 1.1 
Welcome/Call to order 


Record time Stan  


 1.2 Review of Agenda Items and addition of any items  
Review  & 


Amend/Adopt 
Stan 1.2 


5:10 pm 2 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING(S)    


 2.1 June 6, 2015 (Board meeting) 
Review & Adopt Stan 2.1 


 3 Declarations of Conflict of Interest 
 Stan  


5:15-7 pm 4 Business arising    


   4.1 


Strategic Planning Session (SPS) 
-Recap of journey to date, and Board role 
-Vision, tagline and Mission 
-Achievements 
-Strategies 
-Success indicators 


Brainstorming 


session - All 


Stan/Wendy


/Paul 


4.1.1 


4.1.2 


4.1.3 


4.1.4 


7-9 pm  Dinner at La Boheme    


SATURDAY      


8 am  
Recap Friday session as required 


 Stan  


8:10 am 4.1 SPS Continued 
-Conclude with motion to adopt 


Brainstorming 


session - All 


Stan/Wendy


/Paul 
 


10:00 am  Break  
   


10:15 am 4.2 
Conference calls for Board of Directors 


 Stan  


10:20 am 4.3 Social Media: Use and application to ADR matters Information Jennifer  


11:20 am 5 Bylaw and Policy updates    


 5.1 Board Policy Review  Stan 
5.1.1 
5.1.2 







ADRIA Board of Directors MEETING AGENDA September 18, 19 2015                            Page 2 of 3 
 


12:00 pm  Working Lunch (catered)    


12:20 pm 5.1 Board Policy Review continued  Stan  


 6 Reports (*mandatory)    


1:00 pm 6.1 President  Stan 6.1 


1:10 pm 6.2 ED*   Paul 
6.2.1 
6.2.2 


1:20 pm 6.3 Treasurer*   Mike 


6.3.1 
6.3.2 
6.3.3 
6.3.4 
6.3.5 


1:25 pm 6.4 Governance Committee  Dolores  


1:30 pm 6.5 
Board Committees/Task Forces 
-Mediation Advocacy Task Force 
-ADRIC Conference 


 


 


Co-Chairs 


Dolores/Paul 


6.5.1 


1:50 pm 6.6 
ADRIC Representative *  Chuck 


6.6.1 
6.6.2 
6.6.3 


 7 
New Business 


   


2:00 pm 7.1 Arbitration Act review (ULCC) 
Information & 
Discussion 


Paul 7.1 


2:05 pm 7.2 Society’s Act review (ALRI) 
Information & 
Discussion 


Paul 7.2 


2:15 pm 7.3 Board Committee Assignments  Stan 7.3 


2:30 pm 7.4 Evaluative ADR  Paul 7.4 


2:45 pm 8 Learning Opportunities –next meeting (s) Discussion Stan  


2:50 pm 9 Link to Membership, Events & Opportunities    


 9.1 Content of next ‘On Board’ Discussion Barrie  


 9.2 Invitations to next Board Dinner(s) Discussion Stan  


3:00 pm 10 Calendar Review  Stan  


  


-September 21-22: GOA DRN Conference EDM 
-September 21-22: Leadership Conference RD 
-October 5-6: People 4 People Conference EDM 
-October 28-30: ADRIC Conference CAL 
-November 19-20: ARJA Conference CAL 


Information & 


Discussion 
  


  Board of Directors Calendar    


  


October 30/31, 2015(CAL) 
January  15/16, 2016 (EDM) 
March 2016 ? 
May/June 2016 AGM & Conference? 


Information Stan  


3:10 pm 11 
In-camera session  Stan  


3.30 pm 12 Termination/Adjournment/Reflection  Stan  


 







ADRIA Board of Directors MEETING AGENDA September 18, 19 2015                            Page 3 of 3 
 


 


 


Residual issues: 


A. Governance Committee to rewrite Board Policies 
B.  Privacy + CASL Legislation 
C. Reforming the Family Justice System initiative (RFJS) 

































































ADRIA Strategic Directions & Strategies - August 2015


Vision:  No Albertan Fears Conflict                                                                              
Mission: To provide leadership and services in appropriate dispute resolution 


(ADR) to our members and to the public by: Fostering understanding of, and 


excellence in, negotiation, mediation, arbitration, and restorative practices; 


Supporting the viable practice of ADR in Alberta; Providing excellence in ADR 


professional development; Promoting the ethical use of ADR processes; 


Maintaining accreditation standards, accountability and designations for the 


ADR profession; Encouraging those practicing in ADR to join our organization; 


Connecting Albertans with ADR resources and expertise.                                                                          


Key Marketing Messages


All: ADRIA is the source of ADR information, resources & expertise in AB


Members: ADRIA membership is valuable & beneficial


Public: ADR is the FIRST choice for preventing & managing conflict


Org’s: ADR is the BEST choice for preventing & managing conflict


St
ra


te
gi


c D
ire


ct
io


ns (
Goals)


 Enhance
 th


e va
lu


e, a
w


are
ness


, r
eputa


tio
n o


f a
nd a


cc
ess


 to
 A


DR 


se
rv


ice
s.


St
re


ngt
hen o


ur P
ro


fe
ss


io
n.


Stre
ngt


hen A
DRIA


 a
s a


 m
em


bers
hip


 o
rg


aniza
tio


n.


 St
re


ngt
hen th


e lo
ng t


erm
 su


st
ain


abili
ty


 o
f A


DRIA
.


STRATEGIES  1 2 3 4
1.  Promote ADR Awareness within the General Public, Government and 


Business Sectors 
√ √


2. Increase the Value of ADRIA/ADRIC Membership to New and Practising  ADR 


Professionals 
√ √ √


3.  Develop New Revenue Streams √ √


4. Increase ADRIA’s Profile by Forging Strategic Partnerships √ √


5.  Promote Chartered Designations, internally and externally √ √


6.  Provide Leadership to Strengthen Alberta’s ADR Community √
7.  Promote ADR Training and the Q. Designations to Key Professions as a 


Valuable Secondary Qualification 
√ √


8.  Maximize the Potential of Technology √ √


9.  Adopt Best Business Practices  √


Success Indicators include:









